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Directors’ Report 

 

Dear Members, 

 

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and Audited Accounts for the year 

ended 31st March, 2022. 

 

Financial Highlights 

          (Rs in lakhs) 

 

Particulars 

For the year ended March 31 

Consolidated Standalone 

2022 2021 2022 2021 

Revenue from operations 86,959 75,989 84,102 75,146 

Other income 2,815 2,728 2,815 2,729 

Total Income 89,774 78,717 86,917 77,875 

Total expenses 88,805 70,525 84,682 69,117 

Profit before tax                           970 8,192 2,235 8,758 

Income tax expense              347 2,082 667 2,228 

Profit after tax                        623 6,110 1,568 6,530 

Other comprehensive income  402 404 247 438 

Total comprehensive income          1,025 6,514 1,815 6,968 

                                             

Financial Overview 

 

During the current financial year On Consolidated basis, your Company has registered a total income of                    

Rs.89,774 lakhs, a growth of 14% as compared to the previous year. The profit after tax was Rs.623 lakhs as 

against the Profit of Rs.6,110 lakhs as reported in the previous year. 

 

On Standalone basis, your Company has registered a total income of Rs.86,917 lakhs, a growth of 11% as 

compared to the previous year. The profit after tax was Rs.1,568 lakhs as against the Profit of Rs.6,530 lakhs as 

reported in the previous year. 

  

Business Highlights 

 

The Company offers its services through a combination of scientific talent, state of the art R&D and 

manufacturing infrastructure, high level commitment to safety & environment and compliant CGMP quality 

systems accredited by global regulatory agencies such as USFDA and PMDA. The large and growing 

addressable market for the small molecules together with the Company’s proven capability in this space is 

expected to fuel the Company’s growth in the near future. 
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Sai Life Sciences’ API Manufacturing unit receives ‘CII Excellent Energy Efficient Unit’ award 

September 02, 2021 

 

Sai Life Sciences, a global CRO & CDMO offering sustainable 

solutions to pharmaceutical companies through strategic 

partnerships and integrated drug discovery and development 

services, has been awarded with ‘Excellent Energy Efficient 

Unit’ in the general category at CII’s 22nd National Energy 

Management Awards. This is the second consecutive year that 

Sai Life Sciences’ Bidar API manufacturing unit has been 

awarded by CII for its energy management.   

 

Congratulating the team, Krishna Kanumuri, CEO & Managing 

Director said, ‘’The consistency of our performance in energy 

conservation and sustainability parameters in the past two years 

speaks volumes on the commitment of our engineers and utility managers who are relentless in their focus and 

consistently come up with innovative solutions to take us closer to our sustainable development goals.” 

 

The 22nd edition of National Award for Excellence in Energy Management is a flagship event of Confederation 

of Indian Industries (CII) with the objective to recognize and award excellence in energy management and 

facilitate the sharing of information on best practices and technologies. CII’s National Energy Award is the best 

platform for the organizations that have made outstanding contributions in energy efficiency to showcase their 

efforts and achievements. 

 

The Bidar API manufacturing facility of Sai Life Sciences has been on a path of significant expansion with its 

production capacity growing from 200KL in 2017 to 450KL today and on course to be 600KL in 2022. Along 

the way it has ensured a steadfast commitment to safer, compliant and sustainable manufacturing practices. 

 

Sai Life Sciences achieves EcoVadis Silver for Sustainability 

September 14, 2021 

 

In a global assessment acknowledged as a gold standard by 

procurers and suppliers, winning a silver is gratifying. With a net 

score of 57, nine points higher than last year, Sai Life Sciences 

has reaffirmed its commitment to social, economic and 

environmental responsibility in the evaluation by EcoVadis, the 

world’s most trusted provider of business sustainability ratings. 

 

Numerous factors contributed to Sai Life Sciences moving from 

Bronze last year to Silver this year: 

 

- Publication of first sustainability report 

- ISO certification 

- Endorsement of external initiatives such as Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Initiative (PSCI) and ACS Green 

Chemistry Institute - Pharmaceutical Roundtable 

- Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 

- Comprehensive policy for all sustainability aspects 

 

The EcoVadis Rating covers a broad range of criteria on non-financial management system indices including 

Environmental, Labor & Human Rights, Ethics and Sustainable Procurement. In the Environment parameter, 

our score increased from 50 to 70, and from 50 to 60 in Labor & Human Rights. 

 

As a firm believer in continual improvement, we will focus on strategic initiatives to upgrade our rating to the 

next level in the year ahead. 
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5th in a row for L&D! LearnX Live! Award 

November 23, 2021 

Deep within Sai Life Sciences is a team that keeps its distance 

from the shop-floor, R&T and R&D activities. Yet, it touches 

and transforms the work life of over 2200 employees with its 

omnipresent capability for imparting skills virtually. 

 

The objective of Learning & Development team is to provide 

employees an enriching learning experience by integrating 

training across quality, safety, technical, functional and soft 

skills. Delivery is through a cloud-based platform and modules 

are customized based on an individual’s function and role. 

 

In the wake of four industry honors this year, L&D has won the 

fifth - LearnX Live Award, Australia, under the category Best Learning Technology. 

 

The award recognizes the contribution of Sai Life Sciences’ Learning Management System (LMS) which 

manages employee learning, skills and knowledge with the aid of an intuitive user interface, collaboration tools, 

customized reporting, adaptive learning paths, analytics, course library, content curation and multi-device 

accessibility. 

 

As previous industry winners such as Sanofi, Pepsico and Adobe would agree, winning LearnX is a triumph of 

talent, and reward for high impact projects under multiple verticals of L&D. 

 

LearnX, instituted in 2008, is a time-tested quality awards program for learning, education, HR and digital 

experts. Participation is open to corporate, academia, public service, and nonprofit organizations globally. The 

2021 winners were announced at the Summit and Virtual Awards Show Celebration, Nov. 17 to 18. 

 

Our hearty congratulations to M. Damodharan, Head - Global Quality & Regulatory Affairs - his team members 

Vinoth, Vinil Sai, Anusha, Ganga Eswar Prasad, Priti and all training coordinators involved in L&D programs 

across the enterprise. 

 

Sai Life Sciences’ pharmaceutical API manufacturing site receives Certificate of Inspection from PMDA, 

Japan 

December 01, 2021 

 

Sai Life Sciences, a leading global Contract Research, 

Development & Manufacturing Organization (CRO/ CDMO), 

today announced that the Japanese regulatory agency, 

Pharmaceuticals and Medical Devices Agency (PMDA) 

completed a paper-based compliance inspection of its 

intermediate & API manufacturing facility in Bidar, India and 

issued a Certificate of Inspection. Previously, the agency had 

conducted a three-day long physical audit in the year 2016 and 

had issued a Certificate of Inspection. 

 

Making the announcement, Krishna Kanumuri, CEO & 

Managing Director said, “We are delighted to receive a formal 

Certificate of Inspection from PMDA, Japan. We have been a reliable supplier of pharmaceutical API to the 

Japanese market for over five years and this certification is a reaffirmation of our commitment to fulfill the most 

stringent quality standards of the regulatory agency.” 

 

Sai Life Sciences has a growing presence in the Japanese market. It was the launch site for commercial API 

supplies of an NCE to Japan and has supplied over 50 tonnes of API over the past five years. It is a supplier of 

registered starting materials for three commercial APIs. The company has also started working with a large 
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pharma company on the API supply of a recently launched animal and human health product. From a drug 

discovery perspective, the company has helped several biotech and pharma companies advance programs from 

HIT to lead optimization / candidate stage, through its chemistry, biologyand DMPKservices. The company 

opened its representative office in Tokyo, Japan last year, which serves as base for the company’s outreach to 

innovator pharmaceutical and biotech companies in Japan and other countries in the Asia Pacific region. 

 

Sai Life Sciences commences recruitment of 100+ scientists for its fast-growing drug discovery business 

December 15, 2021 

 

Sai Life Sciences today commenced recruitment for 100+ 

scientific positions across medicinal chemistry and biology to 

bolster the company’s growth plans of achieving scale, scope and 

speed in its Discovery business. All positions will be based at the 

company’s Integrated Research & Development campus in 

Hyderabad, India. The full list of open positions can be viewed 

here. 

 

Making the announcement, Krishna Kanumuri, CEO & MD, Sai 

Life Sciences said, “These are exciting times for all of us at Sai 

Life Sciences! The investments we have made as part of Sai Nxt 

are finding resonance with biotech and pharmaceutical innovators globally, especially as our global delivery 

model is bringing value to our customers through an optimal blend of talent, speed, and cost efficiency.” 

 

The present recruitment drive is aimed at increasing capacity in India to meet the growing demand for the 

company’s discovery services. In recent months, the company has doubled its headcount at both its Boston and 

Manchester sites. 

 

Sai Life Sciences is currently at the halfway mark of its organizational transformative initiative, Sai Nxt. Backed 

by an investment commitment of US$150M and envisaged as a 4-year program from 2019 to 2023, it aims to 

drive transformation across three core areas: (1) People & culture (2) Processes & automation (3) Infrastructure 

& scientific capabilities. So far, the company has already invested US$100M, enabling an upsurge in the 

company’s capabilities, augmenting its standing as a global CRO-CDMO offering cutting edge solutions to 

innovator pharma and biotech companies. 

 

The company is looking to on-board top-notch global scientific talent with M.Sc./ Ph.D / Post Doctorates in 

synthetic organic / analytical chemistry from reputed academic institutions, and experience in global pharma 

R&D of up to 20 years, for various roles across levels in medicinal chemistry, biology, DMPK and toxicology. 

 

Accomplished Pharma R&D leader, Sauri Gudlavalleti joins Sai Life Sciences as Chief Operating Officer 

January 19, 2022 

 

Sai Life Sciences, a leading global Contract Research, Development & 

Manufacturing Organization (CRO-CDMO), today announced the 

appointment of Sauri Gudlavalleti as its Chief Operating Officer. Sauri will 

report to the CEO & Managing Director, Krishna Kanumuri and drive the 

company’s growth as a new generation, science-driven organization. 

 

Making the announcement, Krishna Kanumuri said, “I am really excited to 

welcome Sauri on board Sai Life Sciences! He brings with him a strong data-

driven, systems approach combined with an innovation mindset and customer 

focus. I am confident that this approach will help us build Sai Life Sciences 

for greater scale, with high-quality science, speed and operating efficiency as 

the key pivots of our growth.” 

 

 

 



                     23rd Annual Report 2021-22        

                                                                  

7 

Sauri joins Sai Life Sciences from Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories where he was heading Global R&D and Portfolio 

Management for small molecule API & Formulations, encompassing portfolio & strategy, development, 

technology transfer, CRO/ CDMO partnerships, IP, regulatory affairs and clinical affairs. Over his 7-year tenure 

there, he spearheaded a multifold increase in the R&D pipeline, significantly globalized the R&D efforts with 

an impetus on fast-growing emerging markets and brought about a pioneering transformation in R&D through 

data and analytics. More recently, Sauri led the development, approval and launch of the company’s covid 

portfolio, partnering with global large pharma innovators, in record time. 

 

Before Dr. Reddy’s, Sauri was at McKinsey & Co. for six years where he successfully delivered on several 

client engagements with focus on operational transformation spanning product development, service delivery 

and manufacturing operations. Previously, he spent 9 years in the US, working on advanced technologies at 

MIT, GE and Qualcomm. He holds 9 US patents and has published in multiple peer-reviewed journals and 

conferences. Sauri is a B.Tech from IIT Madras, an MS from MIT and an MBA from IIM Ahmedabad. 

 

Responding to his appointment, Sauri Gudlavalleti, COO said, “I am delighted to join Sai Life Sciences at such 

an exciting time in its journey. In all my interactions with the various leaders of the company, I have sensed 

much excitement and a strong commitment to building a high-quality scientific company that brings science to 

life for its customers. This resonates with my own personal vision of transforming Pharma R&D with innovative 

technologies, data and analytics.” 

 

Over the past couple of years, the company has undergone an intense phase of transformation as part of its Sai 

Nxt initiative. During this period, it has expanded into new geographies, executed investments of over 

US$100M in its capacity and operations, grew its workforce across locations, consolidated discovery operations 

from Pune to Hyderabad, and more. As a result of these efforts, the progress in its trajectory across both its 

Discovery and CMC businesses shows a tremendous uptick in the recent months. 

 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

 

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

required to be disclosed under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Disclosure of 

Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, are provided in the Annexure ‘A’ forming part 

of this Report. 

 

Employees’ Stock Option Plan 

 

Information regarding the Employees’ Stock Option Plan is enclosed in Annexure ‘B’ forming part of the 

Annual Report. 

 

Dividend 

 

After Closure of financial year, the Board of Directors of your Company declared interim dividend @ Rs.39.63/- 

each on the Preference Shares for the period ended 2021-22 aggregating to Rs.3,45,00,000 on 20th June, 2022. 

 

Reserves 

 

During the year the company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves Account as the company has 

not declared any dividend. 

 
 

Insurance 

 

The properties and assets of your company are adequately insured. 

 

Fixed Deposits 
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The Company had not accepted or invited any Deposits within the meaning of Section 73 and 74 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made and consequently no Deposit has matured/ become due for re-payment as 

on 31st March, 2022. 

 

Change in Capital Structure 

 

The total share capital consisting of Equity and Preference Capital of the Company has been increased from Rs. 

Rs.18,30,00,590 to Rs.18,42,67,860 during the year under review, pursuant to  

1. Allotment of 6,250 equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each on conversion of Convertible Warrants 

2. Allotment of 1,20,477 equity shares of Rs.10/- each on exercising of options under the ESOP Scheme 

of the Company.  

Hence the total paid up share capital of company as on 31st March, 2022 was Rs.18,42,67,860. 

 
Registered Office 

 

During the year under review, keeping in mind the expansion plans and to improve operational efficiency the 

Registered Office of the Company was shifted to Plot No. DS-7, IKP Knowledge Park, Turkapally Village, 

Shameerpet Mandal, Medchal-Malkajgiri District-500078, Telangana w.e.f. April 30 ,2021. 

 

During the year under review, in the BM held on 21st May, 2021, the books of accounts of the company be kept 

and maintained at the company’s Corporate Office at # L4-06, SLN Terminus, Survey #133, Gachibowli 

Miyapur Road, Gachibowli, Hyderabad-500032, Telangana, India with effect from 01 June, 2021, the resolution 

was passed by the Board as per Section 128(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for keeping books of accounts at a 

place other than registered office. 
 

 

Health, Safety & Environment (HSE) 

 

At Sai, we consider Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) as a fundamental component of long-term business 

strategy and as a driver for sustainable growth. We strive to ensure that our facilities are safe by design and are 

committed to protecting the environment and actively seek to identify means of minimizing water use, energy 

use, greenhouse gas emissions & waste generation.  

 

Our R&D and manufacturing facility in India is certified for ISO 14001 – Environment management system 

standard and ISO 45001 – Occupational health & safety system standards ensuring our facility follows highest 

standard of HSE systems. The manufacturing facility is also certified for ISO 50001, Energy management 

standards driving the energy conservation efforts. With continuing investment on building environment and safe 

practices, we have established state of art wastewater treatment facilities, containment capabilities, process 

safety, fire protection and emergency management at site. The implementation of these has ensured that we 

improve our environmental & safety performance through: 

a. Adherence to compliance requirement 

b. Water recycling & reuse 

c. Responsible disposal of waste diverting from landfills 

d. Reducing our energy consumption and emissions.  

e. Process safety studies and risk assessment 

f. Equipment validation and personnel exposure monitoring 

g. Reduction of safety incidents 

 

Our efforts to build safe and environment friendly facilities were recognized through 5-star rating for EHS 

Excellence by CII, National award for Energy excellence by CII and GSK’s Environmental Sustainability 

Supplier award.  
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Sustainability: 

 

Sustainability is an integral part of our business and decision-making framework. We are committed to conduct 

business in a way that it creates positive impact on all our stakeholders and the environment at large. We have 

defined our Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) covering the topics of environment, supply chain and 

communities. To drive our sustainability agenda, we became signatory to Ten principles of United Nation 

Global Compact (UNGC) on human rights, labour, environment, and anti-corruption reinforcing the company’s 

commitment to corporate responsibility and sustainability. The performances and initiatives against the three 

pillars of sustainability i.e., Environment, Social and Economic are highlighted in our Sustainability Report 

(latest being report of FY 21) published annually. Our association with Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Initiatives 

(PSCI) as a member is helping us leverage the industry standards and best practices in the areas of sustainability. 

Our efforts towards improving sustainability practices are rewarded in Ecovadis assessment, the world’s most 

trusted business sustainability rating where we achieved and sustained silver medal this year. 
 
 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the year 

 

At the year ended 31st March, 2022, your Company had a total of seven Board of Directors, out of them two 

members were Independent Directors including a Woman Director. As on the date of this report, your Company 

has seven Board of Directors. 

 

In order to comply with Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013, Dr. K Ranga Raju (DIN: 00043186), Whole-

time Director of the Company and Mr. Puneet Bhatia (DIN: 00143973), Director of the Company will retire by 

rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers themselves for re-appointment and 

your Directors recommend their re-appointment. 

 

During the year under review, Mr. Jayant Bhalchandra Manmadkar resigned as Chief Financial Officer on July 

01, 2021. Mr. Sivaramakrishnan Chittor was appointed as Chief Financial Officer with effect from July 01, 

2021.  

 

In terms of Section 149 read with Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013, Mr. Rajagopal Srirama Tatta and 

Ms. Nandita Gurjar continue as an Independent Directors on the Board of the Company. Both the Independent 

directors have confirmed their independence in terms of the requirements of Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Other than the above, there were no changes in the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Person (KMP) 

during the FY 2021-2022.  

 

Declaration of Independence by Independent Directors 

 

The Company has received necessary declarations from the Independent Directors as required under Section 

149(7) of the Act stating that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of the said 

Section and also Rule 6 of the Co. (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014. 

 

Registration of Independent Director in Independent Directors Databank 

 

The Independent Directors of your Company have been registered for a period of 5 years and a member of 

Independent Directors Databank maintained by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 

 

Confirmation from the Board 

 

The Independent Directors of the Company have given their respective declaration/disclosures under Section 

149(7) of the Act and also confirmed that he fulfill the independence criteria as specified under section 149(6) 

of the Act and have also confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may 

be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective 

independent judgment and without any external influence. Further, the Board after taking these declarations 
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/disclosures on record and acknowledging the veracity of the same, concluded that the Independent Directors is 

a person of integrity and possess the relevant expertise and experience to qualify as Independent Directors of 

the Company and is Independent of the Management. 

 

Opinion of the Board 

 

The Board opines that the Independent Directors of the Company strictly adhere to corporate integrity, possesses 

requisite expertise, experience and qualifications to discharge the assigned duties and responsibilities as 

mandated by Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Meeting of Independent Directors 

 

During the year under review, one meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 2nd September, 2021 

without the presence of Executive Directors, Non-Independent Directors and management personnel and other 

members of management. 

 

Statutory Auditors 

 

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP (117366W/W-100018), Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory 

Auditors for a period of 5 years at the Annual General Meeting held on 26th September, 2018. Their continuance 

of appointment and payment of remuneration are to be confirmed and approved in the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. The Company has received a certificate from the above Auditors to the effect that if they are 

reappointed, it would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

As per the amended provisions of the Companies (Amendment) Act 2017 which were notified on 07.05.2018 

Company is not required to ratify the appointment of Auditor at every Annual General Meeting. Therefore, 

Company is not moving the resolution for ratification of auditor at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

Reporting of frauds by Auditors 

 

During the year under review, there have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors pursuant to Section  

143(12) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

Audit Reports 

 

Report of the Statutory Auditors on the financial statements for the year does not contain any qualification, 

reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer; or reporting of any offence or fraud. 

 

Particulars of Employees  

 

Under the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Particulars of 

Employees) Rules, 1975, as amended, the names and particulars of employees are set out in the annexure to the 

Director’s Report. However, in terms of the provisions the Director’s Report is being sent to all the shareholders 

of the Company excluding the aforesaid annexure. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the said 

annexure may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered office of the Company. 

 
Subsidiary/Joint ventures/Associate companies and their performance 

 

Company do not have any Joint Venture and Associates and the details of Subsidiary Companies are given 

below: 

 
 

Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies (WOS): 

 

Sai Life Sciences Inc 
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Sai Life Sciences Inc., USA recorded a turnover of US $ 9,983,446 for the year ended 31st March, 2022 as 

against US $ 7,203,101 for the year ended 31st March 2021. 

The Company registered a net loss of US $ 1,252,141 for the year ended 31st March, 2022 as compared to a net 

profit of US $ (554,818) in the previous year. 

 

Sai Life Pharma Private Limited 
 

Sai Life Pharma Private Limited recorded a turnover of Rs.13.54 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2022 as 

against Rs.5.66 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March 2021.  

The Company registered a net loss of Rs.(4.23) Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2022 as compared to a net 

profit of Rs.(7.96) Lakhs in the previous year. 

 

Sai Life Drugform Private Limited 
 

The company is not carrying on any business or operation for a period of 2 immediately preceding financial 

years, the company has submitted an application for closure of the Company with Registrar of Companies 

(ROC). Currently the Company status is Under Process of Striking Off. 
 

 

Sai Life Sciences GmbH 

 

During the year under the review, this wholly owned subsidiary company incorporated in Germany on 6 

December, 2021. Sai Life Sciences GmbH recorded a turnover of Euro Nil for the year ended 31st March, 2022. 

The Company registered a net loss of Euro (15,436) for the year ended 31st March, 2022. 

 

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

report on performance and financial position of subsidiaries is attached as per Annexure ‘C’ which forms part 

of this report. 
 

 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 of the Company have been prepared 

in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies 

Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, issued 

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’). The Auditors’ Report on the consolidated financial statement is 

also attached. 

 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement as required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ 

Responsibility Statement, your directors hereby confirm that: 

 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, 

wherever applicable; 

 

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 

and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 

of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year 

under review; 

 

c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
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d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 has been 

prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis; 

e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

 

f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

Loans, Guarantees and Investments under Section 186 

 

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the 

notes to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report. 

 

Internal Auditors 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 Of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, your Company has engaged the services of M/s PricewaterhouseCoopers Services, 

LLP, Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad to conduct the Internal audit of the Company for the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2022. 
 

Reporting of Head of Internal Audit is to the Chairman of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee and 

administratively to the Chief Financial Officer. Head of Internal Audit has regular and exclusive meetings with 

the Audit Committee. 
 

Secretarial Auditors 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Company has engaged the 

services of DSMR & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, Hyderabad to conduct the secretarial audit 

of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. The Report of the Secretarial Audit in MR-3 is 

annexed as Annexure ‘D’. 

 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Secretarial Auditor in their report for 

year ended 31st March, 2022. 

 

Whistle Blower Policy 

 

The Company has constituted a Whistle Blower Policy to report significant non- compliance with the 

Company's Code of Conduct. 

 

This Policy covers malpractices and events which have taken place / suspected to have taken place, misuse or 

abuse of authority, fraud or suspected fraud, violation of company rules and Code of Conduct, demanding and 

/or accepting gratification, obtaining a valuable thing without or inadequate consideration from a person with 

whom he has or may have official dealings, obtaining for self or any other person pecuniary benefits by corrupt 

or illegal means. 
 

Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board and General Meetings  

 

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

on Board Meetings and General Meetings. 
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Extract of Annual Return  

 

Under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, every company shall place a copy of the annual return on the 

website of the Company, if any, and the web-link of such annual return shall be disclosed in the Board’s report 

is submitted by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 effective from 28th August, 2020.  

https://www.sailife.com/compliance/ 

 

Particulars of Contracts or arrangements made with Related Parties 

 

Particulars of Contracts or arrangements made with Related Parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, is appended in Annexure ‘E’ to this report. 
 
 

 

Number of Meetings of the Board 

 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss business plan and strategies. The notice of Board meeting is 

given well in advance to all the Directors. 

 

The Board of Directors duly met 6 (Six) times during the Financial year under review and there was 5 (Five) 

Audit Committee, 3 (Three) Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 3 (Three) CSR committee meetings 

held during the year under review. The dates on which the meetings were held are as follows:  
 
 

Type of Meeting Date of Meeting 

Board Meeting 21 May 2021, 01 July 2021, 2 September 2021, 8 November 2021, 4 

January 2022 and 25 February 2022. 

Audit Committee 21 May 2021, 01 July 2021, 2 September 2021, 8 November 2021 and 

25 February 2022. 

Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee 

01 July 2021, 2 September 2021 and 25 February 2022. 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee 

21 May 2021, 2 September 2021 and 25 February 2022. 

                                                    

Attendance of Directors in the Board and Committee meetings are as follows: 

 

The maximum interval between any two meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of 120 days. 

 

Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors 

 

The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee and for determining the 

qualification, positive attributes and Independence Criteria of Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee has recommended to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration. 

 

 

S.No. 

 

 

Name of Director 

Number of 

Board meetings 

attended 

Number of Committees meetings attended 

Audit 

Committee 

Nomination & 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Corporate Social 

Responsibility 

(CSR) Committee 

1 Dr. K Ranga Raju 6 - - - 

2 K Krishnam Raju 6 3 3 3 

3 Dr. Raju A Penmasta 2 - - - 

4 Rajagopal Srirama 

Tatta 
6 5 3 3 

5 Nandita Gurjar 6 5 3 3 

6 Puneet Bhatia  6 - 3 3 

7 Mitesh Daga 6 2 - - 

https://www.sailife.com/compliance/
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The following are the roles and responsibility of nomination and remuneration committee: 

 

• Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management 

in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. 

 

• Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance 

 

• Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 

and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial 

personnel and other employees 

 

Your Company has properly constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee u/s 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 as follows: 

 

1 Rajagopal S Tatta Chairman 

2 K Krishnam Raju Member 

3 Nandita Gurjar Member 

4 Puneet Bhatia Member 

 

Risk Management Policy 

 

The Company has devised and implemented a mechanism for risk management and has developed Risk 

Management Policy. The Policy provides for constitution of a Risk Committee, which will work towards 

creating a Risk Register, identifying internal and external risks and implementing risk mitigation steps.  

 

Policy on Sexual Harassment  

 

The Company has constituted a Sexual Harassment Policy to prohibit, prevent or deter the commission of acts 

of sexual harassment at workplace and to provide the procedure for the redressal of complaints pertaining to 

sexual harassment.  

 

The Company has also complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee 

under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There 

were no incidences of sexual harassment reported during the year under review, in terms of the provisions of 

the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

 

Your Company has properly constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee u/s 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 with the following Directors:  

 

1 Rajagopal S Tatta Chairman 

2 K Krishnam Raju Member 

3 Puneet Bhatia Member 

4 Nandita Gurjar Member 

 

The CSR Committee has formulated the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy to accept the various activities 

to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and the related 

activities thereto in and around areas across the states where Company’s operating units were situated. 

 

Your Company has always been a responsible corporate citizen with many projects being undertaken on a 

regular basis. Your Company has taken the responsibility to make the Community that it operates a better place 

to live and work. A report on the CSR activities undertaken by the Company is given in Annexure ‘F’. 
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Vigil Mechanism  

 

In pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the companies Act, 2013, a Vigil mechanism for directors and 

employees to report genuine concerns is in place. The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website 

of the Company. 

 

Board Evaluation 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance 

evaluation of their own, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, 

Nomination & Remuneration and other Committees. The manner in which the evaluation has been carried out 

has been explained hereunder. 

 

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors, 

covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its 

Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. A 

separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of 

the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of attendance, engagement and contribution, 

independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The 

performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the director 

being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried 

out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

Cost Audit 

 

Central Government has notified rules for Cost Audit and as per new Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 

Rules, 2014 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Your Company is not falling under the industries which 

will be subject to Cost Audit. Therefore, filing of cost audit report for the FY 2021-22 is not applicable to the 

Company. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. 

 

Green Initiative 

 

As part of the “Green Initiative for Corporate Governance”, the Government has allowed companies to send 

notices and documents to their shareholders electronically to facilitate paperless communication. This will 

ensure prompt communication and avoid loss of documents in transit. 

 

Audit committee 

 

Your Company has properly constituted the Audit Committee u/s 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 on 

16.01.2019 and due change of the Committee member was re-constituted w.e.f. 2nd September 2021 as follows: 

 

1 Rajagopal S Tatta Chairman 

2 Nandita Gurjar Member 

3 Mitesh Daga Member 

 

Internal control systems 

  

Your Company has established and maintained a framework of internal financial controls and compliance 

systems. Based on the same and the work performed by the internal auditors, statutory auditors and the reviews 

performed by Top Management team and the Audit Committee, your Directors are of the opinion that your 

Company’s Internal Financial Controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2021-22. 
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Further, the Statutory Auditors of your Company have also issued an attestation report on internal control over 

financial reporting (as defined in section 143 of Companies Act, 2013) for the financial year ended March 31, 

2022, which forms part to the Statutory Auditors Report. 

 

Details of material changes and commitment occurred during period affecting financial position of company 

which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements 

relate and the date of the report; 

 

During the financial year 2021-22, there were no material changes and commitment affecting the financial 

position of company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the 

financial statements relate and the date of the report;. 

 

Details of changes in nature of Business of the Company  

 

During the financial year 2021-22, there were no change in the nature of Business of the company. 

 

Details of significant material orders passed by courts/tribunal impacting the going concern status of the 

Company  

 

During the financial year 2021-22, there were no orders passed by the courts/tribunal impacting the going 

concern status of the company. 

 

Human Resource Development 

 

In line with your company’s philosophy of investing in the development of its most precious asset of human 

capital, the company ensures that the right person is selected for the right job at the right time. The company is 

well aware of the significance of quality and competence of its workforce in driving the growth of its business.  

Your company’s strength of employees measures to 2293 as on 31st March, 2022. 

 

Cautionary Note 

 

Certain statements in the reports of the Board of Directors may be forward looking statements within the 

meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or 

implied since company’s operations are influenced by many external and internal factors beyond the control of 

the company. The company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any of these 

statements on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events. 

 

Quality Assurance (QA) 

 

Sai has established Quality Systems as per the Regulatory Requirements in every phase of Drug Development, 

Manufacture and Supply.  The Quality System at Sai have been designed to meet the Global Quality Standards 

(US/EU/Japan) for various stages of Drug Development and final APIs (NCEs/Generics).  

 

At Sai, we ensure quality through a robust governance framework encompassing our facilities, people, 

procedures, and our value system that emphasizes on integrity and continuous improvement. Our quality 

improvement program is a disciplined approach to performance management that includes organizational 

Strategic Planning, Performance Management and Accountability, operational/business planning and 

performance, and focused quality improvement efforts. 

 

Quality Assurance has been imperative in implementing Phase appropriate GMP for all the molecules, 

electronic systems such as GMPPro, Audit Management System, Laboratory Information Management System 

(LIMS), Learning Management System (LMS), QR Code & Label Management etc., 
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Employee Relations 

 

Your Company continues to have cordial and harmonious relationship with the employees. 

 

Details of application made or any preceding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 

of 2016) during the FY along with the current status 

 

During the year under the review, the Company has not made any application or any preceding not pending 

under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and not applicable to the company. 
 

 

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the 

valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof. 

 

During the year under the review, no transactions was recorded and not applicable to the company 

 

Gratitude and Acknowledgement 

 

The directors would like to place on record their appreciation for the contribution made by the employees to the 

significant growth of the Company. The trust reposed in your company by its esteemed customers helped 

stabilized growth during the year under review. 

 

Your Company also acknowledges the support and wise counsel received from State Bank of India and other 

banks & governmental Agencies during the year under review and it looks forward for such continuing support 

to enhance its goals.           

 

                                                   

                                                                                                            

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                                                                                                                                      

 

                                                                                    

         

                                                                                                          Dr. K Ranga Raju        K Krishnam Raju                      

Place: Hyderabad                                                                              Chairman                       Managing Director  

Date: August 17, 2022                    DIN: 00043186             DIN: 00064614  
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ANNEXURE –A 
 

Information required under the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 

1988. 
 

A. Conservation of Energy 

 

Your Company continued periodical auditing of all the installations internally to find new opportunities for 

reducing the wastage of electrical energy 
 

(I) the steps taken or impact on conservation of 

energy 

Company's operation does not consume 

significant amount of energy. 

(ii) 
the steps taken by the company for utilizing 

alternate sources of energy. 

Not applicable, in view of comments in 

clause (i)  

(iii) 
the capital investment on energy conservation 

equipment's 

Not applicable, in view of comments in 

clause (i)  

 

 

FORM –A 
 

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy: 
 

A. Power and Fuel Consumption: 
                    
 

S.no Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

31st March 2022 31st March 2021 

1 Electricity   
 a)  Purchased    
      Units (KWH)   3,35,32,563 29,843,634  
     Total amount (Rs)     25,63,42,887 224,866,878  
      Rate per unit  - (Rs)   8 7.53  
 (b) Own generation   
       Through diesel generator   
       Units (No’s) 620,613 534,999  
       Units per Ltr.of oil 10 3.25  
       Cost/Unit (Rs)  85 69  
     

2 Coal   
 Quantity (tonnes)  4,320 4,855  
  Total Cost (Rs) 2,63,93,553 30,564,775  
 Average rate per tonne (Rs) 11,094 12,644.91  
     

3 Furnace Oil   
 Quantity –KL 199 279  
 Total cost (Rs) 85,84,345 7,906,284   

Average rate per KL(Rs) 43,088 28,340  

 

B. Consumption per Unit of Production 
 

Products 

Electricity(Units) 

Coal 

Others(Specify) 

Since the company manufactures different types of active 

pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates, R&D Services 

and Custom Synthesis it is not practicable to give 

consumption per unit of production  
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FORM- B 

 

Form of disclosure of particulars with respect to Technology Absorption. 

 

A.  Research and Development Activities 

 

Specific areas in Research & Development carried out by the Company 

 

SAI has been one of Asia’s leading integrated service providers in the areas of drug discovery. SAI’s expertise 

include Medicinal Chemistry, Pharmacokinetics - absorption, distribution, metabolism, elimination (PK-

ADME), Tox studies and Combi-chem Library synthesis.   

 

From being a consultancy service provider with maturing capabilities, SAI’s Research and Development 

(‘R&D’) activities are now being realigned to carry out early discovery, process optimization, API (Active 

Pharmaceutical Ingredient) manufacture and formulation development. 

 

While SAI’s focal point would be the Process R&D and scale-up; pre-formulation and formulation development 

for New Chemical Entity (‘NCE’) and generic compounds to Pharma and innovator companies around the 

world, SAI is equally focusing on development of API (Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient), Drug Master Filings 

and technology for innovative drug products for the Indian and emerging markets. In-line with its vision, SAI 

is heading towards foreign collaboration for its R&D initiatives. 

 

The Unit-2 facility at ICICI Knowledge Park, Shameerpet and Unit -4 facility at Bidar were inspected by FDA 

and declared to be acceptable. 

 

Presently, SAI has four R&D centers spread across Telangana, Karnataka and Maharashtra whose details are as 

under: 

1. DS-7, IKP, Phase-I, Turakapally Village, Shameerpet, Ranga Reddy District, Telangana 

2. S.No.296/7/3 & 4, Industrial Development Area, Bollaram, Jinnaram Mandal, Medak District, Telangana.  

3. 79B, 80A, 80 B, 82 & 81 A, Kolhar Industrial Area, Bidar, Karnataka. 

4. #2, Chrysalis’ Enclave, International Biotech Park, Phase-II, Hinjewadi, Pune   

 

Benefits Derived as a result of the above R&D are: 

  

• Improved business opportunities 

• Creation of Intellectual Property 

• Continued customer acceptance and satisfaction 

• Business opportunities for the Indian and emerging markets 

• Focus on the long term vision and growth of the Company 

• To help our partners develop innovative medicines quicker and at lower cost by providing reliable research 

and manufacturing solutions 

• Encourages innovation  

• Low cost solutions for unmet medical needs for emerging economies 

• Enhanced valuation of the organization 

Future Plan of Action 

• End-to-end customer support (for their business needs) would continue to be the focal point of R&D 
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• Continue to focus on business opportunities and implementing differentiated strategies to build customer 

base and pipeline 

• Creation of innovative and efficient processes to enhance and sustain the business growth 

• Transformation of R&D activities into a self-sustaining growth engine for the organization 

• Aggressive strategy to enable global expansions in key emerging markets 

 

Expenditure on Research & Development 

                                                                                                                                 (in Lakhs) 

Financial Year Capital expenditure Revenue expenditure Total 

2020-21 369.42 688.06 1,057.48 

2021-22 0 0 0 

 

During the year no expenditure was incurred on scientific research and development. 

 

B. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation 

 
 

 

FORM C 

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo (Amount Rs. in lakhs) 

Foreign Exchange Earnings 

Export of goods and services                           

Foreign Exchange Outgo  

CIF Value of Imports        

Foreign Travel and others                            

 

77,240.21 

 

15,057.52                                      

88,917.73 

 

 

  

Efforts, in brief, made                    

towards technology absorption and 

adoption  

The Company has an R&D division engaged in research of new products 

& Process development of existing products. The Company has developed 

indigenous technology in respect of the products manufactured by it. 

As soon as the technology is developed for a product, it is tested in pilot 

plant and thereafter commercial production is taken up. It is the philosophy 

of the Company to continuously upgrade the technology. 

Benefits derived as a result of the 

above           

- Quality Improvement 

- Cost reduction 

- Better production process, better yields 

Imported technology:                                                               There is no imported technology 

Expenditure on Research & 

Development 

 

The Department of Scientific and Industrial Research, Government of 

India, has recognised the Company’s Research and Development ("R&D") 

units and an order of approval has been granted vide their letter dated 20th 

April 2022. The approval was valid up to 31 March 2024.  
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ANNEXURE B 

Employee Stock Option Schemes 

 

The Company instituted the Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) in the year 2004 to enable the employees 

and the directors of the company and its subsidiaries to participate in the future growth and financial success of 

the Company. 

 

Options granted in the year 2004 scheme will vest at the end of 3 years from the date of grant. The vested 

options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company. 

 

Options granted in the year 2005, 2006 and 2007 scheme will vest in a graded manner i.e. 60% of the options 

will vest at the end of 3 years from the date of grant and balance 40% of the options will vest at the end of 5 

years from the date of grant. The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of 

employment with the Company. 

 

Options granted in the year 2008 scheme will vest in a graded manner i.e 50% of the options will vest at the end 

of 2 years from the date of grant and balance 50% of the options will vest at the end of 4 years from the date of 

grant. The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company. 

Under this scheme the company granted additional ESOP in the year 2018. The options granted shall vest 20% 

at the end of every year from the grant date for a period of 5 years. The vested options can be exercised by the 

employee during his term of employment with the Company. 

 

The Company has established a plan “Management ESOP plan 2018” in the year 2018. The Stock options 

granted shall vest 20% every year from the date of grant for a period of 5 years.  The vested options can be 

exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.  The Management ESOP plan 

2018 was further modified on 25th March, 2022. 

 

The particulars of the options granted and outstanding upto 31st March, 2022 are as under: 
 

Particulars # Options 

No. of Options Granted 42,74,300 

No. of Options Vested 3,35,500 

No. of Options Exercised 6,32,246 

No. of Options Lapsed 29,93,279 

No. of Options in force 27,71,973 

No. of shares arising as a result of exercise of options 27,71,973 

No. of employees who are granted equal to /more than 1% of the issued capital Nil 

No. of employees who were granted equal to/more than 5% of the issued capital Nil 

                          

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Dr. K Ranga Raju                                                                                                                  

Chairman            

                               DIN: 00043186 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: August 17, 2022 
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ANNEXURE C 

Form AOC – 1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures 
 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

                                      (in Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sl. 

No 
 1 

 

2 

 

3 

 

4 

1 Name of the Subsidiary 

Company 

Sai Life 

Sciences Inc. 

Sai Life Pharma 

Private Limited 

Sai Life Drugform 

Private Limited 

Sai Life 

Sciences GmbH 

2 Reporting period for the 

subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding 

company’s reporting period 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

3 Date of Investment in 

Subsidiary  

10 August, 2004 25 October, 2019 03 December, 2019 6 December, 

2021 

4 Reporting currency and 

Exchange rate as on the last 

date of the relevant 

Financial year in the case of 

Foreign Subsidiary 

1 USD = INR 

75.7925 (BS) 

1 USD = INR 

74.51 (P&L) 

N.A. N.A. 1 Euro = INR 

84.2200 (BS) 

1 Euro = INR 

83.3225 (P&L) 

5 Share Capital 102.10 1,151 0 21.07 

6 Reserves & Surplus 3,897.20 (17.52) 0 (12.86) 

7 Total Assets 13,263.45 1,146.03 0 13.56 

8 Total Liabilities 13,263.45 1,146.03 0 13.56 

9 Investments Nil Nil Nil Nil 

10 Turnover 7,440.70 13.54 0 Nil 

11 Profit before Taxation (1,258.04) 1.15 0 (12.71) 

12 Provision for Taxation (327.09) 5.38 0 Nil 

13 Profit / Loss after Taxation (930.95) (4.23) 0 (12.71) 

14 Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil 

15 % of Shareholding 100 100 100 100 
 

 

Notes:  
 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil  
 

 

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year:  Sai Life Drugform 

Private Limited (Under Process of Striking Off)                         
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      Part “B”: Associates & Joint Ventures 

 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and 

Joint Ventures 
 

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures Name 1 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date - 

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired - 

3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end - 

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture - 

Extent of Holding (in percentage) - 

4. Description of how there is significant influence - 

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated - 

6. Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet - 

7. Profit or Loss for the year - 

i.  Considered in Consolidation - 

ii.  Not Considered in Consolidation - 

 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. 

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. 

 
 

For and on behalf of       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP    Sai Life Sciences Limited 

Chartered Accountants      

    Sd/-                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

Sathya P. Koushik                                                                          

Partner            

Membership No: 206920          

                              

  

 

 K Ranga Raju K Krishnam Raju 

 Chairman Managing Director 

 DIN: 00043186 DIN: 00064614 

   

 

 

 Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan 

 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

   

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: August 17, 2022                 
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ANNEXURE D 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year Ended 31st March 2022 

FORM NO MR 3 

Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

To, 

The Members 

SAI LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED, 

PLOT NO. DS-7, IKP KNOWLEDGE PARK, TURKAPALLY  

SHAMEERPET MANDAL, MEDCHAL, 

HYDERABAD, TELANGANA- 500078 

 

 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 

to good corporate practices by SAI LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED bearing CIN: U24110TG1999PLC030970 

(hereinafter called “the Company”).  

 

Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided and declarations made by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in 

my opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 

and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31stMarch,2022 and made available to me, according to the provisions 

of: 

 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder to the extent applicable except for 

delay in filing of forms. 

 

ii. The company has availed the exemption provided by the MCA regarding filing of  

-E-form MGT-7 for the FY 2020-21  

-E-form AOC-4 for the FY 2020-21 

 

iii. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings  

 

iv. The Secretarial Standards on the Meetings of the Board of Directors, Committees and General Meetings 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

 

v. The Company is engaged in the business of contract research and manufacturing services of drugs. 

Accordingly, some of the following applicable Industry Specific Acts are covered under the purview of 

our audit, in consultation with the Management and on the basis of the Guidance Note issued by the 

ICSI. Based on our verification and also reliance on the Compliance Certificate, we are of the view that 
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the company has generally complied with following Industry Specific Laws in line with amendments 

from time to time:  

 

• Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940 read with the Drugs and Cosmetics Rules, 1945  

•  Petroleum Act, 1934 

•  Inflammable Substances Act, 1952  

•  Explosives Act, 1884 read with Explosives Rules, 1983  

•  Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974  

• Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 

• Indian Boilers Act, 1923  

 

I further report, that the compliance by the company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax 

laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this Audit, since the 

same have been subject to review by Statutory Financial Auditor and other designated professionals. 

I further report that: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 

took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the 

rules made there under. 

 

The following changes in the Key Managerial Personnel were approved in the Board Meeting held on 01st July, 

2021: 

 

(i) Resignation of Mr. Jayant Bhalchandra Manmadkar as the Chief Financial Officer  

(ii) Appointment of Mr. Sivaramakrishnan Chittor as the new Chief Financial Officer with effect from 

01st July, 2021. 

 

During the Financial year under review, Mr. Sivaramakrishnan Chittor, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

of the Company was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer in Sai Life Pharma Private Limited, the Wholly-

Owned Subsidiary of Sai Life Pharma Private Limited in compliance with Section 203 of the Companies Act 

2013. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent adequately in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

The decisions at the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have been carried out unanimously as recorded 

in minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

 

I further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of the audit and based on records maintained in my opinion, there are 

adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 

monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the rules made there under except as mentioned in point No. (i) 
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The Company being an un-listed company, the following Acts, Regulations, and other applicable rules shall not 

apply:  

 

• The Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 

• The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under 

• The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under 

• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011 

• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations 

• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit Schemes) Regulations, 

2014 

• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 

• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 

• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 

 

We further report that: 

 

1. During the course of our audit, Equity Shares, under the previously approved ESOP Schemes, have 

been allotted to shareholders on different dates after obtaining the necessary statutory and regulatory 

approvals: 

 

Date of Allotment No. of Equity shares issued under ESOP 

(Excluding FV) 

28.07.2021 12,500 @ 110/- 

12500 @ 274/- 

02.09.2021 5000@ 110/- 

26.10.2021 25000 @ 94/- 

20000 @ 274/- 

3928 @ 1263 

24.11.2021 16500 @ 106/- 

10000 @ 110/- 

28.12.2021 49 @ 35/- 

15000 @ 73/- 

 

2. The company has allotted 6250 Equity shares upon conversion of Convertible warrants of Rs. 10/- each 

at a premium of Rs. 1263/- per share to Mr. Jagdish V Dore and the shall be subject to compliance of 

section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same was approved in the Board Meeting held on 2nd 

September 2021. 

 

Date of Allotment No. of Equity shares upon 

conversion of Convertible 

warrants (Excluding FV) 

Name of the allottee 

28.07.2021 6250 @ 1263/- Mr. Jagdish V Dore 
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3. The company in its meeting held on 21st May 2021 approved to invest in a Limited Liability Partnership 

in Germany (GmbH) as a 100% Wholly owned Subsidiary of SAI LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED, India 

and subsequently the company has invested to the extent of Euros 25,000 for the purpose of business 

expansion and marketing Services. 

 

4. The company has approved for further investment of USD 4,500,000 in SAI LIFE SCIENCES INC, 

USA 100% Wholly owned Subsidiary in one or more tranches in FY 2021-22, based on the budget 

approved for Capital and operating expenses in the Board Meeting held on 1st July 2021. However, the 

company has not made any investment in the FY 2021-22. 

DSMR & Associates 

       Company Secretaries 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: 17th August, 2022 

 

D S M Ram 

Proprietor 

C. P. No. 4239 

UDIN: A014939D000804464 

Peer Review Certificate No.1252/2021 dated 15thMay, 2021 

 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part 

of this report. 
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ANNEXURE – A 

 

To, 

The Members,  

SAI LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED 

PLOT NO. DS-7, IKP KNOWLEDGE PARK, TURKAPALLY  

SHAMEERPET MANDAL, MEDCHAL, 

HYDERABAD, TELANGANA- 500078. 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

 

Management’s responsibility: 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility: 

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurances 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 

to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 

practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 

3. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happenings of events etc. 

 

4. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on test basis. 

 

Disclaimer: 

 

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 

of the Company 

 

DSMR & Associates 

       Company Secretaries 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: 17th August, 2022 

 

D S M Ram 

Proprietor 

C. P. No. 4239 

       UDIN: A014939D000804464 

  Peer Review Certificate No.1252/2021 dated 15thMay, 2021   
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ANNEXURE E 
 

Form No. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.  Including certain arm’s 

length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 

 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions are at arm’s length basis: 

 

Name(s) of 

the related 

party 

Nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

contracts/ 

arrangements 

/transactions 

Duration of 

the contracts / 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions including 

the value, if any: 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Date(s) of 

approval 

by the 

Board, if 

any 

Amount 

paid as 

advance

s, if any 

Sai Life 

Science Inc, 

USA 

Subsidiary 

Company 

Consultancy 

services 

received 

Ongoing 

Consultancy services –  

Rs.3,904.18 Lakhs 

 

16.05.2019 Nil 

Sai Life 

Sciences 

GmbH 

Subsidiary 

Company 

Investment in 

equity Share 

Capital 

Ongoing 

Investment equity share 

capital in the 

Subsidiary Company  

Rs.21,06,500 

21.05.2021 Nil 

Sai Life 

Pharma Pvt 

Ltd 

Subsidiary 

Company 
Lease Rent 

Ongoing 

 

Payment of Lease Rent 

–  Rs.7.43 Lakhs 
10.06.2020 Nil 

Sai Life 

Pharma Pvt 

Ltd 

Subsidiary 

Company 
Lease Rent Ongoing 

Payment of Lease Rent 

–  Rs.8.54 lakhs 
29.09.2020 Nil 

Sai Life 

Drugform Pvt 

Ltd 

Subsidiary 

Company 

Investment in 

equity share 

capital 

Ongoing 
Investment equity share 

capital –  Rs. Nil 
05.11.2019 Nil 

Soma Khadi 

Gramodyog 

Sangha 

Entities in 

which KMP 

have control 

or have 

significant 

influence 

Entities in 

which KMP 

have control 

Ongoing 

Lease Agreement - 

Refundable Security 

Deposit Rs.30 lakhs 

19.02.2020 Nil 

R R Kabel 

Limited 

Entities in 

which 

Investor 

Directors are 

interested 

Purchase of 

Materials 
Ongoing 

Purchase of Materials – 

Rs.20.63 lakhs 
01.07.2021 Nil 

 

                                                              For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                         Dr. K Ranga Raju                         

Place: Hyderabad                                                                                                               Chairman 

Date:  August 17, 2022                                                    DIN: 00043186 
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ANNEXURE F 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
 

Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as per subsection (3) of section 134 of the Act Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 

 

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy: - 

 

The Objective of Sai’s CSR Policy is: 
 

• To enable a comprehensive and systematic framework for the CSR activities which Sai is currently engaged with at different locations. 

• Demonstrate commitment to the common through responsible business practices and good governance. 

• Actively support the state development agenda to ensure sustainable change and attain development of the nearby society. 

• Engender a sense of empathy and equity among employees of Sai to motivate them to give back to the society. 

 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:  
 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the Director Designation/ Nature of Directorship Number of meetings of 

CSR Committee held 

during the year 

Number of meetings of 

CSR Committee attended 

during the year 

1 Rajagopal Srirama Tatta Chairman of CSR Committee /  

Independent Director  

3 3 

2 Krishnam Raju Kanumuri Member of CSR Committee / 

Managing Director 

3 3 

3 Puneet Bhatia Member of CSR Committee / Director 3 3 

4 Nandita Gurjar Member of CSR Committee /  

Independent Woman Director 

3 3 

 

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website 

of the company:  
 

https://www.sailife.com/compliance/ 

 

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): 

 

Not Applicable - as the Company does not have an average CSR obligation of Rs. 10.00 Crores or more in the three immediately preceding 

financial years. 

 

https://www.sailife.com/compliance/
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5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 

preceding financial years (in Rs.) 

Amount required to be set-off for 

the financial year, if any (in Rs) 

1 2021-22 N.A. N.A. 

2 2020-21 N.A. N.A. 

3 2019-20 N.A. N.A. 

 

6. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years: Rs. 116,90,35,736 

 

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

1,24,68,63,594 1,27,32,07,706 98,70,35,907 

Average- Rs. 116,90,35,736 
 

 

7.    (a)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 2,33,80,715 

(b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Rs. Nil 

(c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Rs. Nil 

(d)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): 2,33,80,715 
 

8. 

a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial 

Year. (in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 

Account as per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as 

per second proviso to section 135(5). 

Amount. Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer 

2,36,27,683 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

 

b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1

) 
(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

(1

0) 
(11) 

Sl

. 

N

o 

Name 

of the 

Project 

Item 

from the 

list of 

activities 

in 

Schedule 

Local 

area 

(Yes/N

o). 

Location of the 

project 

Projec

t 

Durati

on 

Amount 

allocate

d for the 

project 

(in Rs.). 

Amount 

spent in the 

current 

financial 

Year (in 

Rs.). 

Amount 

transferr

ed to 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

Mode 

of 

Implem

entatio

n - 

Direct 

Mode of 

Implementation - 

Through 

Implementing 

Agency 

Name 
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VII to 

the Act. 

State District 

for the 

project 

as per 

Section 

135(6) (in 

Rs.). 

(Yes/No

). CSR 

Registrati

on 

number. 

Nil 
 
 

 

c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the 

Project. 

Item from the list 

of activities in 

Schedule VII to 

the Act. 

Local 

area 

(Yes/N

o). 

Location of the project 
Amount 

spent for 

the project 

(in Rs.). 

Mode of 

Impleme

ntation - 

Direct 

(Yes/No)

. 

Mode of Implementation - 

Through Implementing 

Agency 

Name 

CSR 

Registration 

number. State District 

1 
Hyderabad Eye 

Institute 

i (iv) promoting 

health care 

including 

preventive health 

care 

Yes  Telangana   Hyderabad  
           

1,60,00,000  
No 

Hyderabad 

Eye Institute 
CSR00001698 

2 
Divya Deepa 

Charitable Trust 

ii (iv) livelihood 

enhancement 

projects 

No  Karnataka   Mysore  11,00,000 No 

Divya Deepa 

Charitable 

Trust 

CSR00010683 

3 SAFA SOCIETY 

ii (iv) livelihood 

enhancement 

projects 

Yes  Telangana   Hyderabad  4,63,926 No 
SAFA 

SOCIETY 
CSR00000827 

4 

Adhyayan Quality 

Education 

Foundation 

 ii (i) Promoting 

education  
No 

Maharashtr

a  
 Mumbai  

                 

4,61,111 

  

No 

Adhyayan 

Quality 

Education 

Foundation 

CSR00002080 

5 
Arkamithra 

Foundation 

 ii (i) Promoting 

education  
Yes  Telangana   Hyderabad  

                    

25,000  
Yes N.A. N.A. 

6 
Enfold Proactive 

Health Trust 

 i (iv) promoting 

health care 

including 

preventive health 

care  

No  Karnataka   Bangalore  
                 

1,57,009  
No 

Enfold 

Proactive 

Health Trust 

CSR00011311 
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7 Leap For Word 
 ii (i) Promoting 

education  
No 

 

Maharashtr

a  

 Mumbai  
                 

2,00,000  
No 

Leap For 

Word 
CSR00001037 

8 
Nimisha 

Constructions 

 ii (i) Promoting 

education  
No  Karnataka   Bidar  

              

19,52,180  
Yes N.A. N.A. 

9 

Promoting 

Education - Govt 

School 

 ii (i) Promoting 

education  
Yes  Telangana   R.R.Dist  

                 

1,37,596  
Yes N.A. N.A. 

10 

RO water System 

and Installation 

Works 

 i (vi) making 

available safe 

drinking water  

No  Karnataka   Bidar  
                 

5,51,461  
Yes N.A. N.A. 

11 Roshni Trust 

 i (iv) promoting 

health care 

including 

preventive health 

care  

Yes  Telangana   Hyderabad  
              

10,79,400  
No Roshni Trust CSR00000664 

12 

Society For 

Cyberabad 

Security Council 

 ii (iv) livelihood 

enhancement 

projects  

Yes  Telangana   Hyderabad  
              

15,00,000  
No 

Society For 

Cyberabad 

Security 

Council 

CSR00005045 

 Total     2,36,27,683    

 

d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Rs. Nil 

e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Rs. Nil 

f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 2,36,27,683 

 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:  

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 2,33,80,715 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2,36,27,683 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 2,46,968 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 

previous financial years, if any 

Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 2,46,968 
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9. 

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 
 

Sl. 

No. 

Preceding 

Financial 

Year. 

Amount 

transferred to 

Unspent CSR 

Account under 

section 135 (6) 

(in Rs.) 

Amount 

spent in the 

reporting 

Financial 

Year (in Rs.). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any. 

Amount 

remaining to be 

spent in 

succeeding 

financial years.  

(in Rs.) 

Name of the 

Fund 

Amount (in 

Rs). 

Date of 

transfer. 

1. 2021-22 Nil 2,46,968 N.A. N.A. N.A. 30,667 

2. 2020-21 Nil 16,70,522 N.A. N.A. N.A. 2,77,635 

3. 2019-20 Nil Nil N.A. N.A. N.A. 19,48,157 

 Total  19,17,490     

            * Disclosure with regard to CSR unspent amount is being provided in the respective FY’s boards report as per CSR compliance. 

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 

 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Sl. 

No. 

Project ID. Name of 

the Project 

Financial 

Year in 

which the 

project was 

commenced 

Project 

duration 

Total 

amount 

allocated for 

the project 

(in Rs.) 

Amount 

spent on the 

project in 

the reporting 

Financial 

Year (in Rs). 

Cumulative 

amount spent 

at the end of 

reporting 

Financial 

Year. (in Rs.) 

Status of the 

project - 

Completed 

/Ongoing. 

---- Not Applicable --- 

 

10.   In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in     

the financial year (asset-wise details). 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): None 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Rs. Nil 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc: Not Applicable 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset): Not Applicable 
 

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                                                                                                                                      
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                                                                                                   Rajagopal S Tatta     K Krishnam Raju 

               Director   Managing Director 

               Chairman of CSR Committee       Member of CSR Committee            

                                                                                                            DIN: 00988348                  DIN: 00064614 

Place: Hyderabad  

Date: August 17, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To The Members of Sai Life Sciences Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sai Life Sciences Limited  (“the 

Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at  31 March 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 

under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 

(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 

at 31 March  2022, its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 

ended on that date.  

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 

in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent  of  the  Company  in  accordance  with  the  Code  of  Ethics  issued  by  the  Institute  of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical  requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 

financial statements under the provisions of the  Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe 

that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

standalone financial statements.  

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

• The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 

the information included in the Director’s report, Including Annexures to Director’s Report, but does not 

include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon 

 

• Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

• In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 

to be materially misstated. 

 

• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements   

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 

the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 

accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also 

includes maintenance of  adequate accounting records in accordance  with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds  and  other  irregularities;  selection  and  

application  of  appropriate accounting  policies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 

basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so.  

 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.  

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section  143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
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uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone 

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 

the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 

 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 

Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

with the relevant books of account.  

 

d) In  our  opinion,  the  aforesaid  standalone  financial  statements  comply  with  the  Ind AS specified 

under Section 133 of the Act.  

 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report 

expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 

financial controls over financial reporting. 
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/payable by the Company to its 

directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,  2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us:  

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 

standalone financial statements. 

 
ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, 

for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;  

 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 

the note 43 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 

the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities  (“Intermediaries”), with 

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly 

or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 

on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 

the note 43 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company 

from any person or entity, including foreign entities  (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 

 

v. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this 

report is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013. 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 

in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in 

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

(F.R.N. 117366W/W-100018) 

 

 

 

Sathya P. Koushik 

(Partner) 

(Membership No. 206920) 

UDIN: 22206920APEJCQ8616 
 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 17 August 2022 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of 

even date) 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sai Life Sciences Limited (“the 

Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 

of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial 

statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 

of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 

and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 

future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in 

all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 

financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for 

internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components 

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

(F.R.N. 117366W/W-100018) 

 

 

 

Sathya P. Koushik 

(Partner) 

(Membership No. 206920) 

UDIN: 22206920APEJCQ8616 

 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 17 August 2022 
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of 

even date) 
 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and 

records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that 

(i) (a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment including capital work-in-progress and 

relevant details of right-of-use assets 

   

  B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

 

(b) Some of Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in- progress and right-of-use assets were 

physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular programme of 

verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the Property plant and 

equipment, capital work-in- progress and right-of-use asset at reasonable intervals. According to the 

information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 

(c) Based on the examination of the registered sale deed/conveyance deed provided to us, we report 

that, the title deeds, of all the immovable properties of land and buildings, disclosed in the standalone 

financial statements included in property, plant equipment, are held in the name of the Company as 

at the balance sheet date. Immovable properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have been 

pledged as security for loans are held in the name of the Company based on the confirmations 

directly received by us from lenders. In respect of immovable properties of land and buildings that 

have been taken on lease and disclosed as right of use assets in the standalone financial statements, 

the lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the 

agreement. 

 

(d)    The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use 

assets) and intangible assets during the year. 

 

(e)     No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 

31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 

(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

 

(ii) (a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. 

In our opinion and based on information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure 

of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and 

the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of 

inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of 

account.  

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned 

working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from 

banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according 

to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the 

Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the unaudited books of 

account of the Company of the respective quarters. 
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(iii) The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee and granted loans, secured or unsecured, to 

companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, in respect of which 

 

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or provided security to 

any other entity during the year. The Company has provided guarantee and details of which are 

given below: 

 

 Guarantees(` in 

lakhs) 

A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year:  

- Subsidiaries  328.97 

- Others - 

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of 

above cases 

 

-      Subsidiaries  328.97 

- Others - 

 

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the loans 

provided, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 

 

(c) In respect of loans granted provided by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and 

payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of 

interest are regular as per stipulation. 

 

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, 

in respect of loans granted provided by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining 

outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

 

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended 

or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties. 

 

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, 

the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on 

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting 

under clause (iii)(f) is not applicable. 

 

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 

making investments. The Company has not granted loans, given guarantees and securities to which sections 

185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable.  

 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting 

under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company 

pursuant to the Companies (Cost  Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central 

Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of 

the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. 

We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether 

they are accurate or complete. 
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(vii) (a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and 

Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and 

other material statutory dues applicable to it, to the appropriate authorities. 

 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, 

Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in 

arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub- clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on 

March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:  

 

Name of Statute 
Nature of 

Dues 

Forum where 

Dispute is 

Pending 

Period to 

which the 

Amount 

Relates 

Amount 

Involved 

(` in lakhs) 

Amount 

unpaid 

(` in lakhs) 

Finance Act, 1994  
Service 

Tax 

High Court, 

Mumbai 
2012-2014 123.62 36.36 

Central Excise Act, 

1944 

Excise 

Duty 

Customs, Central 

Excise Service 

Tax Appellate 

Tribunal 

2007-2012 72.48  54.36 

Maharashtra Value 

Tax Act, 2002 

Value 

Added 

Tax 

Customs, Central 

Excise Service 

Tax Appellate 

Tribunal 

2009-2014 447.32 447.32 

Maharashtra Value 

Tax Act, 2002 

Value 

Added 

Tax 

Joint 

Commissioner 

Appeals 

2014-2017 145.20 145.20 

Income-tax Act, 

1961 

Income 

tax 

Commissioner of 

Income-tax 

(Appeals) 

2015-2016 372.24 372.24 

Income-tax Act, 

1961 

Income 

tax 

Commissioner of 

Income-tax 

(Appeals) 

2016-2017 162.25 - 

Income-tax Act, 

1961 

Income 

tax 

Commissioner of 

Income-tax 

(Appeals) 

2017-2018 31.35 31.35 

Employees 

Provident Funds 

and Miscellaneous 

Provisions Act, 

1952 

Provident 

Fund 

Central 

Government 

Industrial 

Tribunal 

1996-2018 218.91 218.91 

 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as 

income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

 

(ix) (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in 

the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 
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(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 

government or any government authority. 

 

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, 

applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained. 

 

(d)   On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds raised on 

short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the 

Company. 

 

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has 

not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 

subsidiaries. The Company did not have any associate or joint venture during the year. 

 

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries. 

The Company did not have any associate or joint venture during the year. 

 

(x) (a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the year and 

hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 

or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of 

the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has 

been noticed or reported during the year. 

 

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies 

Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

 

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the 

Company during the year and upto the date of this report. 

 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act for all 

transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 

standalone financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and 

the nature of its business. 

 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and covering 

the period upto September 30, 2021 and the draft of the internal audit reports were issued after the 

balance sheet date covering the period October 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022 for the period under 

audit. 

 

(xv) In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors 

or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 

not applicable to the Company. 
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(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c)of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(b) The Group (“Companies in the Group” as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 

Directions) does not have any CIC (Core Investment Company) as part of the group and accordingly reporting 

under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 

preceding financial year. 

 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements and our knowledge 

of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 

as on the date of the audit report indicating the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 

date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We 

however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 

reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 

assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there 

are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the 

Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-Section (6) of Section 135 of the 

said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

(F.R.N. 117366W/W-100018) 

 

 

 

Sathya P. Koushik 

(Partner) 

(Membership No. 206920) 

UDIN: 22206920APEJCQ8616 

 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 17 August 2022 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

 

  

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 6 69,430.33                        65,479.30                        

(b) Right-of-use assets 7 15,647.36                        4,362.36                         

(c) Capital work-in-progress 6 18,868.65                        19,246.08                        

(d) Intangible assets 8 681.24                            402.33                            

(e) Financial assets

(i)   (i) Investments 9 6,356.33                          6,336.26                         

 (ii) Other financial assets 10 305.20                            422.64                            

(f) Non-current tax assets (net) 11 1,381.17                          1,284.35                         

(g) Other non-current assets 12 3,553.02                          4,929.66                         

Total non-current assets 1,16,223.30                   1,02,462.98                   

Current assets

(a) Inventories 13 12,595.20                        7,332.63                         

(b) Financial assets

(i)    (i) Trade receivables 14 23,681.65                        20,269.80                        

   (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 15(i) 10,917.43                        6,043.77                         

  (iii) Bank balances other than above 15(ii) 1,435.21                          965.96                            

  (iv) Loans 16 55.31                              18.82                              

  .(v) Other financial assets 10 14,319.86                        14,781.86                        

(c) Other current assets 12 31,361.28                        29,772.94                        

Total current assets 94,365.94                      79,185.78                      

Total assets 2,10,589.24                   1,81,648.76                   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity share capital 17 1,794.32                          1,781.65                         

(b) Other equity 18 87,309.36                        84,970.25                        

Total equity 89,103.68                      86,751.90                      

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

  (i) Borrowings 19 29,717.03                        24,643.97                        

(ii) Lease liabilities 20 12,611.41                        1,953.50                         

 (iii) Other financial liabilities 21 280.07                            183.91                            

(b) Provisions 22 1,893.13                          1,909.27                         

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 23 6,227.24                          6,414.24                         

Total non-current liabilities 50,728.88                      35,104.89                      

Note
 As at 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH (contd….) 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

 
  

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i)   Borrowings(i) Borrowings 19 45,414.94                        39,025.80                        

(ii) Lease liabilities 20 2,465.42                          1,063.99                         

(ii)  Trade payables(iii) Trade payables

24 1,221.41                          840.36                            

24 18,079.90                        13,585.63                        

(iv) Other financial liabilities 21 936.53                            2,691.89                         

(b) Other current liabilities 25 1,792.91                          1,983.90                         

(c) Provisions 22 592.62                            570.30                            

(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 26                              252.95 30.10                              

Total current liabilities 70,756.68                      59,791.97                      

Total equity and liabilities 2,10,589.24                   1,81,648.76                   

See accompanying notes forming part of these standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Sai Life Sciences Limited

Firm Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018 CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

Sathya P. Koushik K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju

Partner Chairman Managing Director

Membership No.: 206920 DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A13721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad

Date: 17 August 2022 Date: 17 August 2022

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 

micro enterprises and small enterprises

Note
 As at 

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 

small enterprises
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 
 

 
  

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Income

I Revenue from operations 27                     84,102.28                      75,146.78 

II Other income 28                      2,814.67                        2,728.87 

III Total income (I + II)                   86,916.95                    77,875.65 

IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 29                     25,114.12                      23,269.09 

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 30                       (283.01)                      (1,649.83)

Employee benefits expense 31                     26,337.32                      20,363.78 

Finance costs 32                      4,748.75                        2,934.36 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 33                      7,969.80                        7,177.18 

Other expenses 34                     20,794.76                      17,022.98 

Total expenses (IV)                   84,681.74                    69,117.56 

V Profit before tax (III - IV)                     2,235.21                      8,758.09 

VI Tax expense 35

(i) Current tax                         937.02                          372.57 

(ii) Deferred tax                       (270.07)                        1,855.12 

Total tax expense (VI)                        666.95                      2,227.69 

VII Profit for the year (V - VI)                     1,568.26                      6,530.40 

VIII Other comprehensive income

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

(a) Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 158.55                                               82.72 

(ii) Income-tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (39.91)                                                 (20.82)

                       118.64                           61.90 

B. (i) Items that will  be reclassified to profit or loss:

(a) Effective portion of gain/(loss) on designated portion of 

hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge

171.48                                                502.72 

(b) Exchange differences on translating foreign operations -                                                            -   

(ii) Income-tax on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (43.16)                        (126.53)                       

                       128.32                         376.19 

Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 

(A + B)
                       246.96                         438.09 

Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII)                     1,815.22                      6,968.49 

IX Earnings per equity share (in absolute ₹ terms) 36

Basic                            8.97                            38.55 

Diluted                            8.82                            37.88 

 For the year ended 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH (contd….) 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

 
  

See accompanying notes forming part of these standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Sai Life Sciences Limited

Firm Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018 CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

Sathya P. Koushik K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju

Partner Chairman Managing Director

Membership No.: 206920 DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A13721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad

Date: 17 August 2022 Date: 17 August 2022
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 2,235.21               8,758.09             

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense 7,969.80                 7,177.18              

Interest income (704.99)                  (827.46)                

Equity -settled share-based payments 224.08                      242.00                    

(Gain)/loss on sale of PP&E, net (1,131.47)                  183.30                    

Finance costs 4,748.75                 2,934.36              

Bad debts written off (net of recoveries) 74.31                     18.48                   

Unrealised foreign exchange gain, net (188.00)                  (515.39)                

Impairment of Investment in Sai Life Drugform Private Limited 1.00                       

Provision towards doubtful trade receivables, net 537.32                   45.99                   

Provisions no longer required written back -                        (317.92)                

Operating cash flows before working capital changes 13,766.01                17,698.63              

(Increase)/decrease in loans & deposits (6.31)                        (36.98)                    

(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets 1,074.72                    (597.23)                   

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (5,262.37)                  (3,039.73)                

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (3,887.79)                  6,978.37                 

Increase in other current assets (1,588.34)                  (10,620.04)              

Increase in other financial assets 522.42                      (13,025.46)              

Increase in trade payables 5,202.35                    761.32                    

Increase in other financial liabilities & provisions 19.27                     23.41                   

Increase in other non-current and current liabilities (190.99)                  934.32                 

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A) 9,648.97                  (923.39)                 

Income-taxes paid, net (810.99)                  (1,670.12)             

Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 8,837.98                  (2,593.51)              

Cash flows from investing activities

(19,782.91)              (24,106.27)           

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9,874.64                 128.66                 

Investments in subsidiaries (21.07)                    (4,098.18)             

Movement in other bank balances, net (469.25)                  (212.75)                

Redemption of Fixed deposits, net 50.00                     -                      

Interest income received 885.13                   343.03                 

Net cash used in investing activities (B) (9,463.46)                 (27,945.51)            

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 312.48                      99.57                      

Proceeds from current borrowings, net 7,394.07                    16,177.99                

Proceeds from non-current borrowings 10,014.79                  22,118.00                

Repayment of non-current borrowings (3,185.74)                  (2,584.38)                

Lease payments (2,149.76)                  (2,314.74)                

Interest paid # (4,290.49)               (3,138.53)             

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C) 8,095.35                  30,357.91              

7,469.87                  (181.11)                 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  3,431.03                    3,612.14                 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 1 below) 10,900.90                3,431.03                

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (including 

capital work in progress, capital advances and capital creditors)

For the year ended

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year  (A + B + C)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH (contd….) 

    (All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

 As at 

31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

Note 1:

Cash and cash equivalents includes

Cash on hand 0.98                      2.01                           

Balances with banks 

-in current accounts 5,250.41                6,041.76                     

-in cash credit accounts (16.53)                   (2,612.74)                    

-others 5,666.04                -                             

10,900.90            3,431.03                    

Note 2:

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

 Net Proceeds/ 

(Repayments) 

 As at 

31 March 2022 

Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 27,873.53             6,829.05                23.29                    34,725.87                    

Current borrowings (excluding cash credit) 33,183.50             7,394.07                (188.00)                 40,389.57                    

Total 61,057.03           14,223.12            (164.71)                75,115.44                  

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2020 

 Proceeds/ 

(Repayments) 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 8,211.71               19,533.62              128.20                   27,873.53                    

Current borrowings (excluding cash credit) 17,224.56             16,177.99              (219.05)                 33,183.50                    

Total 25,436.27           35,711.61            (90.85)                  61,057.03                  

See accompanying notes forming part of these standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Sai Life Sciences Limited

Firm Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018 CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

Sathya P. Koushik K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju

Partner Chairman Managing Director

Membership No.: 206920 DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A13721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad

Date: 17 August 2022 Date: 17 August 2022

 Foreign exchange 

loss/(gain) 

 Foreign exchange 

loss/(gain) 

# Interest paid in cash flow from financing activities includes borrowing cost capitalised as property, plant and equipment and CWIP during 

the year amounting to ₹ 502.66 (31 March 2021: ₹ 226.20 )

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in balance sheet for financial liabilities arising from financing activities are given 

below:
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 
A Share Capital 

 Total 

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Amount

As at 31 March 2020            1,63,82,929                  1,638.29                             -                                -                    1,638.29 

Changes in share capital during the year                  10,46,650                      104.67                  4,80,000                          38.69                         143.36 

As at 31 March 2021            1,74,29,579                  1,742.96                4,80,000                         38.69                    1,781.65 

Changes in share capital during the year                   1,26,727                        12.67                             -                                -                          12.67 

As at 31 March 2022            1,75,56,306                  1,755.63                4,80,000                         38.69                    1,794.32 

B Other Equity 

Capital reserve Securities 

premium

Employee stock 

options outstanding 

account

Retained earnings Effective portion 

of cash flow 

hedges

Balance as at 31 March 2020                      140.42 112.23                                 38,159.20                       505.90 39,422.95                 (537.15)                 77,803.55       

Amount transferred on exercise/forfeiture of employee stock options -                             -                           (41.81)                       41.81                         -                            -                      

Profit for the year                              - -                                                         - -                               6,530.40                     -                            6,530.40           

Other comprehensive income                              -                               -                             -                                - 82.72                                             502.72 585.44              

Income-tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                              -                               -                             -                                - (20.82)                                                    - (20.82)              

Income-tax on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                              -                               -                             -                                - -                                                  (126.53) (126.53)            

Total comprehensive income                              -                               -                             -                                - 6,592.30                                      376.19 6,968.49         

Shares allotted during the year                    (140.42)                               -                      96.63                                - -                                                            - (43.79)              

Share-based payment expense                              - -                                                         - 242.00                      -                                -                            242.00              

Balance as at 31 March 2021 -                             112.23                    38,255.83             706.09                     46,057.06                 (160.96)                 84,970.25       

Amount transferred on exercise/forfeiture of employee stock options                              - -                           (58)                           58.00                         -                            -                      

Profit for the year                              - -                             -                           -                               1,568.26                     -                            1,568.26           

Other comprehensive income                              - -                             -                                                          - 158.55                       171.48                   330.03              

Income-tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                              - -                             -                                                          - (39.91)                        -                            (39.91)              

Income-tax on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                              - -                             -                                                          - -                            (43.16)                    (43.16)              

Total comprehensive income                              - -                             -                           -                               1,686.90                   128.32                  1,815.22         

Shares allotted during the year                              - -                             299.81                   -                               -                                -                            299.81              

Share-based payment expense                            -   -                                                         - 224.08                      -                                -                            224.08              

Balance as at 31 March 2022 -                             112.23                    38,555.64             872.17                     47,801.96                 (32.64)                   87,309.36       

See accompanying notes forming part of these standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Sai Life Sciences Limited

Firm Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018 CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

Sathya P. Koushik K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju

Partner Chairman Managing Director

Membership No.: 206920 DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: A13721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad

Date: 17 August 2022 Date: 17 August 2022

Total

Equity  Preference 

Reserves and Surplus Other 

comprehensive 

income Shares pending 

allotment
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 

2022 
 

1. Corporate information 

Sai Life Sciences Limited (“the Company”) is a closely held public limited company domiciled and incorporated 

in India. The registered office of the Company is situated in Hyderabad, Telangana, and has facilities in the states 

of Telangana, Karnataka and Maharashtra, India. 

 

The Company carries out contract research and manufacturing activities for customers engaged in pharmaceutical 

and biotechnology industries.  

 

2.  Basis of preparation 

Statement of compliance 

The standalone financial statements of the Company which comprise of the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 

and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in 

equity (“standalone financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 

(“Ind AS”) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) and other 

relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a 

newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a 

change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.  

These standalone financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of 

relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s annual reporting date 31 March 2022. These standalone financial 

statements were authorised for issuance by the Company’s Board of Directors on 17th August 2022. 

 

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis 

except for the following material items in the balance sheet: 

 

• Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value; 

• Net defined benefit assets / (liability) are measured at fair value of plan assets, less present value of defined 

benefit obligations; and  

• Share based payments, which are measured at fair value of the options. 

 

Functional and presentation currency 

 

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘INR’ or ‘₹’) which is also the functional and 

presentation currency of the Company. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to 

the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated. 
 

3. Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts 

of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the standalone Ind AS 

financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could 

change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates 

are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in 

estimates are reflected in the standalone Ind AS financial statements in the period in which such changes are made 

and in any future periods affected.  

 

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 
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The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the directors have made in 

the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 

recognised in the financial statements.  

 

Revenue recognition 

 

The Company applies judgement to determine whether each product or service promised to a customer are capable 

of being distinct, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the promised product or services are combined 

and accounted as a single performance obligation. Revenue will be recognised as the customer obtains control of 

the product and services promised in the Contract. Given the nature of the product and terms and conditions in case 

of certain contracts, the customer obtains control as the Company performs the work under the contract. Therefore, 

revenue is recognised over time for such contracts and for other contracts at a point in time. The Company uses the 

percentage of completion method to measure progress towards completion in respect of fixed price contracts. When 

estimates indicate that a loss will be incurred, the loss is provided for in the period in which the loss becomes 

probable. 

 

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies 

that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements is included in 

the following notes: 

 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, 

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 

the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters 

available when the standalone Ind AS financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 

about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond 

the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

 

Items requiring 

significant estimate 

Assumption and estimation uncertainty 

Useful lives of 

property, plant and 

equipment and 

Intangible assets 

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

and the intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. During the current 

year, there has been no change in life considered for the assets. 

Estimation of net 

realisable value of 

inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In estimating 

the net realisable value of inventories the Company makes an estimate of future 

selling prices and costs necessary to make the sale. 

Fair valuation 

measurement and 

valuation process 

Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for 

financial reporting purposes. 

 

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-

observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, 

the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. 

Finance team works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the 

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. 

 

Contract assets Contract asset is recognised when the performance obligations are fulfilled and 

revenue is recognised over a period of time. Estimates are involved in determining 

the percentage of completion of the contract. 
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Items requiring 

significant estimate 

Assumption and estimation uncertainty 

Leases Contracts are reviewed to evaluate whether the arrangement contains a lease 

Employee benefits  The Company uses actuarial assumptions to determine the obligations for 

employee benefits at each reporting period. These assumptions include the 

discount rate, expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, rate of increase in 

compensation levels and mortality rates. 

Provisions, 

contingencies - 

Recognition and 

measurement of 

provisions and 

contingencies; key 

assumptions about the 

likelihood and 

magnitude of an 

outflow of resources 

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third 

parties. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable 

estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s 

assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, 

management provides for its best estimate of the tax liability. Such accruals are 

by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve 

estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is disclosed in the notes 

to the standalone financial statements.  

Provision for taxes Significant judgments are required in determining the provision for income taxes, 

including the amount expected to be paid/ recovered for uncertain tax positions.  

 

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, the Management 

considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not 

be realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred income tax assets is dependent 

upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the 

temporary differences become deductible. The amount of deferred income tax 

assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the near term if 

estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced. 

4. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The standalone financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies and measurement basis 

summarized below. 

 

a. Current and non-current classification 

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal 

operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. The Company presents assets and 

liabilities in the standalone balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.  

 

An asset is classified as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period 

 

A liability is classified as current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 
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Current assets / liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets / liabilities respectively. All other 

assets / liabilities including deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

 

b. Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange rates 

at the dates of the transactions or at the rate that closely approximates the rate at the date of transactions. The 

date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, 

expense or income (part of it) is the date on which the entity initially recognises the nonmonetary asset or non-

monetary liability arising from payment or receipt of advance consideration Monetary assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting period are translated into the functional currency at the 

exchange rate at that date. Gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency 

denominated monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary 

assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not translated. 

 

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates 

different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the standalone statement of profit 

and loss in the year in which they arise, except in case of exchange differences relating to long-term foreign 

currency monetary items, to the extent they are used for financing the acquisition of property, plant and 

equipment (“PPE”) and drawn on or before 1 April 2016, are added to or subtracted from the cost of such PPE. 

In accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards the entity continues the 

above accounting treatment in respect of the long-term foreign currency monetary items recognised in the 

financial statements as on 31 March 2016. 

 

c. Revenue recognition 

 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

 

Contract research and manufacturing activities: 

 

With respect to contracts involving research services, in case of ‘time and materials’ contracts, contract research 

fee is recognised to the extent of services rendered in accordance with the terms of the contracts. Revenues 

relating to fixed price contracts are recognised based on the percentage completion method determined based 

on efforts expended as a proportion to total estimated efforts unless there is uncertainty as to performance, 

measurement or ultimate collectability in which case, revenue recognition is postponed until completion of the 

contract terms. The Company monitors the estimates of total contract revenue and cost on a regular basis. The 

cumulative impact of any change in estimates of the contract revenue or costs is reflected in the period in which 

the changes become known. In the event that a loss is anticipated on a particular contract, provision is made for 

the estimated loss. 

 

In respect of contracts involving sale of goods arising out of contract research and manufacturing, revenue is 

recognised when the control is passed to the buyer. 

 

For performance obligations transferred over time, revenues are recognised by measuring progress towards 

completion of performance obligation. The selection of method to measure progress towards completion require 

judgment and is based on the nature of promised goods or services to be provided. 

 

The Company has recognised revenue with respect to cost incurred for certain contracts where revenue is 

recognised over time and has enforceable right to receive the consideration to the extent of the work performed.   
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‘Bill and hold’ sales, in which delivery is delayed at the buyer’s request but the buyer takes title and accepts 

billing, revenue is recognised when the buyer takes title, provided: 

(a) it is probable that delivery will be made; 

(b) the item is on hand, identified and ready for delivery to the buyer at the time the sale is recognised; 

(c) the buyer specifically acknowledges the deferred delivery instructions; and 

(d) the usual payment terms apply. 

Revenue is not recognized when there is simply an intention to acquire or manufacture the goods in time for 

delivery. 

 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate 

applicable. For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective 

interest rate (EIR) method. 

 

Dividend income 

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is 

generally, when shareholders approve the dividend. 

Export incentives 

Export incentives are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is 

established in respect of the exports made and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate 

collection of the relevant export proceeds. 

 

d. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met 

and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, and estimated 

costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

 

Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items initially recognized in the period 

ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period as per the previous 

GAAP are capitalised. 

 

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate 

items (major components) of PPE.  

 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of PPE is recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss. 

 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 

expenditure will flow to the Company. 

 

Depreciation  

Depreciation on items of PPE is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful lives as 

estimated by the management which coincides with the useful lives mentioned in Schedule II to the Companies 

Act, 2013. Freehold land are not depreciated. 

 

The estimated useful lives of the assets are based on a technical evaluation reflecting actual usage of assets. 

 

Asset Category Estimated useful life (in years) 

Buildings  30  
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Leasehold improvements Over the lease period  

Plant and equipment 15-20  

Furniture 10 

Freehold Vehicles 8-10 

Freehold Computers 3 

 

Items of PPE acquired wholly or partly with specific grant / subsidy from government (or) customers, are 

recorded at the acquisition cost to the Company and the amount received under the grant pending donor approval 

or conditions to be fulfilled is disclosed as a liability. 

 

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / up to the date on which asset is 

ready for use / disposed-off. 

 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year-end and 

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

 

e. Intangible assets 

Internally generated 

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

 

Development expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure 

can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic 

benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to 

use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 

accumulated impairment losses.  

 

Others 

Other intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, such intangible assets are measured at cost 

less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is 

capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. 

All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in 

standalone statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

 

The intangible assets are amortized over a period of 6 years, on a straight line basis. 

 

 

f. Impairment  

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to 

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s 

recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. 

 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 

less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been 

adjusted. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 

that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets 

or groups of assets. 
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An impairment loss is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss if the estimated recoverable 

amount of an asset or its cash generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. If, at the reporting date there is 

an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed 

and reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 

have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been previously 

recognised. 

 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and 

recognition of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost. 

 

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal 

to lifetime expected credit losses. For all other financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 

12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case 

those are measured at lifetime ECL. 

 

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the 

assets. 

 

 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

 

The Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not 

be recoverable. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment 

loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount in the standalone 

statement of profit and loss. The Company’s non-financial assets, inventories and deferred tax assets, are 

reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 

indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  

 

g. Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The method of determining cost of various 

categories of inventories is as follows: 

(i) Raw materials – Weighted average cost. Cost includes purchase cost and other attributable expenses 

(ii) Stores and spares and packing material – Weighted average cost 

(iii) Finished goods and work-in-process - is based on average cost of production or conversion which 

comprises direct material costs, direct wages and applicable overheads.  

 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 

completion and selling expenses. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to 

the selling prices of related finished products. 

 

Chemicals, reagents and consumables held for use in the production of finished products / rendering of services 

are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the 

cost of the finished products / services will exceed their net realisable value. 

 

h. Measurement of fair values 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 

are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use 

of unobservable inputs. 
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A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for 

both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair 

value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows. 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as 

possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 

value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value 

hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period 

during which the change has occurred.  

 

i. Financial instruments 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial 

liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. 

 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value and, for an item not at fair value through 

profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 

• amortised cost; 

• fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) – debt investment; 

• FVOCI – equity investment; or 

• FVTPL 

 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the 

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

 

Amortised cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated 

as at FVTPL: 

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; 

and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in Other 
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Income in the standalone statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in 

the standalone statement of profit and loss. 

 

 

FVOCI – debt investment 

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as 

at FVTPL: 

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 

flows and selling financial assets; and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 

at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the 

Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 

standalone statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to standalone statement of profit and loss. Interest earned 

whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

 

FVTOCI - Equity investment 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect 

to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVTOCI – equity 

investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 

 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 

instrument, including foreign exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There 

is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company 

may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category 

are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss. 

 

FVTPL 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. 

This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a 

financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at 

FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

 

Financial liabilities  

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as 

at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial 

recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any 

interest expense, are recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign 

exchange gains and losses are recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on 

derecognition is also recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss. 

 

De-recognition  

Financial assets 

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired 

or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; or the company has neither 

transferred nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the 

asset. 
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Financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 

or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows 

under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified 

terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 

extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 

Derivative financial instruments: 

 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 

subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent 

changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the 

nature of the item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated.  

 

The Company designates their derivatives as hedges of foreign exchange risk associated with the cash flows 

of highly probable forecast transactions and variable interest rate risk associated with borrowings (cash flow 

hedges).  

 

The Company documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the economic relationship between 

hedging instruments and hedged items including whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes 

in cash flows of hedged items. The group documents its risk management objective and strategy for 

undertaking various hedge transactions at the inception of each hedge relationship. 

 

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining 

maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when the 

remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are also classified as a 

current asset or liability when expected to be realised/settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date. 

 

 

(i) Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting 

 

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow 

hedges is recognised in the other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve within equity, limited 

to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item on a present value basis from the inception of the 

hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within 

other gains/(losses). 

 

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the group designates only the intrinsic value of 

the option contract as the hedging instrument.  

 

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change in intrinsic value of the option contracts are 

recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of the option contracts 

that relate to the hedged item ('aligned time value') are recognised within other comprehensive income in the 

costs of hedging reserve within equity. 
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When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the group generally designates only the change 

in fair value of the forward contract related to the spot component as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses 

relating to the effective portion of the change in the spot component of the forward contracts are recognised in 

other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The change in the forward element 

of the contract that relates to the hedged item ('aligned forward element') is recognised within other 

comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity. In some cases, the entity may designate 

the full change in fair value of the forward contract (including forward points) as the hedging instrument. In 

such cases, the gains and losses relating to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the entire forward 

contract are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity. 

 

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects 

profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). 

 

When the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example 

inventory), the amounts accumulated in equity are transferred to profit or loss as follows: 

 

• With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the intrinsic value of option contracts, 

both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the deferred aligned time value of the option contracts 

are included within the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in 

profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, through cost of sales). 

 

• With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the spot component of forward contracts, 

both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the deferred aligned forward points are included within 

the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in profit or loss as the 

hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, through cost of sales). 

 

• The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the interest rate swaps hedging variable rate 

borrowings is recognised in profit or loss within 'finance cost'. 

 

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for 

hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at that time 

remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to 

occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in equity are immediately 

reclassified to profit or loss within other gains/(losses). Hedge ineffectiveness is recognised in profit and loss 

within other gains/(losses).  

 

If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective 

remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will be 

rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the hedging instrument or the volume of the hedged item so that 

the hedge ratio aligns with the ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is 

calculated and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing. 

 

(ii) Derivatives that are not designated as hedges 

 

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such 

contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses). 

 

Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company 

The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company when the 

distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate 
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laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is 

recognised directly in equity. 

 

j. Leases 

 

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 

Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys 

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 

determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement 

at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is 

dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, 

even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.  

 

Company as a lessee  

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, 

a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange 

for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the 

Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has 

substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the 

Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the 

lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The determination of whether an 

arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. 

The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 

asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly 

specified in an arrangement. At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-

use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except 

for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term 

and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line 

basis over the term of the lease. 

 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 

adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 

costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis 

over the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. The lease liability is initially measured at amortised 

cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate 

implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of 

domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right 

of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination 

option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 

have been classified as financing cash flows.  

 

Company as a lessor  

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset 

are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over 

the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are 

added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental 

income. Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 

transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as 

receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting 
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periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the 

lease. 

 

k. Business combination 

 

The Company accounts for its business combinations under acquisition method of accounting, where 

applicable. Acquisition related costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The 

acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for recognition are 

recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

 

Purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Where 

the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the cost of acquisition, after reassessing the fair values 

of the net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognised as capital reserve. 

 

Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred. 

 

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under common control are 

accounted at historical cost. The difference between any consideration given and the aggregate historical 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity is recorded in shareholders’ equity. 

 

l. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the standalone balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 

in value. 

m. Government Grants 

The Company recognises government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions 

attached to them will be complied with, and the grants will be received. Government grants received in relation 

to assets are recognised as deferred income and amortized over the useful life of such asset. Grants related to 

Income are recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss as other operating revenues. 

n. Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries 

The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries at cost in the separate 

financial statements in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’. 

 

o. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency 

borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with 

the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which 

necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost 

of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.  

 

p. Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions 

into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. 

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. 

Both the eligible employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Government administered 

provident fund scheme equal to a specified percentage of the eligible employee’s salary. Amounts collected 
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under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a government administered provident fund. The Company 

has no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions. 

 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed during the 

period as the related service is provided. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. A 

liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive 

obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation 

can be estimated reliably. 

 

Long-term employee benefits 

Employee benefits payable after twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as long-term 

employee benefits. These benefits primarily include one-off retention incentive and long-term bonus provision, 

in accordance with the policy of the company. The company accrues these costs based on the expected pay out 

and the same is amortised over a period of services. 

 

Gratuity 

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (“the Gratuity Plan”) covering the eligible employees 

of the Company. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, 

incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary 

and the tenure of the employment with the Company. Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan is determined 

by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit 

credit method. The defined benefit plan is administered by a trust formed for this purpose through the Company 

gratuity scheme. The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability in its 

standalone balance sheet. Gains or losses through re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability are 

recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods. 

The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate 

used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of any 

plan amendments are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss. The net interest on net defined 

benefit liability which reflects the change in net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time is 

considered as finance cost and disclosed under “Finance costs” 

 

Compensated absences 

The Company’s policy permits employees to accumulate and carry forward a portion of unutilized compensated 

absences and utilize them in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof in accordance with the terms of such 

policy. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation 

performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet. 

 

Share based compensation 

 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using 

an appropriate valuation model. The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted 

to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period 

that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based 

on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are 

expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards 

that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. 

 

q. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable 

estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each 



                  
                                                                

69 

reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, 

where the time value of money is material.  

 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the 

Company; or 

 

• Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

 

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually 

certain, related asset is recognized. 

 

r. Income taxes 

Tax expense recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss consists of current and deferred tax except 

to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in OCI 

or directly in equity respectively. 

 

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted for the reporting period and 

any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where 

the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 

the standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they 

reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax liability are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 

generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that is probable that taxable profits 

will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and 

liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against 

current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 

same tax authority on the Company. 

 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 

that the related tax benefit will be realised. Withholding tax arising out of payment of dividends to shareholders 

under the Indian Income tax regulations is not considered as tax expense for the Company and all such taxes 

are recognised in the statement of changes in equity as part of the associated dividend payment. 

 

s. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is 

determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number 

of equity shares outstanding during the year for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

 
  

6. Property, plant and equipment

 Freehold land  Buildings  Leasehold 

improvements 

 Plant and 

equipment 

 Furnitures 

and fixtures* 

  Vehicles  Computers  Total 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance as at 1 April 2020 523.87               15,864.86       597.78               47,027.86              1,360.66          553.54            1,419.80           67,348.37           

Additions(refer note i below) -                    1,993.33        291.22               10,391.88              143.78            -                 844.20             13,664.41           

Disposals/retirement -                    -                -                    505.38                  9.17                -                 -                  514.55                

Balance as at 31 March 2021 523.87              17,858.19     889.00             56,914.36            1,495.27        553.54           2,264.00         80,498.23           

Additions (refer note i & ii below) -                    3,480.43        806.53               13,547.37              60.13              -                 355.24             18,249.70           

Disposals/retirement 14.67                 -                8.05                  10,967.96              410.85            39.07              554.97             11,995.57           

Balance as at 31 March 2022 509.20              21,338.62     1,687.48          59,493.77            1,144.55        514.47           2,064.27         86,752.36           

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2020 -                    1,166.26        456.09               7,378.57                312.53            526.15            633.69             10,473.29           

Charge for the year -                    567.87           83.50                3,507.71                138.41            21.76              426.24             4,745.49             

Disposals/retirement -                    -                -                    194.18                  5.66                -                 -                  199.84                

Balance as at 31 March 2021 -                    1,734.13       539.59             10,692.10            445.28           547.91           1,059.93         15,018.94           

Charge for the year -                    663.30           93.55                4,349.92                147.17            0.18                535.18             5,789.30             

Disposals/retirement -                    -                0.26                  3,043.84                173.79            39.07              229.25             3,486.21             

Balance as at 31 March 2022 -                    2,397.43       632.88             11,998.18            418.66           509.02           1,365.86         17,322.03           

Net carrying amount

As at 31 March 2021 523.87              16,124.06     349.41             46,222.26            1,049.99        5.63               1,204.07         65,479.29           

As at 31 March 2022 509.20              18,941.19     1,054.60          47,495.59            725.89           5.45               698.41            69,430.33           

*Includes office equipment

Notes

Capital work-in-progress  :₹ 18,868.65 (31 March 2021: ₹ 19,246.08) (refer note i)

i) Additions to capital work-in-progress and property, plant & equipment during the year ended 31 March 2022 includes borrowing cost amounting to ₹502.66  (31 March 2021: ₹226.20).
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

 
 

 

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

Projects in progress            12,593.25          4,976.31                920.89                    378.20          18,868.65 

Projects temporarily suspended                       -                     -                         -                            -                      -   

Total          12,593.25        4,976.31               920.89                  378.20        18,868.65 

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

Projects in progress            13,217.20          5,449.10                579.78                          -            19,246.08 

Projects temporarily suspended                       -                     -                         -                            -                      -   

Total          13,217.20        5,449.10               579.78                          -          19,246.08 

iii) Refer note 19 for details of property, plant and equipment subject to charge on secured borrowings.

ii) Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule:

Particulars

Particulars

Note: There is no CWIP whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Amount in CWIP for a period of
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7. Right-of-use assets 

Leasehold 

land
Buildings Vehicles

Plant and 

equipment
Computers Total

Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2020     1,392.59     5,583.68      2,647.57                 -               371.09      9,994.93 

Additions during the year                -         2,259.36          908.44                 -                537.82       3,705.62 

Disposals/retirement                -         1,103.53       1,156.15                 -                       -         2,259.68 

Balance as at 31 March 2021     1,392.59     6,739.51      2,399.86                 -               908.91    11,440.87 

Additions during the year           88.66       5,297.34          700.83        7,952.62              682.71      14,722.16 

Disposals/retirement/adjustments       1,727.35          248.61                 -                  46.16       2,022.12 

Balance as at 31 March 2022     1,481.25   10,309.50      2,852.08      7,952.62          1,545.46    24,140.91 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2020          72.80     3,800.01      1,564.70                 -               320.91      5,758.42 

Charge for the year           31.27       1,203.32          976.40                 -                  37.77       2,248.76 

Disposals/retirement                -            294.41          634.26                 -                       -            928.67 

Balance as at 31 March 2021        104.07     4,708.92      1,906.84                 -               358.68      7,078.51 

Charge for the year           36.06          813.00          791.76                 -                247.00       1,887.82 

Disposals/retirement/adjustments          258.39          214.39                 -            472.78 

Balance as at 31 March 2022        140.13     5,263.53      2,484.21                 -               605.68      8,493.55 

Net carrying amount

As at 31 March 2021     1,288.52     2,030.59         493.02                 -               550.23      4,362.36 

As at 31 March 2022     1,341.12     5,045.97         367.87      7,952.62             939.78    15,647.36 

8. Other intangible assets

 Acquired software  Total 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance as at 1 April 2020 1,014.76                        1,014.76                

Additions during the year 23.65                              23.65                      

Disposals/retirement -                                 -                         

Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,038.41                        1,038.41                

Additions during the year 571.59                            571.59                    

Disposals/retirement -                                 -                         

Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,610.00                        1,610.00                

Accumulated amortization

Balance as at 1 April 2020 453.15                           453.15                   

Charge for the year 182.93                            182.93                    

Disposals/retirement -                                 -                         

Balance as at 31 March 2021 636.08                           636.08                   

Charge for the year 292.68                            292.68                    

Disposals/retirement -                                 -                         

Balance as at 31 March 2022 928.76                           928.76                   

Net carrying amount

As at 31 March 2021 402.33                           402.33                   

As at 31 March 2022 681.24                           681.24                   
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9. Investments

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Non-current

Investment in equity instruments 

Unquoted

Investments in subsidiary (at cost)

                  2.25                   2.25 

24,284 (31 March 2021: 14,563) capital stock of USD 103 each fully paid-up             1,846.67             1,846.67 

1,10,565 (31 March 2021: 1,10,565) capital stock of USD 40.70 each fully paid-up             3,333.75             3,333.75 

            1,151.00             1,151.00 

                     -                     1.00 

                21.07                      -   

Total investments in subsidiaries (A)           6,354.74           6,334.67 

Others( at fair value through OCI)

                  0.50                   0.50 

                  1.09                   1.09 

Total investment in others (at fair value through OCI) (B)                  1.59                  1.59 

Total non-current investments (A) + (B)           6,356.33           6,336.26 

Aggregate value of unquoted investments             6,356.33             6,336.26 

10. Other financial assets

Non-current

Fixed Deposits with maturity more than 12 months* -                   50.00                

Security deposits 305.20              372.64              

305.20             422.64             

*Represents deposits held as margin money with banks.

Current

Unbilled revenue* 3,627.17            1,336.49           

Derivative financial asset - FVTOCI 248.36              45.06                

Fixed Deposits 10,000.00          12,500.00          

Interest accrued but not due on bank deposits 284.45              494.77              

Security deposits 159.88              405.54              

14,319.86        14,781.86        

*Classified as financial asset as right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time

Sai Life Sciences Inc, USA

5,000 (31 March 2021: 5,000) capital stock of USD 1 each fully paid-up

Jeedimetla Effluent Treatment Limited

500 (31 March 2021: 500) equity shares of ₹100 each fully paid-up

Patancheru Envirotech Limited                                     

10,878 (31 March 2021: 10,878) equity shares of ₹10 each fully paid-up

* Sai Life Drugform Pvt Ltd., applied for strike off effective dt.25-03-2022, as such due to no 

operations during the year, the Company has impaired the investment, as of 31st Mar 2022

Sai Life Pharma Private Limited

1,15,10,000 (31 March 2021: 1,15,10,000) equity of ₹ 10 each fully paid-up

Sai Life Drugform Private Limited*

10,000 (31 March 2021: 10,000) equity of ₹ 10 each fully paid-up

Sai Life Sciences GMBH

25,000 (31 March 2021: Nil) equity shares of Euro 1 each fully paid-up
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 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

11. Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 1,381.17            1,284.35           

1,381.17          1,284.35          

Refer Note 35 for details of income tax expense

12. Other assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Non-current

Capital advances 698.47              1,000.39           

Prepaid expenses 241.47              244.78              

Balances with statutory authorities 2,214.41            3,285.82           

Tax demand paid under protest 398.67              398.67              

3,553.02          4,929.66          

Current

Advance to suppliers 2,470.78            1,546.87           

Prepaid expenses 1,500.92            719.46              

Contract assets* 21,015.63          20,293.06          

Balances with statutory authorities 6,325.26            6,558.42           

Export incentives receivable 48.69                652.39              

Other Receivables -                   2.74                 

31,361.28        29,772.94        

*Changes in contract assets are as follows  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Balance at the beginning of the year 20,293.06          9,330.55           

Invoices raised that were included in the contract assets balance at the beginning of the year (15,198.01)         (7,520.96)          

Increase due to revenue recognised during the year, excluding amounts billed during the year 15,920.58          18,483.47          

Balance at the end of the year 21,015.63        20,293.06        

13. Inventories  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

7,536.02            2,997.58           

3,928.93            3,645.92           

1,130.25            689.13              

12,595.20        7,332.63          

Refer note 4(g) for basis of valuation and for details of inventories pledged, refer note 19

14. Trade receivables

(a) Considered good 23,681.65          20,269.80          

(b) Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 1,205.98            668.66              

24,887.63        20,938.46        

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables 1,205.98            668.66              

23,681.65        20,269.80        

Refer Note 38B for the Company’s credit risk management process.

Raw materials and packing materials

Work-in-progress 

Stores and spares 
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Trade receivables Aging:

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Not Due
Less than 

6 months

6 months - 1 

year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 17,562.24   5,239.68              538.42       341.31               -                   -        23,681.65 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk -            -                            -         274.00         249.56           682.42       1,205.98 

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired -            -                            -                -                 -                   -                  -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– considered good -            -                            -                -                 -                   -                  -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk -            -                            -                -                 -                   -                  -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -            -                            -                -                 -                   -                  -   

Total  17,562.24    5,239.68          538.42      615.31               -            682.42    24,887.63 

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Not Due
Less than 

6 months

6 months - 1 

year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 15,798.39   2,998.88    822.57         504.33      28.10         117.53              20,269.80 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk -            -            -              -           -            668.66                  668.66 

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired -            -            -              -           -            -                             -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– considered good -            -            -              -           -            -                             -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk -            -            -              -           -            -                             -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -            -            -              -           -            -                             -   

Total  15,798.39    2,998.88          822.57      504.33         28.10          786.19    20,938.46 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Particulars

15. Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.98                   2.01                 

Balances with banks 

-in current accounts 5,250.41             6,041.76           

Others 5,666.04             -                  

10,917.43         6,043.77         

(ii) Bank balances other than above

1,435.21             965.96             

1,435.21           965.96            

(iii) For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of following:

Cash and cash equivalents (as per (i) above) 10,917.43           6,043.77           

Cash credit facilities (refer note 19) (16.53)                (2,612.74)          

10,900.90         3,431.03         

16. Loans

(Unsecured, considered good)

Current

Loans to employees 55.31                 18.82               

55.31                18.82              

Margin money/Deposit
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17. Equity share capital

i. Authorised share capital

Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares of ₹10 each 2,03,00,000       2,030.00        2,03,00,000        2,030.00         

Optionally convertible preference shares of ₹10 each 6,00,000           60.00            6,00,000            60.00             

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of ₹10 each 5,00,000           50.00            5,00,000            50.00             

2,14,00,000    2,140.00      2,14,00,000     2,140.00       

ii. Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares of ₹10 each 1,75,56,306       1,755.63        1,74,29,579        1,742.96         

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of ₹ 10 each 4,80,000           38.69            4,80,000            38.69             

1,80,36,306    1,794.32      1,79,09,579     1,781.65       

iii. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,74,29,579       1,742.96        1,63,82,929        1,638.29         

Add: Shares issued during the year 1,26,727           12.67            10,46,650           104.67            

Balance at the end of the year 1,75,56,306    1,755.63      1,74,29,579     1,742.96       

Number Amount Number Amount

Preference shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,80,000           38.69            -                    -                 

Add: Shares issued during the year-CCPS -                   -               4,80,000            38.69             

Balance at the end of the year 4,80,000         38.69           4,80,000          38.69            

1,80,36,306    1,794.32      1,79,09,579     1,781.65       

iv. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

v. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares

 The Company has two classes of preference shares viz, CCPS and OCPS. The preference shares are entitled to receive dividend @ 

0.01% as declared from time to time on a non-cumulative basis. The said shares are partly paid to the tune of INR 8.06 per share and the 

same will be treated as fully paid-up upon receiving the payment on final call made for INR 1.94 per share. 

As at 

31 March 2022

As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2022

As at 

31 March 2021

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the

Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity

shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights

cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount

called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to

receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity

shares held.
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vi. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

Name of the equity shareholders Number % holding Number % holding

TPG ASIA VII SF PTE LTD 76,20,180       43.40% 76,20,180        43.72%

Kanumuri Mytreyi (a Partner of Marigold Partners) 17,82,378       10.15% 17,82,378        10.23%

Ranga Raju Kanumuri (a Partner of Sunflower Partners) 11,40,729       6.50% 11,40,729        6.54%

Sai Quest Syn Private Limited 10,68,748       6.09% 10,68,748        6.13%

HBM Private Equity India 10,55,732       6.01% 10,55,732        6.06%

G. Subba Raju 9,38,730         5.35% 9,38,730          5.39%

vii. Details of shares held by the promoters of the Company:

Name of the promoters Number % holding Number % holding  % 

Change in 

Ranga Raju Kanumuri (a Partner of Sunflower Partners) 11,40,729       6.50% 11,40,729        6.54% 0.04%

Ranga Raju Kanumuri (a Partner of  Lily Partners) 5,10,499         2.91% 5,10,499          2.93% 0.02%

Kanumuri Mytreyi (a Partner of Marigold Partners) 17,82,378       10.15% 17,82,378        10.23% 0.08%

Kanumuri Mytreyi (a Partner of Tulip Partners) 7,42,262         4.23% 7,42,262          4.26% 0.03%

K Krishnam Raju 2,95,000         1.68% 2,95,000          1.69% 0.01%

Sai Quest Syn  Pvt Ltd. 10,68,748       6.09% 10,68,748        6.13% 0.04%

G.L.Tanuja 1,30,121         0.74% 1,30,121          0.75% 0.01%

G. Subba Raju 9,38,730         5.35% 9,38,730          5.39% 0.04%

K Sudha 50,000           0.28% 50,000             0.29% 0.01%

Continental Wines Pvt Ltd 1,967             0.01% 1,967              0.01% 0.00%

viii. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% preferance shares CCPS in the Company

Name of the Preferance shareholders Number % holding Number % holding

Kanumuri Mytreyi (a Partner of Marigold Partners) 1,68,134         35.03% 1,68,134          35.03%

Ranga Raju Kanumuri (a Partner of Sunflower Partners) 1,67,866         34.97% 1,67,866          34.97%

Kanumuri Mytreyi (a Partner of  Tulip Partners) 72,058           15.01% 72,058             15.01%

Ranga Raju Kanumuri (a Partner of  Lily Partners) 71,942           14.99% 71,942             14.99%

viii(a).

ix. Shares reserved for issue under options

(a) Employee stock option plan - 2004 ("ESOP 2004")

The Company established a plan ESOP 2004 under which 300,000 equity shares of ₹10 each were earmarked and approved by

the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 13 September 2004. These options shall vest at the end of three

years from the grant date. The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the

Company.

Employee stock option plan - 2006 ("ESOP 2006")

The Company established a plan ESOP 2006 under which 350,000 equity shares of ₹10 each were earmarked and approved by

the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 16 August 2006. 60% of the options granted shall vest at the end of

three years from the grant date and 40% of the options granted shall vest at the end of five years from the grant date. The

vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

The rate of dividend is 0.001% p.a. on a non-cumulative basis for Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) and 

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS) of Rs. 10/each. Subsequent to year ended March 31, 2022, the Board of 

Directors of the Company approved dividend payout of not more than Rs.100 per share on the CCPS and OCPS of Rs.10/- each 

in their meeting on 20-June-2022.

Further, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 20-June-2022, Declared Interim dividend of Rs. 345 lakhs (Rs. 39.63 per 

preference share) for the financial year ended 31-Mar-22.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
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(b)

Sai Employee stock option scheme - 2008 ("SESOS 2008")

The Company established a plan SESOS approved by the Shareholders at the Annual and Extraordinary General Meetings 

held on 11 September 2008 and 30 March 2009 respectively. As per the scheme, maximum number of employee stock options 

are restricted to 10% of paid up share capital of the Company. Out of which, 50% of the options granted shall vest at the end 

of two years from the grant date and the balance 50% of the options shall vest at the end of four years from the grant date. 

The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

Under this scheme, the company granted additional employee stock options approved by the Shareholders at the Extraordinary 

General Meeting  held on 25 July 2018.  The options granted shall vest 20% at the end of every year from the grant date  for a 

period of 5 years. The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

Management ESOP scheme - 2018 ("MES 2018")

The Company established a plan MES 2018 approved by the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 

July 2018. As per the scheme maximum number of shares reserved under this scheme is 4% of the paid up equity capital of 

the Company on a fully diluted basis as on the Effective Date. The options granted shall vest 20% at the end of every year 

from the grant date  for a period of 5 years. The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of 

employment with the Company.

Amended Management ESOP scheme - 2018 ("Amended MES 2018")

The Company amended the plan MES 2018 approved by the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 

March 2022. The amendment has similar terms as the MES 2018 scheme wherein the maximum number of shares reserved 

under this scheme is 4% of the paid up equity capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis as on the Effective Date. The 

options granted shall vest in a period of 5 years and as per the terms provided in the Notice of Grant. The vested options can 

be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company. 

The terms of the above schemes provide that each option entitles the holder to one equity share of ₹10 each and that the 

options can be settled only by way of issue of equity shares. The options granted are entirely time-based for ESOP 2004, 

ESOP 2006, SESOS 2008 MES 2018 and Amended MES 2018 is time and performance based

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had incurred stock compensation cost of ₹224.08 (31 March 2021:

₹242.00) towards the above schemes.

(c)

Under ESOP 2004 plan  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,000                  5,000                

Granted during the year -                        -                      

Forfeited during the year -                        (3,000)              

Exercised during the year -                        -                      

Outstanding at the end of the year 2,000                  2,000                

Weighted average exercise price (₹) 30                      30                    

Exercisable at the end of the year 2,000                  2,000                

Stock options activity is as follows:

No. of options
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Under ESOP 2006 plan  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 49                      49                    

Granted during the year -                        -                      

Forfeited during the year -                        -                      

Exercised during the year (49)                     -                      

Outstanding at the end of the year -                        49                    

Weighted average exercise price (₹) 45                      45                    

Exercisable at the end of the year -                        49                    

Under SESOS 2008 scheme  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,07,000             4,52,400           

Granted during the year -                        -                      

Forfeited during the year (11,250)               (25,000)             

Exercised during the year (1,16,500)            (20,400)             

Outstanding at the end of the year 2,79,250             4,07,000           

Weighted average exercise price (in Rupees)
 83,104,116,120 & 

284 

 83,104,116,120 

& 284 
Exercisable at the end of the year 2,79,250             4,07,000           

Under MES 2018 scheme  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,30,000             7,55,000           

Granted during the year -                        80,000              

Forfeited/Lapsed during the year (2,18,397)            (3,05,000)          

Exercised during the year (3,928)                -                      

Outstanding at the end of the year 3,07,675             5,30,000           

Weighted average exercise price (in Rupees) 1273 & 1889 1273 & 1889

Exercisable at the end of the year 3,07,675             5,30,000           

Under Amended MES 2018 scheme  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year -                        -                      

Granted during the year 1,50,000             -                      

Forfeited during the year -                        -                      

Exercised during the year -                        -                      

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,50,000             -                      

Weighted average exercise price (₹) 1,273                  -                      

Exercisable at the end of the year 1,50,000             -                      

No. of options

No. of options

No. of options
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(d)

AMES 2018

Date of grant 25-Mar-22

Risk-free interest rate 6.00%

Expected life (in years) 5                        

Expected volatility 14.97%

Expected dividend yield 0.00%

Date of grant MES 2018 MES 2018 MES 2018

Risk-free interest rate 10-Jun-20 29-Sep-20 17-Feb-21

Expected life (in years) 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

Expected volatility 5                       5                        5                      

Expected dividend yield 16.70% 16.70% 16.70%

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

x.

18. Other equity

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Securities premium (Note a) 38,555.64           38,255.83         

Capital reserve (Note b) 112.23                112.23              

Employee stock options outstanding account (Note c) 872.17                706.09              

Retained earnings (Note d) 47,801.96           46,057.06         

Cash flow hedge reserve (Note e) (32.64)                (160.96)            

(32.64)               (160.96)           

87,309.36         84,970.25       

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Securities premium 

(b) Capital reserve

(c) Employee stock options outstanding account

(d) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other 

Capital reserve pertains to the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid pursuant to amalgamation of

Advantium Pharma Private Limited with the Company in the earlier years and on forfeiture of certain share warrants issued in

the earlier years. The Company uses capital reserve for transactions in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(e) Cash flow hedge reserve

Cash flow hedge reserve represents effective portion of cash flow hedges taken to Other comprehensive income.

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Employee stock options outstanding account relates to share options granted by the Company to its employees under its

employee share option plan. These will be transferred to retained earnings after exercise of the underlying options.

During the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date, no shares have been bought back, issued for

consideration other than cash and no bonus shares have been issued.

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. During the year ended 31 

March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company issued 1,26,727 and 10,46,650 equity shares respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2022

The fair value of options is estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the 

following assumptions:
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Movement in other equity

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

1) Securities premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 38,255.83           38,159.20         

Add: Amount on account of shares issued (net of related expenses) 299.81                96.63               

Balance at the end of the year 38,555.64         38,255.83       

2) Capital reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 112.23                112.23              

Movement during the year -                     -                  

112.23              112.23            

3) Employee stock options outstanding account

Balance at the beginning of the year 706.09                505.90              

Amount transferred on exercise/forfeiture of employee stock options (58.16)                (41.81)              

Share-based payment expense 224.08                242.00              

872.01              706.09            

4) Retained earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 46,057.06           39,422.95         

Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tax) 118.64                61.90               

Amount transferred on exercise/forfeiture of employee stock options 58.16                 41.81               

Profit for the year 1,568.26             6,530.40           

47,802.12         46,057.06       

5) Cash flow hedge reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year (160.96)              (537.15)            

Effective portion of cash flow hedges (net of tax) 128.32                376.19              

(32.64)               (160.96)           

19. Borrowings

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Non-current

(Secured - at amortized cost)

Term loans

From banks [refer note (i) to (xii)] 34,725.87           27,873.53         

34,725.87         27,873.53       

Less: Current maturities of long-term loans 5,008.84             3,229.56           

          29,717.03         24,643.97 
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Terms and conditions of loans and nature of security

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Term loan (USD denominated) from State Bank of India amounting to ₹6,958.82 (31 March 2021: ₹Nil) is secured by way 

of pari passu first charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future

including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all net current assets both

present and future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate of 6 months MCLR +0.55% and is repayable in unequal

quarterly instalment commencing from June 2023 with last instalment falling due in March 2030.

CCECL (Demand loan) from SBI Bank amounting to ₹ 1,875.79 (31 March 2021: ₹ Nil) is secured by way of pari passu

second charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including

equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu first charge on all current assets both present and

future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate equal to 6 months MCLR per annum + 1% with monthly rests and

was repayable in equal Monthly instalments commencing from March 2022 and the last repayment falling due in March

2026.

Term loan from IndusInd Bank amounting to ₹ 7,125.00 (31 March 2021: ₹ 7,489.10) is secured by way of pari passu

first charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including

equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both present and

future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate of 7.35% linked to 6 months T-Bill Rate and was repayable in

unequal quarterly instalments commencing from March 2022 and the last repayment falling due in December 2028.

Term loan (USD denominated) from State Bank of India amounting to ₹1,875.00 (31 March 2021: ₹2,715.34) is secured

by way of pari passu first charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and

future including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets

both present and future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate ranging from 8.47% to 10.3% per annum and is

repayable in unequal quarterly instalment commencing from September 2017 with last instalment falling due in March

2024.Term loans (USD denominated) from IndusInd Bank amounting to ₹551.45 (31 March 2021: ₹695.70) is secured by way

of pari passu first charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future

including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both

present and future of the Company. These loans carry interest rate ranging from 2.68% to 3.43% per annum and are

repayable in unequal quarterly instalments commencing from July 2017 with the last instalment falling due in March 2025.

Term loan from IndusInd Bank amounting to ₹ 262.85 (31 March 2021: ₹ 341.63) is secured by way of pari passu first

charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including equitable

mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both present and future of

the Company. This loan carried interest rate ranging from 5.06% to 6.05% per annum and was repayable in unequal

quarterly instalments commencing from December 2017 and the last repayment falling due in March 2025.

Term loan (USD denominated) from Standard Chartered Bank Limited amounting to ₹ 1,444.08 (31 March 2021: ₹

2,321.70) is secured by way of pari passu first charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible

assets both present and future including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second

charge on all current assets both present and future of the Company. This loan carried interest rate ranging from 1.98% to

3.38% per annum and is repayable in quarterly instalments commencing from November 2019 with the last instalment

falling in August 2023.

CCECL (Demand loan) from SBI Bank amounting to ₹ Nil (31 March 2021: ₹ 480.00) is secured by way of pari passu

second charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including

equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu first charge on all current assets both present and

future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate equal to MCLR per annum with monthly rests and was repayable in

equal Monthly instalments commencing from Octomber 2020 and the last repayment falling due in March 2022.

Term loan from Kotak Bank amounting to ₹ 7,500.00 (31 March 2021: ₹ 7,500.00) is secured by way of pari passu first

charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including equitable

mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both present and future of

the Company. This loan carried interest rate of 7.35% per annum and was repayable in unequal quarterly instalments

commencing from November 2022 and the last repayment falling due in August 2027.



                  
                                                                

83 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Short term borrowings

(Secured - at amortized cost)

Working capital loans from banks* 37,026.43           32,398.11         

Current maturities of long-term loans 5,008.84             3,229.56           

(Unsecured - at amortized cost)

Working capital loans repayable on demand - Buyers credit facility 3,379.67             3,398.13           

45,414.94         39,025.80       

* Includes cash credit facilities (16.53)                (2,612.74)          

20. Lease liabilities *

Non-current             12,611.41             1,953.50 

Current 2,465.42             1,063.99           

15,076.83         3,017.49         

*Refer note 45

21. Other financial liabilities

Non-current

Optionally convertible preference shares pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement 48.03                 48.03               

Derivative liabilities - FVTOCI 232.04                135.88              

280.07              183.91            

Current

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 106.22                152.62              

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 5.79                   9.11                 

Capital creditors (refer note (a) below) 812.50                2,453.47           

Derivative liabilities - FVTOCI 12.02                 76.69               

936.53              2,691.89         

Note: The above borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of the Company's goods, book debts, movables and 

The Company has used the borrowings for the purposes for which it was taken.

The quarterly returns of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with books of accounts.

Working capital Term loan facility under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line from Kotak Bank amounting to ₹ 1,139.00

(31 March 2021: ₹ Nil) is secured by way of pari passu second charge on all property, plant and equipment including other

intangible assets both present and future including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu

second charge on all current assets both present and future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate of 7.4% per

annum which ever is lower and was repayable in equal Monthly instalments commencing from April 2022 and the last

repayment falling due in March 2026.

Working capital Term loan facility under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line from ICICI Bank amounting to ₹ 1,368.88

(31 March 2021: ₹ 1,398.00) is secured by way of pari passu second charge on all property, plant and equipment including

other intangible assets both present and future including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari

passu second charge on all current assets both present and future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate of

MCLR +1% or 9.00% per annum which ever is lower and was repayable in equal Monthly instalments commencing from

March 2021 and the last repayment falling due in March 2026.

Term loan from HDFC Bank amounting to ₹ 4,625.00 (31 March 2021: ₹ 5,000.00) is secured by way of pari passu first

charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including equitable

mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both present and future of

the Company. This loan carried interest rate of 9.00% per annum and was repayable in unequal quarterly instalments

commencing from July 2021 and the last repayment falling due in April 2026.
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a)

22. Provisions

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Non-current

Gratuity 1,396.11             1,365.74           

Compensated absences 497.02                543.53              

1,893.13           1,909.27         

Current

Gratuity 294.91                279.06              

Compensated absences 297.71                291.24              

592.62              570.30            

Employee benefits

The Company has the following post -employment benefits plans:

(a) Defined contribution plan

 For the year 

ended

31 March 2022 

 For the year 

ended

31 March 2021 

Contribution to provident fund 664.73                592.10              

Contribution to employees state insurance schemes 5.42                   5.83                 

670.15              597.93            

(b) Gratuity

(i) Change in defined benefit obligation

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 1,644.80             1,436.80           

Current service cost 385.71                337.69              

Interest cost 86.14                 85.79               

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation

Loss/(gain) from change in financial assumptions (21.99)                41.71               

Loss/(gain) on account of experience adjustments (136.56)              (124.44)            

Past service cost -                     -                   

Benefits paid (267.08)              (132.75)            

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year             1,691.02           1,644.80 

The following amount has been recognised as an expense in statement of profit and loss account of provident fund and 

other funds. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities

The Company provides its employees with benefits under a defined benefit plan, referred to as the "Gratuity Plan". The

Gratuity Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive 15 day's last

drawn salary for each year of completed service (service of six months and above is rounded off as one year) at the time

of retirement/ exit, restricted to a sum of ₹ 20.00 in accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.This defined benefit

plan exposes the company to actuarial risk such as longevity, interest rate risk and market risk & inflation risk.

Capital creditors include outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises to the extent of ₹ 123.31 (31 March 

2021: ₹ 292.97) 
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 For the year 

ended

31 March 2022 

 For the year 

ended

31 March 2021 

(ii) Reconciliation of present value of obligation on the fair value of plan assets

Present value of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year (i) 1,691.02             1,644.80           

Funded status of the plans (ii) -                        -                      

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet (i)- (ii) 1,691.02           1,644.80         

(iii) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Included under finance cost

Interest cost 86.14                 85.79               

Included under employee benefits

Service cost 385.71                337.69              

Past service cost -                     -                   

                385.71               337.69 

Net gratuity costs                471.85              423.48 

(iv) Expense recognised in other comprehensive income

3w Recognised net actuarial loss/(gain) (158.55)              (82.72)              

             (158.55)              (82.72)

(v) Key actuarial assumptions

 For the year 

ended

31 March 2022 

 For the year 

ended

31 March 2021 Discount rate 5.98% 5.70%

Salary escalation rate 10.00% 10.00%

Expected average remaining service 3.86 3.86

Mortality IALM (2012-14) 

Ultimate

IALM (2012-14) 

Ultimate

Attrition rate 20.00% 20.00%

Retirement age-years 58 58

(vi) Sensitivity analysis

Particulars
Decrease 

in rate Increase in rate

Decrease in 

rate

Discount rate (+ / - 1% movement) 1,772.24    1,571.77             1,724.90           

Salary escalation rate (+ / - 1% movement) 1,628.40    1,710.22             1,583.19           

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation

Expected cash flows over the next : 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1 year 294.91                279.06              

2 - 5 years 888.99                862.12              

5 - 10 years 657.45                629.22              

Increase in 

rate

31 March 2022

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions

constant, would have resulted in the benefit obligation being as follows:

31 March 2021

1,616.88       

1,757.49       



                  
                                                                

86 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

 

 

 

 

23. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :

Property, plant and equipment 4,912.63               4,697.72           

Contract assets 2,161.29               2,635.61           

Lease liabilities less ROU assets 143.59                  -                   

Others 3.32                     31.27               

Deferred tax assets arising on account of :

Right-of-use assets -                       (16.62)              

Provision for employee benefits (625.61)                 (622.29)            

Provision for trade receivables and advances (303.58)                 (203.89)            

Derivative instruments - FVTOCI (64.40)                  (107.56)            

Deferred tax liabilities, (net) 6,227.24              6,414.24         

Movement in deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

 1 April 

2020 

 Recognized in

statement of 

profit

 Recognized

in OCI 

31 March 2021

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :

Property, plant and equipment 5,879.14   (1,181.42)            -                       4,697.72           

Other non-current assets / financial liabilities 31.56       (0.29)                  31.27               

Contract assets 1,537.05   1,098.56              -                       2,635.61           

Deferred tax assets arising on account of :

Unused tax credits (1,775.03) 1,775.03              -                       -                   

Right-of-use assets (22.88)      6.26                    -                       (16.62)              

Provision for employee benefits (696.38)    53.27                  20.82                    (622.29)            

Provision for trade receivables and advances (253.17)    49.28                  -                       (203.89)            

Derivative instruments - FVTOCI (234.09)    -                     126.53                  (107.56)            

Others (54.43)      54.43                  -                       -                   

4,411.77 1,855.12            147.35                 6,414.24         

1 April 

2021

 Recognized in

statement of 

profit

 Recognized

in OCI 

31 March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :

Property, plant and equipment 4,697.72   214.91                -                       4,912.63           

Other non-current assets / financial liabilities 31.27       (27.95)                 -                       3.32                 

Lease liabilities less ROU assets -          143.590              143.59              

Contract assets 2,635.61   (474.32)               -                       2,161.29           

Deferred tax assets arising on account of :

Right-of-use assets (16.62)      16.620                -                       -                   

Provision for employee benefits (622.29)    (43.23)                 39.91                    (625.61)            

Provision for trade receivables and advances (203.89)    (99.69)                 -                       (303.58)            

Derivative instruments - FVTOCI (107.56)    -                     43.16                    (64.40)              

6,414.24 (270.07)              83.07                   6,227.24         
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 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

24. Trade payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 44) 1,221.41               840.36              

18,079.90              13,585.63         

19,301.31            14,425.99       

* Includes amount payable to related parties - Refer note 40
For the year ended March 31, 2022

Less than 1 

year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

Total

(i). MSME      1,217.81          3.60                        -                            -               1,221.41 

(ii) Others     16,704.90       546.27                     5.10                          -             17,256.27 

(iii). Disputed Dues - MSME               -               -                          -                            -                        -   

(iv). Disputed Dues - Others               -               -                          -                            -                        -   

(v). Unbilled Dues         823.63             -                          -                            -                 823.63 

  18,746.34     549.87                    5.10                          -   19,301.31       

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Less than 1 

year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

Total

(i). MSME         840.73             -                          -                            -                 840.73 

(ii) Others     12,893.49       114.26                        -                            -             13,007.75 

(iii). Disputed Dues - MSME               -               -                          -                            -                        -   

(iv). Disputed Dues - Others               -               -                          -                            -                        -   

(v). Unbilled Dues         577.51             -                          -                            -                 577.51 

  14,311.73     114.26                        -                            -   14,425.99       

25. Other liabilities

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Current

Advance from customers 1,120.01               659.31              

Payable to statutory authorities 672.90                  824.59              

Other Advances -                       500.00              

1,792.91              1,983.90         

26. Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for income tax (net of advance tax) 252.95                  30.10               

252.95                 30.10              

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises*

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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27. Revenue from operations

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Sale of goods and services

Revenue from contract research and manufacturing activities* 84,055.08                      75,028.49                    

Other operating income

Income from export incentives 47.20                            118.29                        

84,102.28                    75,146.78                  

*Disaggregation of revenue from contract research and 

manufacturing activities into over time and at a point in time

Timing of recognition

At a point in time 33,108.43                      26,723.69                    

Over time 50,946.65                      48,304.80                    

Total 84,055.08                    75,028.49                  

28. Other income

Interest income from fixed deposits 674.81                           756.15                        

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost 30.18                            38.77                          

Foreign exchange gain (net) 978.21                           1,583.49                      

Interest on income tax refund -                                32.54                          

Profit on Sale of PPE 1,131.47                        -                             

Provisions no longer required written back -                                317.92                        

2,814.67                      2,728.87                    

29. Cost of materials consumed

Raw material and packing material at the beginning of the year 2,997.58                        1,949.86                      

Add: Purchases/adjustments 29,652.56                      24,316.81                    

Less: Raw material and packing material at the end of the year (7,536.02)                       (2,997.58)                    

25,114.12                    23,269.09                  

30. Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 

Opening balance

- Work-in-progress 3,645.92                        1,996.09                      

(A) 3,645.92                      1,996.09                    

Closing balance

- Work-in-progress 3,928.93                        3,645.92                      

(B) 3,928.93                      3,645.92                    

(A)  - (B) (283.01)                        (1,649.83)                   

31. Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus (refer note (a) below) 24,183.72                      18,120.59                    

Gratuity 385.71                           337.69                        

Contribution to provident and other funds 670.15                           597.93                        

Employee-share based payment expense-equity settled 224.08                           242.00                        

Staff welfare expenses 873.66                           1,065.57                      

26,337.32                    20,363.78                  

(a) Includes contract labour charges of ₹ 2,537.68  (31 March 2021: ₹ 1,731.45)
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32. Finance costs

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (net 

of borrowing cost of ₹ 502.66 (Mar 21 : ₹ 226.20) capitalised 

to property, plant and equipment)

3,719.25                        2,364.42                      

Interest on lease liabilities 507.98                           315.48                        

Interest on net defined benefit liability 129.83                           117.90                        

Interest on MSME payables 53.37                            -                             

Interest - others 338.32                           136.56                        

4,748.75                      2,934.36                    

33. Depreciation and amortisation expense

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (refer note 6) 5,789.30                        4,745.49                      

Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 7) 1,887.82                        2,248.76                      

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 8) 292.68                           182.93                        

7,969.80                      7,177.18                    

34. Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares 3,168.71                        1,999.03                      

Power and fuel 3,186.17                        2,724.95                      

Rent 57.73                            72.82                          

Repairs and maintenance:

- Buildings 268.42                           316.92                        

- Plant and equipment 2,327.97                        1,223.91                      

- Others 1,489.87                        958.64                        

Insurance 581.44                           699.17                        

Rates and taxes 509.36                           345.59                        

Outside contract cost 303.24                           214.18                        

Carriage and freight outwards 263.26                           318.91                        

Communication expenses 109.29                           155.24                        

Office maintenance and housekeeping expenses 420.78                           392.96                        
Travelling and conveyance 216.77                           176.98                        

Legal and professional fees (refer note (i) below) 5,534.86                        5,793.61                      

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure (refer note (ii) below) 236.22                           232.00                        

Provision towards doubtful trade receivables (refer note 38B) 537.32                           45.99                          

Bad debts written off (net of recoveries) (refer note 38B) 74.31                            18.48                          

Bank charges 348.92                           276.89                        

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment -                                   183.30                        

Sales promotion expenses including sales commission 263.91                           115.84                        

Membership and subscription 595.24                           653.83                        

Printing and stationery 103.05                           90.08                          

Impairment of Investment in Sai Life Drugform Private 

Limited 1.00                              -                             

Miscellaneous expenses 196.92                           13.66                          

20,794.76                    17,022.98                  
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 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

(i) Details of Auditor's remuneration :

As auditor:

- Audit fee 50.00                            42.50                          

- Certification fees 14.50                            5.25                            

- Reimbursement of expenses 1.94                              1.43                            

66.44                           49.18                         

(ii) Details of CSR expenditure :

Amount spent during the year on:

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 233.50                           215.66                        

ii) Amount Spent during the year on the above 236.28                           232.00                        

iii) Shortfall at the end of the year -                                -                             

iv) Total of previous year shortfall -                                -                             

v) Reason for shortfall N/A N/A

vi) Nature of activity See note above See note above

vii) details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a 

trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR 

expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard -                                -                             

viii) where a povision is made with respect to laibility 

incurred-movement in the provision needs to be disclosed 

separately -                                -                             

35. Income tax

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

Tax expense comprises of:

Current tax 937.02                           372.57                        

Deferred tax (270.07)                         1,855.12                      

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 666.95                         2,227.69                    

As required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed by

the Company. During the year, the Company was required to spend ₹ 233.50 (March 2021 - ₹ 215.66) for contributing through

Technology, conducting free medical program in rural areas, by taking actions on Environmental sustainability, by associating with

NGO education system in rural areas and providing water storage.

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax 

rate of the Company at 25.17% and the reported tax expense in the statement of profit and loss is as follows:

During the previous year, the Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income tax Act, 1961 

as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. 



                  
                                                                

91 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Profit before tax                          2,235.21                       8,758.09 

Tax at the Indian tax rate (25.17%) [31 March 2021: 25.17%]                            562.56                       2,204.41 

Effect of concessions (80JJAA)                            (27.95)                          (32.22)

Disallowance of CSR expenditure                              59.45                           58.39 

Benefit of lower tax rate on capital gain                            (36.86)                                -   

Others                            109.75                            (2.89)

Income tax expense                           666.95                     2,227.69 

Earnings per equity share [EPES]

Profit attributable to equity shareholders                          1,568.26                       6,530.40 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year                      1,74,87,831                   1,69,39,935 

Effect of dilution:

Employee stock options                          2,88,561                       3,00,218 

Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution                      1,77,76,392                   1,72,40,153 

Earnings per equity share (in absolute ₹ terms) :

Basic                                8.97                           38.55 

Diluted                                8.82                           37.88 

Nominal Value per share equity share                                  10                                10 

Adjustments
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37. Fair value measurements

Risk management framework:

(i) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value

  31 March 

2022 

  31 March 

2021 

  31 March 

2022 

  31 March 

2021 

  31 March 

2022 

  31 March 

2021 

-               -               248.36          45.06            1.59                1.59               

-               -               244.06          212.57          -                 -                

*These are held for operational purposes and the Company estimates that the fair value of these investments are not materially different as compared to their cost.

Financial instruments by category

 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortised 

cost 

 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortised 

cost 

Financial assets

Investments -                   1.59             6,354.74        -                   1.59                6,334.67         

Trade receivables -                   -                  23,681.65      -                   -                     20,269.80       

Loans -                   -                  55.31            -                   -                     18.82             

Cash and cash equivalents -                   -                  10,917.43      -                   -                     6,043.77         

Other bank balances -                   -                  1,435.21        -                   -                     965.96           

Other financial assets -                   248.36          14,376.70      -                   45.06              15,159.44       

Total financial assets -                   249.95        56,821.04    -                   46.65             48,792.46     

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, lease liabilities, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations.

The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The Company

also holds FVTOCI investments and investment in its subsidiary.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s Board of Directors oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s Board of Directors is

supported by the senior management that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The senior management provides assurance to the

Company’s Board of Directors that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in

accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Financial liabilities - Derivative financial instruments - loss on outstanding 

foreign exchange forwards, options, currency swap contracts and 

interest rate swap contracts
(1)

(1) 
The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally banks. Derivatives valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs are mainly 

interest rate swaps, foreign exchange forwards, options and swap contracts. These derivative financial instruments are valued based on the inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the 

market place.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets - Unlisted equity instruments measured at FVTOCI* 

and derivative instruments designated in hedge accounting relationship
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37 Fair value measurements (continued)

 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortised 

cost 

 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortised 

cost 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings -                   -                  75,131.97      -                   -                     63,669.77       

Lease liabilities -                   -                  15,076.83      -                   -                     3,017.49         

Trade payables -                   -                  19,301.31      -                   -                     14,425.99       

Other financial liabilities -                   244.06          972.54          -                   212.57            2,663.23         

Total financial liabilities -                   244.06        1,10,482.65 -                   212.57           83,776.48     

(ii) Measurement of fair values

Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs

(iii) Transfer between Level 1 and 2

There have been no transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 or vice-versa in 2021-22 and no transfers in either direction in 2020-21.

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, for financial instruments measured at fair value in the balance sheet, as well as the 

significant unobservable inputs used:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

The significant valuation inputs considered are the option

exercise price, currency spot rates, tenure, risk-free interest

rates and the anticipated volatility in the underlying currency

Not applicable Not applicableOption contracts

Inter-relationship

between significant

unobservable 

inputs

and fair value

Significant

unobservable inputs

Valuation techniqueType

Not applicableNot applicableSwap models: The fair value is calculated as the present value 

of the estimated future cash flows. Estimates of future

floating-rate cash flows are based on quoted swap rates,

futures prices and interbank borrowing rates. Estimated cash

flows are discounted using a yield curve constructed from

similar sources and which reflects the relevant benchmark

interbank rate used by market participants for this purpose

when pricing interest rate swaps. The fair value estimate is

subject to credit risk adjustment that reflects the credit risk of

the entity and of the counterparty; this is calculated based on

credit spreads derived from current credit default swap or

bond prices.

Interest rate swaps and Cross Currency swaps

Not applicableNot applicableForward pricing: The fair value is determined using quoted

forward exchange rates at the reporting date and present

value calculations based on high credit quality yield curves in

the respective currency

Forward exchange contract
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38. Financial instruments risk management

A. Market risk:

i. Interest rate risk:

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

ii. Foreign currency risk:

a) Significant foreign currency risk exposure relating to financial assets and financial liabilities expressed in ₹ terms are as follows. 

Financial assets

Investments
Trade 

receivables*

Balances in 

bank
Other assets Investments

Trade 

receivables

*

Other 

assets

- USD 5,182.67           21,165.28           1.39                  205.77             5,182.67          15,144.08    1,033.69   

- EUR -                  1,548.35             -                   15.80               -                 3,977.88     40.00        

- GBP -                  55.01                 158.43              8.53                -                 89.98          164.00      

- Others -                  14.51                 40.85                1.32                -                 149.70        -           

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

* This amount excludes ECL

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of

risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, lease liabilities, deposits, trade receivables and other financial

instruments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market

variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post retirement obligations; provisions; and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has loan

facilities on floating interest rate, which exposes the Company to risk of changes in interest rates. The management monitors the interest rate movement and manages the

interest rate risk based on its policies, which include entering into interest rate swaps as considered necessary. The Company's investment in deposits with banks are for short

durations and therefore do not expose the Company to significant interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure shall fluctuate because of change in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s foreign

exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses, (primarily in US Dollars and Euros) and foreign currency borrowings (primarily in US 

Dollars). As a result, if the value of the Indian rupee appreciates relative to these foreign currencies, the Company’s revenues and expenses measured in Indian rupees may

decrease or increase and vice-versa. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencies have changed substantially in recent periods and may continue

to fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the Company uses both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts,

currency swap contracts and foreign currency financial liabilities, to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates in respect of its highly probable forecasted

transactions and recognised assets and liabilities.  

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined for borrowings assuming the amount of borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the

whole year. A 10 basis points increase or decrease in case of foreign currency borrowings and 50 basis points increase or decrease in case of rupee borrowings is used when

reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rate. 

If interest rate had been 10 basis points higher/lower in case of foreign currency borrowings and 50 basis points higher/ lower in case of rupee borrowings and all other

variables were held constant, the Company's profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 would decrease/increase by ₹ 281.12 (31 March 2021: ₹ 238.47)
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38

Financial liabilities

Borrowings# Trade payables Capital creditors Borrowings# Trade payables Capital creditors

- USD 16,157.69               5,134.79             40.24                19,932.37         2,386.58          503.12              

- EUR -                        15.88                 -                   171.71             3.46                10.72                

- GBP -                        45.00                 -                   -                  -                 186.45              

- Others -                        20.87                 -                   -                  5.06                -                   

# This amount includes interest accrued

(b) Foreign currency sensitivity

Particulars

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

USD sensitivity

₹/USD - Increase by 1% 52.22                 (10.56)               

₹/USD - Decrease by 1% (52.22)                10.56                

EUR sensitivity

₹/EUR - Increase by 1%                   15.48                  38.32 

₹/EUR - Decrease by 1%                 (15.48)                (38.32)

GBP sensitivity

₹/GBP - Increase by 1%                     1.77                  15.97 

₹/GBP - Decrease by 1%                   (1.77)                (15.97)

(c) Derivative financial instruments

Sell Buy  No of 

contracts 

outstanding 

 Amount in 

Lakhs 

 No of contracts 

outstanding 

 Amount in 

Lakhs 

Forward contract US$ ₹ 111                 386.45$           27                     $89.54

Currency swaps ₹ US$ -                  -                 1                      350.46₹             

Currency swaps US$ EUR -                  -                 1                      $8.96

Interest rate swaps INR (floating to fixed) 1                     6,937.50₹        

Interest rate swaps USD (floating to fixed) 2                     25.77$            1                      $31.76

B. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally from its operating

activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and Euro exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency 

Impact on income 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Financial instruments risk management (continued)

31 March 2022

The following table gives details in respect of outstanding derivative contracts. The counterparty for these contracts are banks.

The Company designates its derivative contracts that hedge foreign exchange risk associated with its highly probable forecasted transactions as cash flow hedges and measures them at fair value. The 

effective portion of such cash flow hedges is recorded as in other comprehensive income, and re-classified in the income statement as revenue in the period corresponding to the occurrence of the 

forecasted transactions. The ineffective portion of such cash flow hedges is immediately recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

31 March 2021
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Maturities of financial liabilities

Up to 1 year From 1 to 3 

years

More than 3 

years

Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings          75,131.97            45,414.94     11,894.78             17,822.25           75,131.97 

Lease liabilities          15,076.83              2,465.42       4,525.78               8,085.63           15,076.83 

Trade and other payables          19,301.31            19,301.31                  -                          -           19,301.31 

Other financial liabilities              972.54                 924.51           48.03                          -                972.54 

Total     1,10,482.65          68,106.18   16,468.59           25,907.88        1,10,482.65 

Up to 1 year From 1 to 3 

years

More than 3 

years

Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings          63,669.77            39,025.80     13,197.16             11,446.81           63,669.77 

Lease liabilities            3,017.49              1,063.99       1,186.42                 767.08             3,017.49 

Trade payable          14,425.99            14,425.99                  -                          -           14,425.99 

Other financial liabilities            2,663.23              2,615.20           48.03                          -             2,663.23 

Total        83,776.48          57,130.98   14,431.61           12,213.89           83,776.48 

39. Capital risk management

The capital for the reporting year under review is summarized as follows: 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Total borrowings (note 19) 75,131.97           63,669.77            

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 15(i)) 10,917.43           6,043.77              

Less: Other bank balances (note 15 (ii)) and Deposits classified under Other financial assets (note 10) 11,435.21           13,515.96            

Net debt (A) 52,779.33         44,110.04          

Total equity (B) 89,103.68           86,751.90            

Net debt to equity ratio (A)/(B) 0.59 0.51

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Hence, the Company may adjust any dividend payments, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Total capital is the equity as shown in the statement of financial position. Currently, the Company primarily monitors its capital structure on the basis of the following gearing ratio. Management is

continuously reviewing its strategies to optimize the returns and reduce the risks. It includes plans to optimize the financial leverage of the Company.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are the cash flows generated from operations. Further the Company also has long term borrowings and working capital facilities which the management

believes are sufficient for its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

Contractual cash flows

Contractual cash flows

Carrying 

amount

Carrying 

amount

31 March 2021

31 March 2022

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. 
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40. Related party disclosures

(a) Names of the related parties and nature of relationship 

Names of related parties

Sai Life Sciences Inc, USA

Sai Life Sciences GMBH, Germany Subsidiary Company

Sai Life Pharma Private Limited Subsidiary Company

Sai Life Drugform Private Limited Subsidiary Company, applied for strike off effective dt.25-03-2022

R R Kabel Limted

Sai Quest Syn Private Limited

TPG Asia VII SF Pte Ltd

Soma Khadi Gramodyog Sangha

Dr. K Ranga Raju

Krishnam Raju

Jayant Bhalchandra Manmadkar  (resigned as Chief Financial Officer on 

1 July 2021)

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor (appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 

1 July 2021)

Runa Karan

Dr. Raju A Penmasta

Puneet Bhatia

Mitesh Daga

Rajagopal S. Tatta

Nandita Gurjar

(b) Transactions with related parties

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

Transactions with subsidiary companies

Consultancy services received 3,904.19                   4,286.41              

- Sai Life Sciences Inc. 3,904.19                    4,286.41               

Research Services Provided 543.29                      139.69                 

- Sai Life Sciences Inc 543.29                       139.69                  

Reimbursement of expenses -                               5.90                     

- Sai Life Pharma Private Limited -                               5.90                     

Investment in equity share capital 21.06                        4,098.17              

- Sai Life Sciences Inc -                               4,098.17               

- Sai Life Sciences GMBH 21.06                         -                          

Issue of Standby Line of Credit 328.97                      317.32                 

- Sai Life Sciences Inc 328.97                       317.32                  

Transactions with Subsidiaries 150.34                      86.84                   

- Sai Life Pharma Private Limited (Rent expenses) 13.54                         5.66                     

- Sai Life Scienes Inc (Sale of Lab consumables) 136.80                       78.36                    

- Sai Life Pharma Private Limited (Payment on behalf) -                               2.82                     

Nature of relationship

Subsidiary Company

For the year ended

Entities in which investor director have significant influence

Key management personnel ("KMP")

Director

Entities in which KMP have control or have significant influence

Entity having significant influence on the Company

Entities in which KMP have control or have significant influence

Independent Director
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(b) Transactions with related parties

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

Transactions with independent directors 65.05                        64.09                   

Commission 60.73                                             60.90 

Sitting fees 4.04                                                2.79 

Reimbursement of expenses 0.28                                                0.40 

Transactions with KMP 400.68                      883.06                 

Managerial remuneration* 400.68                                         883.06 

(c) Balances outstanding

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

Payables

Subsidiary company 160.30                      1,205.99              

- Sai Life Sciences Inc 136.80                       895.22                  

- Sai Life Pharma Private Limited 1.22                          3.92                     

KMP 22.28                         306.85                  

Receivables

Subsidiary companies 552.93                      137.59                 

- Sai Life Sciences Inc 552.93                       137.59                  

Advances Given

Subsidiary companies 1,576.85                   337.61                 

- Sai Life Sciences Inc 1,576.85                    337.61                  

Investment in equity share capital 6,354.73                   6,334.67              

- Sai Life Sciences Inc 5,182.67                    5,182.67               

- Sai Life Sciences GMBH 21.06                         -                          

- Sai Life Pharma Private Limited 1,151.00                    1,151.00               

- Sai Life Drugform Private Limited** -                               1.00                     

Entity in which KMP has control or significant influence 

Rental deposit 30.00                         30.00                    

** Investment impaired during the year 31 March 2022.

(d) Transaction with related parties

For the year ended

*KMP are covered by the Company's mediclaim insurance policy and are eligible for gratuity and leave encashment along with

other employees of the Company. The proportionate premium paid towards this policy and provision made for gratuity and leave

encashment pertaining to the KMP has not been included in the aforementioned disclosures as these are not determined on an

individual basis. 

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Company is required to use certain specified

methods in assessing that the transactions with the related parties, are carried at an arm’s length price and is also required to

maintain prescribed information and documents to support such assessment. The appropriate method to be adopted will depend on

the nature of transactions / class of transactions, class of associated persons, functions performed and other factors as prescribed.

Based on certain internal analysis carried out, management believes that transactions entered into with the related parties were

carried out at arms length prices. The Company is in the process of updating the transfer pricing documentation for the financial

year ended 31 March 2022. In opinion of the management, the same would not have an impact on these financial statements.

Accordingly, these financial statements do not include the effect of the transfer pricing implications, if any.

 As at 
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41. Segment reporting

(i) Revenue from External customers  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

India 6,814.87                    4,267.55               

Outside India 77,240.21                   70,760.94              

(ii) Non-Current Assets (Other than financial instruments)

India 98,576.10                   90,398.21              

Outside India 10,985.67                   5,305.87               

(iii) Major Customer

42. Contingent liabilities and commitments

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

(a) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

account and not provided for (net of advances)

2,673.28                    8,548.81               

(b) Contingent liabilities   

Claims arising from disputes not acknowledged as debts in respect of:

Excise duty liabilities - refer note (c) (i) below 72.48                         72.48                    

Service tax liabilities - refer note (c) (ii) below 123.62                       123.62                  

Entry tax liabilities - refer note (c) (iii) below -                               12.41                    

Provident Fund Damages relating to PF contribution of international 

workers - refer note (c) (iv) below 218.91                       218.91                  

Income tax liabilities - refer note (c) (v) below 565.84                       372.24                  

VAT liabilities - refer note (c) (vi) below 592.52                       592.52                  

(c)

(ii) The Service tax department has raised a demand on the ground that that the Place of Provision of Service is in India and as

such there is no export of service by the Company applying Rule 4 of Place of Provision of Service Rules, 2012. (POPS Rules)

with respect to Drug Metabolism and Pharmacokinetic (DMPK) services rendered by the Company. Appeal filed before

CESTAT- Pune, on 27 April 15 and Final Order received. Appeal is filed before Honourable High Court on 9 Dec 19 and

Personal Hearing is attended on 27 Feb 20. Appeal has been admitted by Hight court on 5th July 2022.

 For the year ended 

The management has assessed the identification of reportable segments in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 

‘Operating Segment’and believes that the Company has only one reportable segment namely “Contract research and 

manufacturing”. Geography-wise details of the Company’s revenues from external customers and its non-current assets (other 

than financial instruments, investments accounted for using the equity method, deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit 

assets) and revenue from major customers are given below:

(i) The Central Excise department has raised a demand against the Company on the ground that the Company has not complied

with the conditions of Notification No 23/2003 – CE dated 31 March 2003. As per the said notification, an Export Oriented Unit

(EOU) unit can clear the goods into Domestic Tariff Area (DTA) on payment of excise duty at a concessional rate upto 50% of

the Free on Board (FOB) value of the exports on the sale of similar goods to DTA. The central excise officer has held that the

goods sold in DTA are different from the goods which are exported. Accordingly raised the above demand along with interest and

penalty. Appeal is filed before Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal ('CESTAT') and waiting for personal hearing.

The Company has one customer who contributed more than 10% of the Company's total revenue. The revenue from such major 

customer during the year is ₹ 9,417.23  (31 March 2021: ₹ 12,799.74)

 As at 
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(v) During the previous years the Company has received a demand from income tax authorities relating to financial year 2015-16,

2016-17 & 2017-18 regarding certain disallowances in the income tax return of that year. The Company has filed an appeal and is

pending hearing.

(iv) The Company has three Non resident Indians on its rolls covered under the definition of International Workers as per the

Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. Based on the Government Order, in June 2017, the

Company suo moto made a payment of provident fund along with the applicable interest rates. 

However, on April 25, 2018, the Company received a notice from the Department stating that from the period 01 April 1996 to 31

March 2018, the Company had delays in deposit of Provident fund amount and accordingly, charged interest and damages under

Section 14B and Section 7Q of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 to the extent of Rs

131.51 and Rs 218.91 for interest and damages respectively.

The Company has represented the case stating that interest payments were made appropriately. The PF authorities took the such

interest payment on record and gave a corrigendum stating the same.

The Company is still contesting the damages payment of ₹ 218.91. The Company during the year addressed a letter dated October 

22, 2020 to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, requesting it to refrain from taking any such coercive action against the

Company and reserved its right to exercise its rights and remedies under law. However, since no presiding officer had been

appointed for hearing matters before the Central Government Industrial Tribunal (“CGIT”) at that time, the Company filed the

present writ petition bearing Writ Petition No. 19867 of 2020 against the RPFC for the setting aside of the Impugned Order as

being arbitrary, illegal and violative of Article 14 of the Constitution of India.The matter was listed on November 19, 2020,

wherein, the High Court passed an interim order granting a stay on the Impugned Order. However, as on date, there is no further

order with regard to the said damages.Apart from the proceedings before the High Court of Telangana, an appeal was also filed

by the Client challenging the Impugned Order before the CGIT under Section 7-I of the EPF Act.The matter was listed for

admission on April 26, 2021. The CGIT, vide, an order passed on April 26, 2021, observed that the present appeal was admitted

subject to the final order passed by the High Court of Telangana. The said order held that the application for stay as filed by the

Client would be considered upon obtaining such a final order.

(vi) The Company has litigations under Maharashtra Value Added Tax ('MVAT') Act, 2002 and Central Sales Tax ('CST') Act,

1956 for the years 2009-10 to 2016-17, and for the quarter 1 April 2017 to 30 June 2017. For the years 2009-10 to 2013-14, the

Company is in appeal before the Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal and for the years 2014-15 to 30 June 2017, the Company is in

appeal before the Joint Commissioner (Appeals). The issue pertains to eligibility of refund of Input Tax Credit ('ITC) under

MVAT Act.

The tax authorities have raised objection that transfer of deliverables (technical know-how) to the Customer of the Company is a

service and not sale of goods. Therefore, the tax authorities at the first level have disallowed ITC and rejected the claim of refund

of unutilised ITC of the Company. However, in this regard, the Company believes that transfer of deliverables to the Customer is

sale of goods and the Company is eligible for ITC and the refund of unutilized ITC.

(iii) The Company has received Entry Tax Assessment orders on 19 February 2018 passed by Commercial Tax Officer, Saroor

Nagar Circle (adjudicating authorities) demanding Entry tax on the goods (namely furnace oil and networking cables) purchased

from outside the State of Telangana for the Financial years 2013-14 to FY 2016 -17 for an amount of ₹ 11.27 and Company has

filed an appeal with Appellate Joint Commissioner (ST) (“Appellate Authorities”) on 21 March 2018 on the grounds that said

goods are inputs and are excluded from levy of Entry Tax. Personal hearing before the Appellate authorities was concluded on 20

March 2020 and Order was passed on 31 March 2020 dismissing the appeal filed by the Company on the grounds that the said

goods do not qualify as 'inputs' forming part of final produtcs and not eligible for exemption. Against the amount of VAT refund

receivable, the Authorities had adjusted the liabilities of Entry Tax (in full) for the Financials years 2013-14 to FY 2016-17 on 19

December 2020 and the matters were closed.  

Under the same grounds, the Company has received Entry Tax Assessment orders on 28 October 2019 for the period of Apr-17

to Jun-17 for an Amount of ₹ 1.13 and Company has filed an appeal with Appellate Joint Commissioner (ST) (“Appellate

Authorities”) on 22 November 2019. Personal hearing before the Appellate authorities was concluded on 20 March 2020 and

Order was passed on 31 March 2020 dismissing the appeal filed by the Company on the grounds that the said goods do not qualify

as 'inputs' forming part of final produtcs and not eligible for exemption. Demand notice is received in the month of September 2020

for recovery of tax arrears. A letter was submitted on 4 Nov 20 requesting not to initiate recovery proceedings pending receipt of

the Order. The Company has paid discharged the liabilities of Entry Tax (in full) for the period April 2017 to June 2017 on 30th

March 2022 and the matters were closed.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

43. Other statutory disclosures

44.  Micro, Small and Medium  Enterprises

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

1,291.35                    1,133.33               

-                            -                       

-                            -                       

53.37                         -                       

-                            -                       

(vii) The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business

including litigation pending before various tax authorities, including those mentioned in above points. The uncertainties and possible

refunds are dependent on the outcome of different legal processes, which have been invoked by the claimants or the Company, as

the case may be, and therefore cannot be accurately predicted . The Company engages reputed professional advisors to protect its 

interest and has been advised that it has strong legal positions against such disputes. Management believes that it has a reasonable

case in its defense of the proceedings and accordingly no further provision is required.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding

years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small

enterprise

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each

accounting year*

The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the amounts of the payment

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without

adding the interest specified under this Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which

recommends that the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the

Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allotted after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the

amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 & 31 March 2021 has been made in the financial statements based on

information received and available with the Company. Further, in the view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that

may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is not

expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act.

vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

   (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or  

   (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

vii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall: 

   (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

   (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

viii) The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any 

other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for 

holding any Benami property. 

ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

v) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 

authority. 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

* Includes amounts payable to trade creditors ₹ 1221.47 (31 March 2021: ₹ 840.36) and capital creditors ₹ 123.31 

(31 March 2021: ₹ 292.97)     

    

This information is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 

2006 and has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available 

with the Company. Auditors have placed reliance on the information provided by the management.  

 

   

 

45 Leases

Particulars

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

            3,017.49             3,817.63 

Additions            15,257.16             3,087.87 

Deletions            (1,556.04)            (1,573.27)

Accretion of interest                507.98                315.48 

Payments            (2,149.76)            (2,630.22)

Closing balance          15,076.83            3,017.49 

Current             2,465.42             1,063.99 

Non-current            12,611.41             1,953.50 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

            1,887.82             2,248.76 

               507.98                315.48 

                 57.73                  72.82 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Interest portion of lease liabilities                507.98                315.48 

Principal portion of lease liabilities             1,641.78             2,314.74 

Particulars

For the year ended

Company as a lessee : The Company has lease contracts for land, buildings, vehicles and computers, with lease 

period varying between 1 to 51 years. The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the 

leased assets.

Lease liabilities

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance

Cash outflows for leases

Depreciation: Right-of-use assets

Finance cost: Interest on lease liabilities

Short term and variable lease payments (Refer note below)

Note: The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of certain premises 

taken on lease (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 

contain a purchase option).

Amount recognised in Statement of Cash flow

Particulars

For the year ended
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 
 

46 Ratios

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 Variance Remarks

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.33 1.32 0.8%

Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt
(1)

Shareholder's Equity 0.59 0.51 15.7%

Debt Service Coverage  RatioEarnings available for debt service
(2)

Debt service
(3) 1.62 3.23 -49.8%

Decrease in primarily on account 

of decrease in profits

Return on Equity (ROE) Net profit after taxes Average Shareholder's Equity
2% 8% -75.0%

Decrease in primarily on account 

of decrease in profits

Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold
(7)

Average Inventory
2.49 3.72 -33.1%

Decrease was primarily on 

account of decrease in inventory 

Trade Receivables  

Turnover Ratio Revenue from Operations Average Receivables
3.83 3.18 20.4%

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold
(7)

+Other expense Average Trade Payable 2.71 2.75 -1.5%

Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue from Operations Working capital
(4) 3.56 3.87 -8.0%

Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Revenue from Operations
2% 9% -77.8%

Decrease in primarily on account 

of decrease in profits

Return on Capital Employed 

(ROCE) 

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes 

(EBIT) Capital Employed 
(5) 5% 10% -50.0%

Decrease in primarily on account 

of decrease in profits

Return on Investment 
(6)

Income generated from investments Investments

(2) Net profit before tax + Depreciation + Finance cost

(3) Finance cost (excluding interest on lease liabilities) + Current maturities of long-term loans

(4) Current assets - current liabilities 

(5) Total Assets - current liabilities

(6) The Company is not having any market linked investments

(7) Cost of materials consumed +Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 

Not Applicable

(1) Long-Term borrowings + Short-Term borrowings - Cash and cash equivalents -Other bank balances (note 15 (ii)) and Deposits classified under Other financial assets 

(note 10)
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47

48 Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 August 2022.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju

Chairman Managing Director

DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A13721

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 17 August 2022

During the financial year, the company’s business operations were impacted by the global health pandemic from

COVID-19 (COVID-19) and the lockdown restrictions. COVID-19 is the infectious disease caused by the most

recently discovered coronavirus, SARS-CoV-2. In March 2020, the WHO declared COVID-19 a pandemic. Our

operations in India come under the jurisdictions of three States Telangana, Karnataka and Maharashtra. The revenue

generation for the first quarter was constrained on account of the lockdown regulations. Further the Company has

consolidated its operations from the rental facilities in Pune, Maharashtra to its location in Hyderabad, Telangana and

had completed the expansion plans (including ramping up headcount) to accommodate the consolidation during

previous year. As part of the overall strategy, Company adopted measures to protect and safeguard the health of

employees. The cost of operations during the year increased on account of additional costs due to the restrictions

imposed by the regulators, compensations to the families for the deceased employees due to Covid, vaccination to all

employees & family members and in mitigating and safeguarding the health risks of the employees.

The Company has evaluated impact of COVID-19 pandemic in assessing the recoverability of non-current assets,

inventories, trade receivables and contract assets based on its review of current indicators of future economic

conditions. Based on such assessment, the Company expects to recover carrying values of such assets. The Company

will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

To The Members of Sai Life Sciences Limited 

 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sai Life Sciences Limited (”the Parent” 

or “the Company”) and its subsidiaries (the  Parent and its subsidiaries  together  referred  to  as “the  Group”), 

which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at  31 March 2022, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit 

and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the 

consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements  of the subsidiaries referred to in the 

Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March  2022, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated 

total comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year 

ended on that date.  

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 

in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We 

are independent  of  the  Group, in  accordance  with  the  Code  of  Ethics  issued  by  the  Institute  of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated 

financial statements under the provisions of the  Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe 

that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports 

referred to in the sub-paragraphs (a) of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.  

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

• The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, 

standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

• Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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• In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries audited by the other auditors, to the extent 

it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether 

the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so 

far as it relates to subsidiaries is traced from their financial statements audited by the other auditors.  

 

• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

  

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

   

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section  134(5) of the  Act with  respect  to  

the  preparation  of  these  consolidated  financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 

financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash 

flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 

responsible for  maintenance of  adequate accounting records in accordance  with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Group and  for preventing and detecting frauds  and  other  irregularities;  selection  

and  application  of  appropriate accounting  policies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the  financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 

statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.  

 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 

the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the  respective 

Board of Directors  either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so.  

 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the 

financial reporting process of the Group.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.  

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
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sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of business activities within 

the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. For the subsidiaries included in the 

consolidated financial statements, which has been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 

responsible for our audit opinion. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated 

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 

the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the consolidated financial statements. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

Other Matters 

 

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 

16,256.01 lakhs as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of Rs. 7,440.70 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting 

to Rs. 35.04 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These 
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financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the 

Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 

and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 

143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the reports of the other 

auditors. 

 

(b) We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 

13.56 lakhs as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of Rs. NIL and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 13.56 

lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial 

statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these 

subsidiary and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 

aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to 

the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements are not material 

to the Group. 

 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work 

done and the reports of the other auditors. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other 

auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section above 

we report, to the extent applicable that: 

 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.  

 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

and the reports of the other auditors. 

 

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 

Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of 

Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 

maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.  

 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the   

Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.  

 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on 31 March, 2022 

taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its 

subsidiary Companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Parent and its subsidiary 

Companies are disqualified as on 31 March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 

164 (2) of the Act. 

 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over  financial reporting and  the  operating  

effectiveness of  such  controls,  refer  to  our  separate  Report  in “Annexure A” which is based on the 
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auditors’ reports of the Parent and subsidiary companies  incorporated in India. Our report expresses an 

unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting of those companies.  

 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/provided by the Parent to its directors 

during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,  2014,as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us:  

 
i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 

financial position of the Group.  

 

ii) Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable law 

or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts;  

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Parent.  

 

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 

note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to 

or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities  (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 

note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Group from any 

person or entity, including foreign entities  (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 

 

v) The interim dividend declared and paid by Group during the year and until the date of this report is 

in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013. 
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2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s 

Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO”/ “the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of 

the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by 

us and the auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements to which reporting 

under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report that there are no 

qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said companies included 

in the consolidated financial statements 

 

 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

(F.R.N. 117366W/W-100018) 

 

 

 

Sathya P. Koushik 

(Partner) 

(Membership No. 206920) 

UDIN: 22206920APEJJQ1858 

 
Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 17 August 2022 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH  

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

 
 

  

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 6 74,290.13                        69,540.08                        

(b) Right-of-use assets 7 22,109.52                        5,244.41                          

(c) Capital work-in-progress 6 18,868.65                        19,400.39                        

(d) Intangible assets 8 805.01                            557.50                            

(e) Financial assets

(i)   (i) Investments 9 1.59                                1.59                                

 (ii) Other financial assets 10 305.20                            422.64                            

(f) Non-current tax assets (net) 11 1,381.17                          1,284.35                          

(g) Other non-current assets 12 3,553.02                          4,929.66                          

Total non-current assets 1,21,314.29                   1,01,380.62                   

Current assets

(a) Inventories 13 12,691.28                        7,634.58                          

(b) Financial assets

(i)    (i) Trade receivables 14 24,290.40                        20,578.69                        

   (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 15(i) 11,594.02                        6,675.23                          

  (iii) Bank balances other than above 15(ii) 1,435.21                          965.96                            

  (iv) Loans 16 55.31                              18.82                              

  .(v) Other financial assets 10 14,319.86                        14,781.86                        

(c) Other current assets 12 30,034.16                        29,706.22                        

Total current assets 94,420.24                      80,361.36                      

Total assets 2,15,734.53                   1,81,741.98                   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity share capital 17 1,794.32                          1,781.65                          

(b) Other equity 18 86,062.23                        84,513.49                        

Total equity 87,856.55                      86,295.14                      

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

  (i) Borrowings 19 29,717.03                        24,643.97                        

(ii) Lease liabilities 20 18,956.58                        2,696.00                          

 (iii) Other financial liabilities 21 280.07                            183.91                            

(b) Provisions 22 1,893.13                          1,909.27                          

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 23 5,689.11                          6,137.74                          

Total non-current liabilities 56,535.92                      35,570.89                      

Note
 As at 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH (contd….) 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 
  

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i)   Borrowings(i) Borrowings 19 45,414.77                     39,025.80                      

(ii) Lease liabilities 20 2,456.14                       1,063.99                       

(ii)  Trade payables(iii) Trade payables

24 1,221.41                       840.36                          

24 18,581.27                     12,957.55                      

(iv) Other financial liabilities 21 936.53                         3,306.96                       

(b) Other current liabilities 25 1,882.64                       2,080.89                       

(c) Provisions 22 592.62                         570.30                          

(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 26                           256.68 30.10                            

Total current liabilities 71,342.06                   59,875.95                    

Total equity and liabilities 2,15,734.53                1,81,741.98                 

See accompanying notes forming part of these consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Sai Life Sciences Limited

Firm Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018 CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

Sathya P. Koushik Dr. K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju

Partner Chairman Managing Director

Membership No.: 206920 DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A13721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad

Date: 17 August 2022 Date: 17 August 2022

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises

Note
 As at 

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 
 

 
  

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Income

I Revenue from operations 27                     86,959.33                      75,988.95 

II Other income 28                       2,814.84                        2,728.87 

III Total income (I + II)                   89,774.17                    78,717.82 

IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 29                     26,222.21                      23,523.73 

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 30                        (283.01)                      (1,649.83)

Employee benefits expense 31                     30,082.11                      23,161.25 

Finance costs 32                       5,087.00                        3,032.28 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 33                       9,016.02                        7,957.24 

Other expenses 34                     18,680.32                      14,501.21 

Total expenses (IV)                   88,804.65                    70,525.88 

V Profit before tax (III - IV)                        969.52                      8,191.94 

VI Tax expense 35

(i) Current tax                         942.08                          372.57 

(ii) Deferred tax                        (595.19)                        1,709.25 

Total tax expense (VI)                        346.89                      2,081.82 

VII Profit for the year (V - VI)                        622.63                      6,110.12 

VIII Other comprehensive income

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

(a) Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 158.55                                                   82.72 

(ii) Income-tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or 

loss

(39.91)                        
                         (20.82)

                       118.64                           61.90 

B. (i) Items that will  be reclassified to profit or loss:

(a) Effective portion of gain/(loss) on designated portion of 

hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge

171.48                                                 502.72 

(b) Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 207.48                                                 (44.81)

(ii) Income-tax on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (95.38)                        (115.26)                       

                       283.58                         342.65 

Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of 

tax (A + B)
                       402.22                         404.55 

Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII)                     1,024.85                      6,514.67 

IX Earnings per equity share (in absolute ₹ terms) 36

Basic                             3.56                            36.07 

Diluted                             3.50                            35.44 

 For the year ended 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH (contd….) 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

 
  

See accompanying notes forming part of these consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Sai Life Sciences Limited

Firm Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018 CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

Sathya P. Koushik Dr. K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju

Partner Chairman Managing Director

Membership No.: 206920 DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A13721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad

Date: 17 August 2022 Date: 17 August 2022
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 969.52                8,191.94             

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense 9,016.02              7,957.24               

Interest income (704.99)                (827.46)                

Equity -settled share-based payments 224.08                    242.00                     

(Gain)/loss on sale of PP&E, net (1,131.47)                183.30                     

Finance costs 5,087.00              3,032.28               

Bad debts written off (net of recoveries) 74.31                   18.48                   

Unrealised foreign exchange gain, net (188.00)                (515.39)                

Provision towards doubtful trade receivables, net 537.32                 45.99                   

Provisions no longer required written back -                      (317.92)                

Operating cash flows before working capital changes 13,883.79              18,010.46              

(Increase)/decrease in loans & deposits (6.31)                      (36.98)                     

(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets 1,074.72                 (597.25)                   

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (5,056.42)                (3,230.63)                 

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (4,324.52)                6,567.34                  

Increase in other current assets (327.94)                   (10,442.70)               

Increase in other financial assets 323.42                    (13,416.97)               

Increase in trade payables 6,311.83                 (464.30)                

Increase in other financial liabilities & provisions (381.50)                541.29                     

Increase in other non-current and current liabilities (198.25)                976.05                  

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A) 11,298.82              (2,093.69)               

Income-taxes paid, net (812.32)                (1,544.74)              

Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 10,486.50              (3,638.43)               

Cash flows from investing activities

(20,691.42)           (26,207.11)            

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9,854.15              87.72                   

Movement in other bank balances, net (469.25)                (212.75)                

Redemption of Fixed deposits, net 50.00                   -                       

Interest income received 885.13                 343.03                  

Net cash used in investing activities (B) (10,371.39)            (25,989.11)             

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 312.48                    99.57                      

Proceeds from current borrowings, net 7,393.90                 16,177.99                

Proceeds from non-current borrowings 10,014.79                21,878.00                

Repayment of non-current borrowings (3,162.45)                (2,344.38)                 

Lease payments (3,205.65)                (3,024.81)                 

Interest paid # (4,160.66)             (3,236.45)              

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C) 7,192.41                29,549.92              

7,307.52                (77.62)                    

 Effect of exchange differences on cash and cash 

equivalents held in foreign currency 207.48                    -                          
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  4,062.49                 4,140.11                  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 1 below) 11,577.49              4,062.49                

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets ( including 

capital work in progress, capital advances and capital creditors)

For the year ended

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year  (A + B + C)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH (contd….) 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 
 

 

 

 As at  As at 

31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

Note 1:

Cash and cash equivalents includes

Cash on hand 1.24                       2.30                        

Balances with banks 

-in current accounts 5,926.74                 6,672.93                  

-in cash credit accounts (16.53)                    (2,612.74)                 

-others 5,666.04                 -                          

11,577.49              4,062.49                

Note 2:

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

 Net 

Proceeds/ 

(Repayments

 As at 

31 March 2022 

Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 27,873.53                    6,852.34        (81.03)                    34,644.84                

Current borrowings (excluding cash credit) 33,183.50                    7,393.90        (188.00)                   40,389.40                

Total 61,057.03                  14,246.24     (269.03)                 75,034.24              

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2020 

 Proceeds/ 

(Repayments

) 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 8,211.71                      19,533.62       128.20                    27,873.53                

Current borrowings (excluding cash credit) 17,224.56                    16,177.99       (219.05)                   33,183.50                

Total 25,436.27                  35,711.61     (90.85)                   61,057.03              

See accompanying notes forming part of these consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Sai Life Sciences Limited

Firm Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018 CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

Sathya P. Koushik Dr. K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju

Partner Chairman Managing Director

Membership No.: 206920 DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A13721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad

Date: 17 August 2022 Date: 17 August 2022

 Foreign exchange 

loss/(gain) 

 Foreign exchange 

loss/(gain) 

# Interest paid in cash flow from financing activities includes borrowing cost capitalised as property, plant and equipment and CWIP during the 

year amounting to ₹ 502.66 (31 March 2021: ₹ 226.20 )

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in balance sheet for financial liabilities arising from financing activities are given below:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

A Share Capital 

 Total 

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Amount

As at 31 March 2020            1,63,82,929            1,638.29                               -                               -                1,638.29 

Changes in share capital during the year                 10,46,650                104.67                     4,80,000                        38.69                    143.36 

As at 31 March 2021            1,74,29,579            1,742.96                   4,80,000                       38.69                1,781.65 

Changes in share capital during the year                   1,26,727                  12.67                               -                               -                      12.67 

As at 31 March 2022            1,75,56,306            1,755.63                   4,80,000                       38.69                1,794.32 

B Other Equity 

Capital reserve Securities premium Employee stock 

options outstanding 

account

Retained earnings Effective 

portion of cash 

flow hedges

Foreign 

currency 

translation 

Balance as at 31 March 2020                     140.42 80.70                                38,159.21                     505.90 39,395.28            (537.15)            56.24            77,800.60   

Amount transferred on exercise/forfeiture of employee stock 

options
-                            -                              (41.81)                      

41.81                    -                       -                    -                 

Profit for the year                             - -                                                     - -                              6,110.12                -                       -                    6,110.12      

Other comprehensive income                             -                         -                               -                               - 82.72                                   502.72             (44.81) 540.63         

Income-tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                             -                         -                               -                               - (20.82)                                          -                     - (20.82)         

Income-tax on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                             -                         -                               -                               - -                                        (126.53)              11.28 (115.25)        

Total comprehensive income                             -                         -                               -                               - 6,172.02                           376.19            (33.53) 6,514.68     

Shares allotted during the year                   (140.42)                         -                         96.63                               - -                                                  -                     - (43.79)         

Share-based payment expense                             - -                                                     - 242.00                     -                           -                       -                    242.00         

Balance as at 31 March 2021 -                            80.70                38,255.84               706.09                    45,609.11            (160.96)            22.71            84,513.49   

Amount transferred on exercise/forfeiture of employee stock 

options
                            - 

-                              (58)                          58.00                    -                       -                    -                 

Profit for the year                             - -                       -                              -                              622.63                   -                       -                    622.63         

Other comprehensive income                             - -                       -                                                            - 158.55                   171.48              207.48           537.51         

Income-tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                             - -                       -                                                            - (39.91)                   -                       -                    (39.91)         

Income-tax on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                             - -                       -                                                            - -                        (43.16)               (52.22)            (95.38)         

Total comprehensive income                             - -                       -                              -                              741.27                 128.32             155.26          1,024.85     

Shares allotted during the year                             - -                       299.81                     -                              -                           -                       -                    299.81         

Share-based payment expense                           -   -                                                     - 224.08                     -                           -                       -                    224.08         

Balance as at 31 March 2022 -                            80.70                38,555.65               872.17                    46,408.38            (32.64)              177.97          86,062.23   

See accompanying notes forming part of these consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Sai Life Sciences Limited

Firm Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018 CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

Sathya P. Koushik Dr. K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju

Partner Chairman Managing Director

Membership No.: 206920 DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A13721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad

Date: 17 August 2022 Date: 17 August 2022

Total

Equity  Preference 

Reserves and Surplus Other comprehensive income

 Shares pending 

allotment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 

2022 

Corporate information 

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of Sai Life Sciences Limited (“Sai Life” 

or “the Parent Company” or “the Company”), its subsidiaries (collectively, referred to as the “Group”). Sai Life 

Sciences Limited is a closely held public limited company domiciled and incorporated in India in accordance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is situated in Hyderabad, 

Telangana and has facilities in the states of Telangana, Karnataka and Maharashtra, India. 

 

The group carries out contract research and manufacturing activities for customers engaged in pharmaceutical and 

biotechnology industries.  

 

1. Basis of preparation 

Statement of compliance 

 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company which comprise of the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 

and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in 

equity (“consolidated financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (“Ind AS”) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) and 

other relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where 

a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a 

change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.  

 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared for the Group as a going concern on the basis of relevant 

Ind AS that are effective at the Group’s annual reporting date 31 March 2022. These consolidated financial 

statements were authorised for issuance by the Group’s Board of Directors on 17th August, 2022. 

 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual 

basis except for the following material items in the balance sheet: 

 

• Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value; 

• Net defined benefit assets / (liability) are measured at fair value of plan assets, less present value of defined 

benefit obligations; and  

• Share based payments, which are measured at fair value of the options. 

 

Functional and presentation currency 

 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘INR’ or ‘₹’) which is also the functional and 

presentation currency of the Group. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the 

nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated. In respect of subsidiaries whose operations are self-contained and integrated 

within their respective countries/regions, the functional currency has been determined to be the local currency of 

those countries/regions. 

2.  Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts 

of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 

statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change 
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from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made 

as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are 

reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which such changes are made and in any future 

periods affected. 

 

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

 

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the directors have made in 

the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 

recognised in the financial statements.  

 

Revenue recognition 

 

The Group applies judgement to determine whether each product or service promised to a customer are capable of 

being distinct, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the promised product or services are combined 

and accounted as a single performance obligation. Revenue will be recognised as the customer obtains control of 

the product and services promised in the Contract. Given the nature of the product and terms and conditions in case 

of certain contracts, the customer obtains control as the Group performs the work under the contract. Therefore, 

revenue is recognised over time for such contracts and for other contracts at a point in time. The Group uses the 

percentage of completion method to measure progress towards completion in respect of fixed price contracts. When 

estimates indicate that a loss will be incurred, the loss is provided for in the period in which the loss becomes 

probable. 

 

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies 

that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included 

in the following notes: 

 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, 

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 

the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available 

when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 

developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of 

the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

 

Items requiring 

significant estimate 

Assumption and estimation uncertainty 

Useful lives of 

property, plant and 

equipment and 

Intangible assets 

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

and the intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. During the current 

year, there has been no change in life considered for the assets. 

Estimation of net 

realisable value of 

inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In estimating 

the net realisable value of inventories the Group makes an estimate of future 

selling prices and costs necessary to make the sale. 

Fair valuation 

measurement and 

valuation process 

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial 

reporting purposes. 

 

 

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-

observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, 

the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. Finance 



                  
                                                                

120 

Items requiring 

significant estimate 

Assumption and estimation uncertainty 

team works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate 

valuation techniques and inputs to the model. 

 

Contract assets Contract asset is recognised when the performance obligations are fulfilled and 

revenue is recognised over a period of time. Estimates are involved in determining 

the percentage of completion of the contract. 

Leases Contracts are reviewed to evaluate whether the arrangement contains a lease 

Employee benefits  The Group uses actuarial assumptions to determine the obligations for employee 

benefits at each reporting period. These assumptions include the discount rate, 

expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, rate of increase in compensation 

levels and mortality rates. 

Provisions, 

contingencies - 

Recognition and 

measurement of 

provisions and 

contingencies; key 

assumptions about the 

likelihood and 

magnitude of an 

outflow of resources 

The Group has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third 

parties. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable 

estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s 

assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, 

management provides for its best estimate of the tax liability. Such accruals are 

by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve 

estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is disclosed in the notes 

to the consolidated financial statements.  

Provision for taxes Significant judgments are required in determining the provision for income taxes, 

including the amount expected to be paid/ recovered for uncertain tax positions.  

 

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, the Management 

considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not 

be realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred income tax assets is dependent 

upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the 

temporary differences become deductible. The amount of deferred income tax 

assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the near term if 

estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced. 

 

3. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 

 

Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights 

to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 

over the entity. The consolidated financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial 

statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. The consolidated 

financial statements of the Group are consolidated on line-by-line basis. Intra-group transactions, balances and any 

unrealised gains arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated, but only to 

the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. All temporary differences that arise from the elimination of 

profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions are recognised as per Ind AS 12, Income Taxes. For the 

purpose of preparing these consolidated financial statements, the accounting policies of subsidiaries has been kept 

consistent with the policies adopted by the Group.  
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Non-controlling interests (NCI) are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at 

the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control 

are accounted for as equity transactions. 

 

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any 

related NCI and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value 

at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

 

Following are the subsidiaries considered in these consolidated financial statements: 

 

Name of the subsidiary % of holding by Parent Country of Incorporation 

Sai Life Sciences Inc 100 USA 

Sai Life Pharma Private Limited 100 India 

Sai Life Sciences GMBH 100 Germany 

4.   Summary of significant accounting policies 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies and measurement basis 

summarized below. 

 

a.   Current and non-current classification 

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating 

cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. The Group presents assets and liabilities in the 

consolidated balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.  

 

An asset is classified as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period 

 

A liability is classified as current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 

 

Current assets / liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets / liabilities respectively. All other 

assets / liabilities including deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

 

b.   Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Group at exchange rates at 

the dates of the transactions or at the rate that closely approximates the rate at the date of transactions. The date 

of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, 

expense or income (part of it) is the date on which the entity initially recognises the nonmonetary asset or non-

monetary liability arising from payment or receipt of advance consideration Monetary assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting period are translated into the functional currency at the 

exchange rate at that date. Gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency 
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denominated monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary 

assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not translated. 

 

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates 

different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit 

and loss in the year in which they arise, except in case of exchange differences relating to long-term foreign 

currency monetary items, to the extent they are used for financing the acquisition of property, plant and 

equipment (“PPE”) and drawn on or before 1 April 2016, are added to or subtracted from the cost of such PPE. 

In accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards the entity continues the 

above accounting treatment in respect of the long-term foreign currency monetary items recognised in the 

financial statements as on 31 March 2016. 

 

Foreign operations  

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations (subsidiaries) including goodwill and fair value adjustments 

arising on acquisition, are translated into INR, the functional currency of the Group, at the exchange rates at the 

reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into INR at the exchange rates at 

the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the 

transaction. Foreign currency translation differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity (as 

exchange differences on translating the consolidated financial statements of a foreign operation), except to the 

extent that the exchange differences are allocated to NCI. 

 

c.   Revenue recognition 

 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

 

Sale of Services: In contracts involving the rendering of services/ development contracts, revenue is recognised 

at the point in time in which services are rendered. In case of fixed price contracts, the customer pays a fixed 

amount based on the payment schedule and the Group recognises revenue on the basis of input method. If the 

services rendered by the Group exceed the payment, a Contract asset (Unbilled Revenue) is recognised. If the 

payments exceed the services rendered, a contract liability (Deferred Revenue and Advance from Customers) 

is recognised. If the contracts involve time-based billing, revenue is recognised in the amount to which the 

Group has a right to invoice.  

 

Contributions received from customers towards items of property, plant and equipment which require an 

obligation to supply services in the future to the customer over a specified period, is recognised as revenue from 

operations over the specified period. The Group capitalises the gross cost of these assets as the Group controls 

these assets. 

 

Sale of goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group transfers Control of the product. 

Control of the product transfers upon shipment of the product to the customer or when the product is made 

available to the customer, provided transfer of title to the customer occurs and the Group has not retained any 

significant risks of ownership or future obligations with respect to the product shipped. Amounts disclosed as 

revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and indirect taxes. 

 

‘Bill and hold’ sales, in which delivery is delayed at the buyer’s request but the buyer takes title and accepts 

billing, revenue is recognised when the buyer takes title, provided: 

(a) it is probable that delivery will be made; 

(b) the item is on hand, identified and ready for delivery to the buyer at the time the sale is recognised; 

(c) the buyer specifically acknowledges the deferred delivery instructions; and 

(d) the usual payment terms apply. 
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Revenue is not recognized when there is simply an intention to acquire or manufacture the goods in time for 

delivery. 

 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate 

applicable. For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective 

interest rate (EIR) method. 

 

Dividend income 

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally, 

when shareholders approve the dividend. 

 

Export incentives 

Export incentives are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is 

established in respect of the exports made and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate 

collection of the relevant export proceeds. 

 

d.   Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met 

and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, and estimated 

costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

 

Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items initially recognized in the period 

ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period as per the previous 

GAAP are capitalised. 

 

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate 

items (major components) of PPE.  

 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of PPE is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 

expenditure will flow to the Group. 

 

Depreciation  

Depreciation on items of PPE is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful lives as 

estimated by the management which coincides with the useful lives mentioned in Schedule II to the Companies 

Act, 2013. Freehold land is not depreciated. 

 

The estimated useful lives of the assets are based on a technical evaluation reflecting actual usage of assets. 

 

Asset Category Estimated useful life (in years) 

Buildings  30  

Leasehold improvements Over the lease period  

Plant and equipment 15-20  

Furniture 10 

Freehold Vehicles 8-10 

Freehold Computers 3 
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Items of PPE acquired wholly or partly with specific grant / subsidy from government (or) customers, are 

recorded at the acquisition cost to the Group and the amount received under the grant pending donor approval 

or conditions to be fulfilled is disclosed as a liability. 

 

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / up to the date on which asset is 

ready for use / disposed-off. 

 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year-end and 

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

 

e.   Intangible assets 

Internally generated 

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

 

Development expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure 

can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic 

benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to 

use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 

accumulated impairment losses.  

 

Others 

Other intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, such intangible assets are measured at cost 

less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is 

capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. 

All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in 

consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

 

The intangible assets are amortized over a period of 6 years, on a straight line basis. 

 

f.    Impairment  

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to 

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s 

recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. 

 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 

less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been 

adjusted. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 

that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets 

or groups of assets. 

 

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss if the estimated recoverable 

amount of an asset or its cash generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. If, at the reporting date there is 

an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed 

and reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 

have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been previously 

recognised. 
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Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and 

recognition of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost. 

 

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal 

to lifetime expected credit losses. For all other financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 

12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case 

those are measured at lifetime ECL. 

 

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the 

assets. 

 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Group assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not be 

recoverable. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment 

loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount in the 

consolidated statement of profit and loss. The Group’s non-financial assets, inventories and deferred tax assets, 

are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 

indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  

 

g.   Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The method of determining cost of various 

categories of inventories is as follows: 

(i) Raw materials – Weighted average cost. Cost includes purchase cost and other attributable expenses 

(ii) Stores and spares and packing material – Weighted average cost 

(iii) Finished goods and work-in-process - is based on average cost of production or conversion which 

comprises direct material costs, direct wages and applicable overheads.  

 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 

completion and selling expenses. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to 

the selling prices of related finished products. 

 

Chemicals, reagents and consumables held for use in the production of finished products / rendering of services 

are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the 

cost of the finished products / services will exceed their net realisable value. 

 

h.   Measurement of fair values 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 

available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 

unobservable inputs. 

 

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both 

financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value 

hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows. 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
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When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value 

hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value 

hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

 

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period 

during which the change has occurred.  

 

i.    Financial instruments 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial 

liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. 

 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value and, for an item not at fair value through 

profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 

• amortised cost; 

• fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) – debt investment; 

• FVOCI – equity investment; or 

• FVTPL 

 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group 

changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

 

Amortised cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated 

as at FVTPL: 

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; 

and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in Other 

Income in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in 

the consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

 

FVOCI – debt investment 

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as 

at FVTPL: 

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 

flows and selling financial assets; and 
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• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 

at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the 

Group recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 

consolidated statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to consolidated statement of profit and loss. Interest earned 

whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

 

FVTOCI - Equity investment 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to 

present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVTOCI – equity investment). 

This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 

 

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 

Instrument, including foreign exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There 

is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may 

transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are 

measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

 

FVTPL 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. 

This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a 

financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at 

FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

 

Financial liabilities  

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as 

at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial 

recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any 

interest expense, are recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign 

exchange gains and losses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on 

derecognition is also recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

 

De-recognition  

Financial assets 

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired 

or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; or the Group has neither transferred 

nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset. 

 

Financial liabilities 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or 

expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under 

the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms 

is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished 

and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 

Derivative financial instruments: 

 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 

subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent 

changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the 

nature of the item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated.  

 

The Group designates their derivatives as hedges of foreign exchange risk associated with the cash flows of 

highly probable forecast transactions and variable interest rate risk associated with borrowings (cash flow 

hedges).  

 

The Group documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the economic relationship between hedging 

instruments and hedged items including whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes in cash 

flows of hedged items. The group documents its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking 

various hedge transactions at the inception of each hedge relationship. 

 

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining 

maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when the 

remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are also classified as a 

current asset or liability when expected to be realised/settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date. 

 

 

(i) Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting 

 

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow 

hedges is recognised in the other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve within equity, limited 

to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item on a present value basis from the inception of the 

hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within 

other gains/(losses). 

 

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the group designates only the intrinsic value of 

the option contract as the hedging instrument.  

 

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change in intrinsic value of the option contracts are 

recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of the option contracts 

that relate to the hedged item ('aligned time value') are recognised within other comprehensive income in the 

costs of hedging reserve within equity. 

 

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the group generally designates only the change 

in fair value of the forward contract related to the spot component as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses 

relating to the effective portion of the change in the spot component of the forward contracts are recognised in 

other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The change in the forward element 

of the contract that relates to the hedged item ('aligned forward element') is recognised within other 

comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity. In some cases, the entity may designate 

the full change in fair value of the forward contract (including forward points) as the hedging instrument. In 

such cases, the gains and losses relating to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the entire forward 

contract are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity. 
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Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects 

profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). 

 

When the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example 

inventory), the amounts accumulated in equity are transferred to profit or loss as follows: 

 

• With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the intrinsic value of option contracts, 

both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the deferred aligned time value of the option contracts 

are included within the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in 

profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, through cost of sales). 

 

• With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the spot component of forward contracts, 

both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the deferred aligned forward points are included within 

the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in profit or loss as the 

hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, through cost of sales). 

 

• The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the interest rate swaps hedging variable rate 

borrowings is recognised in profit or loss within 'finance cost'. 

 

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for 

hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at that time 

remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to 

occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in equity are immediately 

reclassified to profit or loss within other gains/(losses). Hedge ineffectiveness is recognised in profit and loss 

within other gains/(losses).  

 

If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective 

remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will be 

rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the hedging instrument or the volume of the hedged item so that 

the hedge ratio aligns with the ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is 

calculated and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing. 

 

(ii) Derivatives that are not designated as hedges 

 

The Group enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such 

contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses). 

 

Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Group 

The Group recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Group when the 

distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporate 

laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is 

recognised directly in equity. 

 

j.    Leases 

 

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 

Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys 

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 

determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement 

at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is 
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dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, 

even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.  

 

 

Company as a lessee  

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, 

a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange 

for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the 

Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has 

substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the 

Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the 

lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The determination of whether an 

arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. 

The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 

asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly 

specified in an arrangement. At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-

use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except 

for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term 

and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line 

basis over the term of the lease. 

 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 

adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 

costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis 

over the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. The lease liability is initially measured at amortised 

cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate 

implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of 

domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right 

of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination 

option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 

have been classified as financing cash flows.  

 

Company as a lessor  

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset 

are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over 

the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are 

added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental 

income. Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 

transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as 

receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting 

periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the 

lease. 

 

k.   Business combination 

 

The Group accounts for its business combinations under acquisition method of accounting, where applicable. 

Acquisition related costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The acquiree’s 

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for recognition are recognised at 

their fair values at the acquisition date. 
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Purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Where 

the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the cost of acquisition, after reassessing the fair values 

of the net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognised as capital reserve. 

 

Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred. 

 

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under common control are 

accounted at historical cost. The difference between any consideration given and the aggregate historical 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity is recorded in shareholders’ equity. 

 

l.    Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the consolidated balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 

in value. 

m. Government Grants 

The Group recognises government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached 

to them will be complied with, and the grants will be received. Government grants received in relation to assets 

are recognised as deferred income and amortized over the useful life of such asset. Grants related to Income are 

recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss as other operating revenues. 

n.  Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency 

borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with 

the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which 

necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost 

of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.  

 

o.   Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions 

into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. 

Eligible employees of the Group receive benefits from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. 

Both the eligible employees and the Group make monthly contributions to the Government administered 

provident fund scheme equal to a specified percentage of the eligible employee’s salary. Amounts collected 

under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a government administered provident fund. The Group has 

no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions. 

 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed during the 

period as the related service is provided. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. A 

liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Group has a present legal or constructive 

obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation 

can be estimated reliably. 

 

Long-term employee benefits 

Employee benefits payable after twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as long-term 

employee benefits. These benefits primarily include one-off retention incentive and long-term bonus provision, 

in accordance with the policy of the Group. The Group accrues these costs based on the expected payout and 

the same is amortised over a period of services. 
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Gratuity 

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (“the Gratuity Plan”) covering the eligible employees 

of the Group. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, 

incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary 

and the tenure of the employment with the Group. Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan is determined by 

actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit 

credit method. The defined benefit plan is administered by a trust formed for this purpose through the Group 

gratuity scheme. The Group recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability in its 

consolidated balance sheet. Gains or losses through re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability are 

recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods. 

The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate 

used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of any 

plan amendments are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The net interest on net defined 

benefit liability which reflects the change in net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time is 

considered as finance cost and disclosed under “Finance costs” 

 

Compensated absences 

The Group’s policy permits employees to accumulate and carry forward a portion of unutilized compensated 

absences and utilize them in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof in accordance with the terms of such 

policy. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation 

performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet. 

 

Share based compensation 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using 

an appropriate valuation model. The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted 

to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period 

that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based 

on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are 

expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards 

that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. 

 

p.   Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable 

estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each 

reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, 

where the time value of money is material.  

 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the 

Group; or 

 

• Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

 

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually 

certain, related asset is recognized. 
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q.   Income taxes 

Tax expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss consists of current and deferred tax except to the 

extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in OCI or 

directly in equity respectively. 

 

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted for the reporting period and 

any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where 

the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 

the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they 

reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax liability are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 

generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that is probable that taxable profits 

will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and 

liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against 

current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 

same tax authority on the Group. 

 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 

that the related tax benefit will be realised. Withholding tax arising out of payment of dividends to shareholders 

under the Indian Income tax regulations is not considered as tax expense for the Group and all such taxes are 

recognised in the statement of changes in equity as part of the associated dividend payment. 

 

 

r.   Earnings per share 

 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is 

determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number 

of equity shares outstanding during the year for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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6. Property, plant and equipment

 Freehold 

land 

 Buildings  Leasehold 

improvements 

 Plant and 

equipment 

 Furnitures 

and fixtures* 

  Vehicles  Computers  Total 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance as at 1 April 2020 1,164.12        15,864.86     597.78            47,192.98     1,368.03        553.54     1,419.80     68,161.11  

Additions (refer note i below) 499.10           1,993.33      291.22            13,153.27     143.78           -          875.95        16,956.65  

Adjustments -                -              -                 -               (0.18)             -          -             (0.18)          

Disposals/retirement -                -              -                 505.38          9.17              -          -             514.55       

Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,663.22      17,858.19   889.00           59,840.87   1,502.46      553.54    2,295.75    84,603.03  

Additions (refer note i below) -                3,480.43      809.68            14,318.74     251.97           -          451.66        19,312.48  

Disposals/retirement 14.67            -              11.20              10,967.96     410.85           39.07       554.97        11,998.72  

Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,648.55      21,338.62   1,687.48        63,191.65   1,343.58      514.47    2,192.44    91,916.79  

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2020 -                1,166.26      456.09            7,385.49       312.53           526.15     633.69        10,480.21  

Charge for the year -                567.87         83.50              3,536.91       142.91           21.76       429.99        4,782.94    

Disposals/retirement -                -              -                 194.18          5.66              -          -             199.84       Balance as at 31 March

2021 -               1,734.13     539.59           10,728.22   449.78         547.91    1,063.68    15,063.31  

Charge for the year -                663.30         93.55              4,569.01       159.11           0.18         564.41        6,049.56    

Disposals/retirement -                -              0.26                3,043.84       173.79           39.07       229.25        3,486.21    

Balance as at 31 March 2022 -               2,397.43     632.88           12,253.39   435.10         509.02    1,398.84    17,626.66  

Net carrying amount

As at 31 March 2021 1,663.22      16,124.06   349.41           49,112.65   1,052.68      5.63        1,232.07    69,540.08  

As at 31 March 2022 1,648.55      18,941.19   1,054.60        50,938.26   908.48         5.45        793.60       74,290.13  

*Includes office equipment

Capital work-in-progress  :₹ 18,868.65 (31 March 2021: ₹ 19,400.39) (refer note i)
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Notes:

For the year ended March 

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

Projects in progress        12,593.25        4,976.31              920.89           378.20        18,868.65 

Projects temporarily suspended                   -                   -                      -                    -                     -   

Total      12,593.25      4,976.31            920.89          378.20      18,868.65 

For the year ended March 

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

Projects in progress        13,371.51        5,449.10              579.78                  -          19,400.39 

Projects temporarily suspended                   -                   -                      -                    -                     -   

Total      13,371.51      5,449.10            579.78                  -        19,400.39 

iii) Refer note 19 for details of property, plant and equipment subject to charge on secured borrowings.

i) Additions to capital work-in-progress and property, plant & equipment during the year ended 31 March 2022 includes borrowing cost amounting to

₹502.66  (31 March 2021: ₹226.20).
ii) Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule:

Particulars

Particulars

Note: There is no CWIP whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Amount in CWIP for a period of
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7. Right-of-use assets 

Leasehold 

land
Buildings Vehicles

Plant and 

equipment
Computers Total

Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2020     1,392.59      6,852.83      2,647.57        546.71          371.09    11,810.79 

Additions during the year                -          2,259.36          908.44                -             537.82        3,705.62 

Disposals/retirement                -          1,103.53       1,156.15           43.94                 -          2,303.62 

Balance as at 31 March 2021     1,392.59      8,008.66      2,399.86        502.77          908.91    13,212.79 

Additions during the year                -        11,728.93          700.83       8,002.48           682.71      21,114.95 

Disposals/retirement                -          1,797.35          248.61             46.16        2,092.12 

Balance as at 31 March 2022     1,392.59    17,940.24      2,852.08     8,505.25       1,545.46    32,235.62 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2020          72.80      4,004.45      1,564.70            8.76          320.91      5,971.62 

Charge for the year           31.27        1,843.94          976.40           36.04             37.77        2,925.42 

Disposals/retirement                -             294.41          634.26                -                   -            928.67 

Balance as at 31 March 2021        104.07      5,553.98      1,906.84          44.80          358.68      7,968.37 

Charge for the year           26.78        1,539.20          791.76           37.64           247.00        2,642.38 

Disposals/retirement                -             270.26          214.39                -                   -            484.65 

Balance as at 31 March 2022        130.85      6,822.92      2,484.21          82.44          605.68    10,126.10 

Net carrying amount

As at 31 March 2021     1,288.52      2,454.68         493.02        457.97          550.23      5,244.42 

As at 31 March 2022     1,261.74    11,117.32         367.87     8,422.81          939.78    22,109.52 

8. Other intangible assets

 Acquired software  Total 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance as at 1 April 2020 1,014.76                            1,014.76                 

Additions during the year 244.77                                244.77                     

Disposals/retirement -                                     -                          

Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,259.53                            1,259.53                 

Additions during the year 571.59                                571.59                     

Disposals/retirement -                                     -                          

Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,831.12                            1,831.12                 

Accumulated amortization

Balance as at 1 April 2020 453.15                               453.15                    

Charge for the year 248.88                                248.88                     

Disposals/retirement -                                     -                          

Balance as at 31 March 2021 702.03                               702.03                    

Charge for the year 324.08                                324.08                     

Disposals/retirement -                                     -                          

Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,026.11                            1,026.11                 

Net carrying amount

As at 31 March 2021 557.50                               557.50                    

As at 31 March 2022 805.01                               805.01                    
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9. Investments

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Non-current

Investment in equity instruments 

Others( at fair value through OCI)

                    0.50                    0.50 

                    1.09                    1.09 

Total investment in others (at fair value through OCI) (B)                    1.59                   1.59 

Total non-current investments (A) + (B)                    1.59                   1.59 

Aggregate value of unquoted investments                     1.59                    1.59 

10. Other financial assets

Non-current

Fixed Deposits with maturity more than 12 months* -                     50.00                

Security deposits 305.20                372.64               

305.20               422.64             

*Represents deposits held as margin money with banks.

Current

Unbilled revenue* 3,627.17             1,336.49            

Derivative financial asset - FVTOCI 248.36                45.06                

Fixed Deposits 10,000.00            12,500.00          

Interest accrued but not due on bank deposits 284.45                494.77               

Security deposits 159.88                405.54               

14,319.86          14,781.86        

*Classified as financial asset as right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time

11. Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 1,381.17             1,284.35            

1,381.17            1,284.35          

Refer Note 35 for details of income tax expense

12. Other assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Non-current

Capital advances 698.47                1,000.39            

Prepaid expenses 241.47                244.78               

Balances with statutory authorities 2,214.41             3,285.82            

Tax demand paid under protest 398.67                398.67               

3,553.02            4,929.66          

Current

Advance to suppliers 909.04                1,293.22            

Prepaid expenses 1,500.92             719.46               

Contract assets* 21,015.63            20,293.06          

Balances with statutory authorities 6,327.97             6,704.59            

Export incentives receivable 48.69                  652.39               

Other Receivables 231.91                43.50                

30,034.16          29,706.22        

Jeedimetla Effluent Treatment Limited

500 (31 March 2021: 500) equity shares of ₹100 each fully paid-up

Patancheru Envirotech Limited                                     

10,878 (31 March 2021: 10,878) equity shares of ₹10 each fully paid-up
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13. Inventories  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

7,536.02             2,997.58            

3,928.93             3,645.92            

1,226.33             991.08               

12,691.28          7,634.58          

Refer note 4(g) for basis of valuation and for details of inventories pledged, refer note 19

14. Trade receivables

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

(a) Considered good 24,290.40            20,578.69          

(b) Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 1,205.98             668.66               

25,496.38          21,247.35        

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables 1,205.98             668.66               

24,290.40          20,578.69        

Refer Note 38B for the Company’s credit risk management process.

Stores and spares 

Raw materials and packing materials

Work-in-progress 

Trade receivables Aging:

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Not due Less than 6 

months

6 months - 

1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered 

good 17,742.97   5,629.56             569.98     347.89              -                   -       24,290.40 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which 

have significant increase in credit risk -            -                           -       274.00        249.56           682.42       1,205.98 

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit 

impaired -            -                           -              -                -                   -                  -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– considered 

good -            -                           -              -                -                   -                  -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk -            -                           -              -                -                   -                  -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit 

impaired -            -                           -              -                -                   -                  -   

Total  17,742.97     5,629.56       569.98    621.89      249.56          682.42   25,496.38 

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Not due
Less than 6 

months

6 months - 

1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered 

good 15,810.78   3,199.67      851.05       504.33    28.10        184.76             20,578.69 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which 

have significant increase in credit risk -            -             -            -         -           668.66                 668.66 

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit 

impaired -            -             -            -         -           -                             -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– considered 

good -            -             -            -         -           -                             -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk -            -             -            -         -           -                             -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit 

impaired -            -             -            -         -           -                             -   

Total  15,810.78     3,199.67       851.05    504.33        28.10          853.42   21,247.35 

Particulars

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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15. Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1.24                    2.30                 

Balances with banks 

-in current accounts 5,926.74              6,672.93           

Others 5,666.04              -                   

11,594.02          6,675.23          

(ii) Bank balances other than above

1,435.21              965.96              

1,435.21            965.96             

(iii)

Cash and cash equivalents (as per (i) above) 11,594.02            6,675.23           

Cash credit facilities (refer note 19) (16.53)                 (2,612.74)          

11,577.49          4,062.49          

16. Loans

(Unsecured, considered good)

Current

Loans to employees 55.31                  18.82                

55.31                 18.82               

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of 

following:

Margin money/Deposit

17. Equity share capital

i. Authorised share capital

Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares of ₹10 each 2,03,00,000       2,030.00        2,03,00,000       2,030.00        

Optionally convertible preference shares of ₹10 each 6,00,000           60.00            6,00,000            60.00             

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of ₹10 each 5,00,000           50.00            5,00,000            50.00             

2,14,00,000    2,140.00      2,14,00,000     2,140.00       

ii. Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares of ₹10 each 1,75,56,306       1,755.63        1,74,29,579       1,742.96        

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of 

₹ 10 each 

4,80,000           38.69            4,80,000            38.69             

1,80,36,306    1,794.32      1,79,09,579     1,781.65       

As at 

31 March 2022

As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2022

As at 

31 March 2021
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iii. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,74,29,579       1,742.96        1,63,82,929       1,638.29        

Add: Shares issued during the year 1,26,727           12.67            10,46,650          104.67           

Balance at the end of the year 1,75,56,306    1,755.63      1,74,29,579     1,742.96       

Number Amount Number Amount

Preference shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,80,000           38.69            -                   -                

Add: Shares issued during the year-CCPS -                  -                4,80,000            38.69             

Balance at the end of the year 4,80,000         38.69           4,80,000          38.69            

1,80,36,306    1,794.32      1,79,09,579     1,781.65       

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

iv. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

v. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares

vi. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

Name of the equity shareholders Number % holding Number % holding

TPG ASIA VII SF PTE LTD 76,20,180         43.40% 76,20,180     43.72%

Kanumuri Mytreyi (a Partner of Marigold Partners) 17,82,378         10.15% 17,82,378     10.23%

Ranga Raju Kanumuri (a Partner of Sunflower Partners) 11,40,729         6.50% 11,40,729     6.54%

Sai Quest Syn Private Limited 10,68,748         6.09% 10,68,748     6.13%

HBM Private Equity India 10,55,732         6.01% 10,55,732     6.06%

G. Subba Raju 9,38,730           5.35% 9,38,730      5.39%

vii. Details of shares held by the promoters of the Company:

Name of the promoters Number % holding Number % holding  % Change 

in holding 

Ranga Raju Kanumuri (a Partner of Sunflower Partners) 11,40,729         6.50% 11,40,729     6.54% 0.04%

Ranga Raju Kanumuri (a Partner of  Lily Partners) 5,10,499           2.91% 5,10,499      2.93% 0.02%

Kanumuri Mytreyi (a Partner of Marigold Partners) 17,82,378         10.15% 17,82,378     10.23% 0.08%

Kanumuri Mytreyi (a Partner of Tulip Partners) 7,42,262           4.23% 7,42,262      4.26% 0.03%

K Krishnam Raju 2,95,000           1.68% 2,95,000      1.69% 0.01%

Sai Quest Syn  Pvt Ltd. 10,68,748         6.09% 10,68,748     6.13% 0.04%

G.L.Tanuja 1,30,121           0.74% 1,30,121      0.75% 0.01%

G. Subba Raju 9,38,730           5.35% 9,38,730      5.39% 0.04%

K Sudha 50,000              0.28% 50,000         0.29% 0.01%

Continental Wines Pvt Ltd 1,967               0.01% 1,967           0.01% 0.00%

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the

Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity

shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights

cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount

called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to

receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity

shares held.

31 March 2022

 The Company has two classes of preference shares viz, CCPS and OCPS. The preference shares are entitled to receive dividend @ 

0.01% as declared from time to time on a non-cumulative basis. The said shares are partly paid to the tune of INR 8.06 per share and the 

same will be treated as fully paid-up upon receiving the payment on final call made for INR 1.94 per share. 

31 March 2021
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viii. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% preferance shares CCPS in the Company

Name of the Preferance shareholders Number % holding Number % holding

Kanumuri Mytreyi (a Partner of Marigold Partners) 1,68,134        35.03% 1,68,134    35.03%

Ranga Raju Kanumuri (a Partner of Sunflower Partners) 1,67,866        34.97% 1,67,866    34.97%

Kanumuri Mytreyi (a Partner of  Tulip Partners) 72,058           15.01% 72,058      15.01%

Ranga Raju Kanumuri (a Partner of  Lily Partners) 71,942           14.99% 71,942      14.99%

ix. Shares reserved for issue under options

(a)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Sai Employee stock option scheme - 2008 ("SESOS 2008")

The Company established a plan SESOS approved by the Shareholders at the Annual and Extraordinary General Meetings held on 11 

September 2008 and 30 March 2009 respectively. As per the scheme, maximum number of employee stock options are restricted to 

10% of paid up share capital of the Company. Out of which, 50% of the options granted shall vest at the end of two years from the 

grant date and the balance 50% of the options shall vest at the end of four years from the grant date. The vested options can be 

exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

Under this scheme, the company granted additional employee stock options approved by the Shareholders at the Extraordinary 

General Meeting  held on 25 July 2018.  The options granted shall vest 20% at the end of every year from the grant date  for a period 

of 5 years. The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

Management ESOP scheme - 2018 ("MES 2018")

The Company established a plan MES 2018 approved by the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 July 2018. 

As per the scheme maximum number of shares reserved under this scheme is 4% of the paid up equity capital of the Company on a 

fully diluted basis as on the Effective Date. The options granted shall vest 20% at the end of every year from the grant date  for a 

period of 5 years. The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

Amended Management ESOP scheme - 2018 ("Amended MES 2018")

The Company amended the plan MES 2018 approved by the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 March 

2022. The amendment has similar terms as the MES 2018 scheme wherein the maximum number of shares reserved under this 

scheme is 4% of the paid up equity capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis as on the Effective Date. The options granted shall 

vest in a period of 5 years and as per the terms provided in the Notice of Grant. The vested options can be exercised by the employee 

during his term of employment with the Company. 

The rate of dividend is 0.001% p.a. on a non-cumulative basis for Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) and 

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS) of Rs. 10/- each. Subsequent to year ended March 31, 2022, the Board of 

Directors of the Company approved dividend payout of not more than Rs.100 per share on the CCPS and OCPS of Rs.10/- each in 

their meeting on 20-June-2022.

Further, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 20-June-2022, Declared Interim dividend of Rs. 345 lakhs (Rs. 39.63 per 

preference share) for the financial year ended 31-Mar-22.

Employee stock option plan - 2004 ("ESOP 2004")

The Company established a plan ESOP 2004 under which 300,000 equity shares of ₹10 each were earmarked and approved by the

Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 13 September 2004. These options shall vest at the end of three years

from the grant date. The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

Employee stock option plan - 2006 ("ESOP 2006")

The Company established a plan ESOP 2006 under which 350,000 equity shares of ₹10 each were earmarked and approved by the

Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 16 August 2006. 60% of the options granted shall vest at the end of three years

from the grant date and 40% of the options granted shall vest at the end of five years from the grant date. The vested options can be

exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

The terms of the above schemes provide that each option entitles the holder to one equity share of ₹10 each and that the options can 

be settled only by way of issue of equity shares. The options granted are entirely time-based for ESOP 2004, ESOP 2006, SESOS 

2008 MES 2018 and Amended MES 2018 is time and performance based.
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(b)

(c)

Under ESOP 2004 plan  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,000                  5,000                 

Granted during the year -                        -                       

Forfeited during the year -                        (3,000)               

Exercised during the year -                        -                       

Outstanding at the end of the year 2,000                  2,000                 

Weighted average exercise price (₹) 30                      30                     

Exercisable at the end of the year 2,000                  2,000                 

Under ESOP 2006 plan  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 Outstanding at the beginning of the year 49                      49                     

Granted during the year -                        -                       

Forfeited during the year -                        -                       

Exercised during the year (49)                     -                       

Outstanding at the end of the year -                        49                     

Weighted average exercise price (₹) 45                      45                     

Exercisable at the end of the year -                        49                     

Under SESOS 2008 scheme  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 Outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,07,000             4,52,400            

Granted during the year -                        -                       

Forfeited during the year (11,250)               (25,000)              

Exercised during the year (1,16,500)            (20,400)              

Outstanding at the end of the year 2,79,250             4,07,000            

Weighted average exercise price (in Rupees)
 83,104,116,120 & 

284 

 83,104,116,120 

& 284 
Exercisable at the end of the year 2,79,250             4,07,000            

Under MES 2018 scheme  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,30,000             7,55,000            

Granted during the year -                        80,000               

Forfeited/Lapsed during the year (2,18,397)            (3,05,000)           

Exercised during the year (3,928)                -                       

Outstanding at the end of the year 3,07,675             5,30,000            

Weighted average exercise price (in Rupees) 1273 & 1889 1273 & 1889

Exercisable at the end of the year 3,07,675             5,30,000            

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had incurred stock compensation cost of ₹22.08 (31 March 2021:

₹242.00) towards the above schemes.

Stock options activity is as follows:

No. of options

No. of options
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Under Amended MES 2018 scheme  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year -                        -                       

Granted during the year 1,50,000             -                       

Forfeited during the year -                        -                       

Exercised during the year -                        -                       

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,50,000             -                       

Weighted average exercise price (₹) 1,273                  -                       

Exercisable at the end of the year 1,50,000             -                       

(d)

AMES 2018

Date of grant 25-Mar-22

Risk-free interest rate 6.00%

Expected life (in years) 5                        

Expected volatility 14.97%

Expected dividend yield 0.00%

Date of grant MES 2018 MES 2018 MES 2018

Risk-free interest rate 10-Jun-20 29-Sep-20 17-Feb-21

Expected life (in years) 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

Expected volatility 5                5                        5                       

Expected dividend yield 16.70% 16.70% 16.70%

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

x.

18. Other equity

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Securities premium (Note a) 38,555.65           38,255.84          

Capital reserve (Note b) 80.70                 80.70                

Employee stock options outstanding account (Note c) 872.17                706.09               

Retained earnings (Note d) 46,408.38           45,609.11          

Shares pending allotment (Note e) -                        -                    

Cash flow hedge reserve (Note f) (32.64)                (160.96)             

Foreign currency translation reserve (Note g) 177.97                22.71                

86,062.23         84,513.49        

The fair value of options is estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the 

following assumptions:

For the year ended 31 March 2021

During the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date, no shares have been bought back, issued for

consideration other than cash and no bonus shares have been issued.

For the year ended 31 March 2022

No. of options
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Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Securities premium 

(b) Capital reserve

(c) Employee stock options outstanding 

account

(d) Retained earnings

Movement in other equity

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

1) Securities premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 38,255.83           38,159.20          

Add: Amount on account of shares issued (net of related expenses) 299.81                96.63                

Balance at the end of the year 38,555.64         38,255.83        

2) Capital reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 80.70                 80.70                

Movement during the year -                     -                   

80.70                80.70               

3) Employee stock options outstanding account

Balance at the beginning of the year 706.09                505.90               

Amount transferred on exercise/forfeiture of employee stock options (58.16)                (41.81)               

Share-based payment expense 224.08                242.00               

872.01              706.09             

4) Retained earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 45,609.11           39,395.28          

Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tax) 118.64                61.90                

Amount transferred on exercise/forfeiture of employee stock options 58.16                 41.81                

Profit for the year 622.63                6,110.12            

46,408.54         45,609.11        

Employee stock options outstanding account relates to share options granted by the Company to its employees under its

employee share option plan. These will be transferred to retained earnings after exercise of the underlying options.

(f) Foreign currency translation reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve represents the exchange differences accumulated when the financial statements of

foreign operations are converted from their functional currency to presentation currency of the Company.

Capital reserve pertains to the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid pursuant to amalgamation of

Advantium Pharma Private Limited with the Company in the earlier years and on forfeiture of certain share warrants issued

in the earlier years. The Company uses capital reserve for transactions in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. During the year

ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company issued 1,26,727 and 10,46,650 equity shares respectively.

(e) Cash flow hedge reserve

Cash flow hedge reserve represents effective portion of cash flow hedges taken to Other comprehensive income.

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or

other distributions paid to shareholders.
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 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

5) Cash flow hedge reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year (160.96)              (537.15)             

Effective portion of cash flow hedges (net of tax) 128.32                376.19               

(32.64)               (160.96)            

6) Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 22.71                 56.24                

Movement during the year (net of tax) 155.26                (33.53)               

177.97              22.71               

19. Borrowings

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Non-current

(Secured - at amortized cost)

Term loans

From banks [refer note (i) to (xii)] 34,725.87           27,873.53          

34,725.87         27,873.53        

Less: Current maturities of long-term loans 5,008.84             3,229.56            

          29,717.03          24,643.97 

Terms and conditions of loans and nature of security

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv) Term loan (USD denominated) from State Bank of India amounting to ₹1,875.00 (31 March 2021: ₹2,715.34) is secured by

way of pari passu first charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future

including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both

present and future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate ranging from 8.47% to 10.3% per annum and is

repayable in unequal quarterly instalment commencing from September 2017 with last instalment falling due in March 2024.

CCECL (Demand loan) from SBI Bank amounting to ₹ Nil (31 March 2021: ₹ 480.00) is secured by way of pari passu

second charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including

equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu first charge on all current assets both present and future 

of the Company. This loan carries interest rate equal to MCLR per annum with monthly rests and was repayable in equal

Monthly instalments commencing from Octomber 2020 and the last repayment falling due in March 2022.

CCECL (Demand loan) from SBI Bank amounting to ₹ 1,875.79 (31 March 2021: ₹ Nil) is secured by way of pari passu

second charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including

equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu first charge on all current assets both present and future 

of the Company. This loan carries interest rate equal to 6 months MCLR per annum + 1% with monthly rests and was

repayable in equal Monthly instalments commencing from March 2022 and the last repayment falling due in March 2026.

Term loan (USD denominated) from State Bank of India amounting to ₹6,958.82 (31 March 2021: ₹Nil) is secured by way

of pari passu first charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future

including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both

present and future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate of 6 months MCLR +0.55% and is repayable in unequal

quarterly instalment commencing from June 2023 with last instalment falling due in March 2030.
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Working capital Term loan facility under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line from ICICI Bank amounting to ₹ 1,368.88 (31

March 2021: ₹ 1,398.00) is secured by way of pari passu second charge on all property, plant and equipment including other

intangible assets both present and future including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu

second charge on all current assets both present and future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate of MCLR +1%

or 9.00% per annum which ever is lower and was repayable in equal Monthly instalments commencing from March 2021

and the last repayment falling due in March 2026.

Term loan from Kotak Bank amounting to ₹ 7,500.00 (31 March 2021: ₹ 7,500.00) is secured by way of pari passu first

charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including equitable

mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both present and future of the 

Company. This loan carried interest rate of 7.35% per annum and was repayable in unequal quarterly instalments

commencing from November 2022 and the last repayment falling due in August 2027.

Term loan from HDFC Bank amounting to ₹ 4,625.00 (31 March 2021: ₹ 5,000.00) is secured by way of pari passu first

charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including equitable

mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both present and future of the 

Company. This loan carried interest rate of 9.00% per annum and was repayable in unequal quarterly instalments

commencing from July 2021 and the last repayment falling due in April 2026.

Term loans (USD denominated) from IndusInd Bank amounting to ₹551.45 (31 March 2021: ₹695.70) is secured by way of

pari passu first charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including

equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both present and

future of the Company. These loans carry interest rate ranging from 2.68% to 3.43% per annum and are repayable in

unequal quarterly instalments commencing from July 2017 with the last instalment falling due in March 2025.

Term loan from IndusInd Bank amounting to ₹ 262.85 (31 March 2021: ₹ 341.63) is secured by way of pari passu first

charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including equitable

mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both present and future of the 

Company. This loan carried interest rate ranging from 5.06% to 6.05% per annum and was repayable in unequal quarterly

instalments commencing from December 2017 and the last repayment falling due in March 2025.

Term loan (USD denominated) from Standard Chartered Bank Limited amounting to ₹ 1,444.08 (31 March 2021: ₹

2,321.70) is secured by way of pari passu first charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets

both present and future including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all

current assets both present and future of the Company. This loan carried interest rate ranging from 1.98% to 3.38% per

annum and is repayable in quarterly instalments commencing from November 2019 with the last instalment falling in August

2023.

The Company has used the borrowings for the purposes for which it was taken.

The quarterly returns of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with books of accounts.

Working capital Term loan facility under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line from Kotak Bank amounting to ₹ 1,139.00

(31 March 2021: ₹ Nil) is secured by way of pari passu second charge on all property, plant and equipment including other

intangible assets both present and future including equitable mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu

second charge on all current assets both present and future of the Company. This loan carries interest rate of 7.4% per

annum which ever is lower and was repayable in equal Monthly instalments commencing from April 2022 and the last

repayment falling due in March 2026.

Term loan from IndusInd Bank amounting to ₹ 7,125.00 (31 March 2021: ₹ 7,489.10) is secured by way of pari passu first

charge on all property, plant and equipment including other intangible assets both present and future including equitable

mortgage of the properties of the Company and pari passu second charge on all current assets both present and future of the 

Company. This loan carries interest rate of 7.35% linked to 6 months T-Bill Rate and was repayable in unequal quarterly

instalments commencing from March 2022 and the last repayment falling due in December 2028.



                  
                                                                

147 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  

(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

 

 
  

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Short term Borrowings

(Secured - at amortized cost)

Working capital loans from banks* 37,026.43           32,398.11          

Current maturities of long-term loans 5,008.84             3,229.56            

(Unsecured - at amortized cost)

Working capital loans repayable on demand - Buyers credit facility 3,379.50             3,398.13            

45,414.77         39,025.80        

* Includes cash credit facilities (16.53)                (2,612.74)           

20. Lease liabilities *

Non-current             18,956.58              2,696.00 

Current 2,456.14             1,063.99            

21,412.72         3,759.99          

*Refer note 45

21. Other financial liabilities

Non-current

Optionally convertible preference shares pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement 48.03                 48.03                

Derivative liabilities - FVTOCI 232.04                135.88               

280.07              183.91             

Current

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 106.22                152.62               

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 5.79                   9.11                  

Capital creditors (refer note (a) below) 812.50                2,453.47            

Derivative liabilities - FVTOCI 12.02                 76.69                

Refundable government grant (refer note (a) below) -                     -                       

Others -                     615.07               

936.53              3,306.96          

 
a) Capital creditors include outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises to the extent of ₹ 123.31 (31 March 

2021: ₹ 292.97) 

Note: The above borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of the Company's goods, book debts, movables and other 

assets. Interest rate ranges between 1.8% to 8% p.a and the loans are revolving on an annual basis.
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22. Provisions

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Non-current

Gratuity 1,396.11             1,365.74            

Compensated absences 497.02                543.53               

1,893.13           1,909.27          

Current

Gratuity 294.91                279.06               

Compensated absences 297.71                291.24               

592.62              570.30             

Employee benefits

The Company has the following post -employment benefits plans:

(a) Defined contribution plan

 For the year 

ended

31 March 2022 

 For the year 

ended

31 March 2021 

Contribution to provident fund 664.73                592.10               

Contribution to employees state insurance 5.42                   5.83                  

670.15              597.93             

(b) Gratuity

(i) Change in defined benefit obligation

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 1,644.80             1,436.80            

Current service cost 385.71                337.69               

Interest cost 86.14                 85.79                

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation

Loss/(gain) from change in financial assumptions (21.99)                41.71                

Loss/(gain) on account of experience adjustments (136.56)              (124.44)             

Past service cost -                     -                    

Benefits paid (267.08)              (132.75)             

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year             1,691.02            1,644.80 

(ii) Reconciliation of present value of obligation on the fair value of plan assets

Present value of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year (i) 1,691.02             1,644.80            

Funded status of the plans (ii) -                        -                       

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet (i)- (ii) 1,691.02           1,644.80          

The Company provides its employees with benefits under a defined benefit plan, referred to as the "Gratuity Plan". The

Gratuity Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive 15 day's last

drawn salary for each year of completed service (service of six months and above is rounded off as one year) at the time of

retirement/ exit, restricted to a sum of ₹ 20.00 in accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.This defined benefit plan

exposes the company to actuarial risk such as longevity, interest rate risk and market risk & inflation risk.

The following amount has been recognised as an expense in statement of profit and loss account of provident fund and other 

funds. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities
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 For the year 

ended

31 March 2022 

 For the year 

ended

31 March 2021 

(iii) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Included under finance cost

Interest cost 86.14                 85.79                

Included under employee benefits

Service cost 385.71                337.69               

Past service cost -                     -                    

                385.71                337.69 

Net gratuity costs                471.85               423.48 

(iv) Expense recognised in other comprehensive income

Recognised net actuarial loss/(gain) (158.55)              (82.72)               

             (158.55)               (82.72)

(v) Key actuarial assumptions

 For the year 

ended

31 March 2022 

 For the year 

ended

31 March 2021 

Discount rate 5.98% 5.70%

Salary escalation rate 10.00% 10.00%

Expected average remaining service 3.86 3.86

Mortality IALM (2012-14) 

Ultimate

IALM (2012-14) 

Ultimate

Attrition rate 20.00% 20.00%

Retirement age-years 58 58

(vi) Sensitivity analysis

Particulars Decrease in 

rate Increase in rate

Decrease in 

rate

Discount rate (+ / - 1% movement) 1,772.24     1,571.77             1,724.90            

Salary escalation rate (+ / - 1% movement) 1,628.40     1,710.22             1,583.19            

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation

Expected cash flows over the next : 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1 year 294.91                279.06               

2 - 5 years 888.99                862.12               

5 - 10 years 657.45                629.22               

Increase 

31 March 2022

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions

constant, would have resulted in the benefit obligation being as follows:

31 March 2021

1,616.88 

1,757.49 
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23. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

 As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :

Property, plant and equipment 4,912.63             4,697.72              

Contract assets 2,161.29             2,635.61              

Lease liabilities less ROU assets 145.56                -                      

Others 3.32                   31.27                   

Deferred tax assets arising on account of :

Right-of-use assets -                     (16.62)                 

Provision for employee benefits (625.61)              (622.29)                

Provision for trade receivables and advances (303.58)              (203.89)                

Derivative instruments - FVTOCI (12.18)                (118.83)                

Losses incurred by subsidiary (605.72)              (278.63)                

Others 13.40                 13.40                   

Deferred tax liabilities, (net) 5,689.11           6,137.74             

Movement in deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

 1 April 2020  Recognized in

statement of 

P&L 

 Recognized

in OCI 

31 March 2021

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :

Property, plant and equipment 5,879.14       (1,181.42)             -                     4,697.72              

Other non-current assets / financial liabilities 31.56            (0.29)                   31.27                   

Contract assets 1,537.05       1,098.56               -                     2,635.61              

Deferred tax assets arising on account of :

Unused tax credits (1,775.03)      1,775.03               -                     -                      

Right-of-use assets (22.88)          6.26                     -                     (16.62)                 

Provision for employee benefits (696.38)         53.27                   20.82                 (622.29)                

Provision for trade receivables and advances (253.17)         49.28                   -                     (203.89)                

Derivative instruments - FVTOCI (234.09)         -                      115.26                (118.83)                

Loss of subsidiary (132.76)         (145.87)                -                     (278.63)                

Others (41.03)          54.43                   -                     13.40                   

4,292.41      1,709.25             136.08              6,137.74             

1 April 2021  Recognized in

statement of 

P&L 

 Recognized

in OCI 

31 March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :

Property, plant and equipment 4,697.72       214.91                 -                     4,912.63              

Other non-current assets / financial liabilities 31.27            (27.95)                  -                     3.32                    

Lease liabilities less ROU assets -               145.56                 -                     145.56                 

Contract assets 2,635.61       (474.32)                -                     2,161.29              

Deferred tax assets arising on account of : -               -                      -                      

Right-of-use assets (16.62)          16.62                   -                     -                      

Provision for employee benefits (622.29)         (43.23)                  39.91                 (625.61)                

Provision for trade receivables and advances (203.89)         (99.69)                  -                     (303.58)                

Derivative instruments - FVTOCI (107.56)         -                      95.38                 (12.18)                 

Loss of subsidiary (278.63)         (327.09)                -                     (605.72)                

Others 13.40            -                      -                     13.40                   

6,149.01      (595.19)               135.29              5,689.11             
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 As at 

31 March 

 As at 

31 March 

24. Trade payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 44) 1,221.41          840.36        

18,581.27         12,957.55    

19,802.68       13,797.91  

* Includes amount payable to related parties - Refer note 40

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Less than 1 

year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

Total

(i). MSME          1,217.81               3.60            -                       -         1,221.41 

(ii) Others        17,177.27           552.27         5.10                23.00     17,757.64 

(iii). Disputed Dues - MSME                   -                    -              -                       -                  -   

(iv). Disputed Dues - Others                   -                    -              -                       -                  -   

(v). Unbilled Dues            823.63                  -              -                       -           823.63 

     19,218.71          555.87         5.10               23.00 19,802.68  

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Less than 1 

year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

 Total 

(i). MSME            840.00                  -              -                       -           840.00 

(ii) Others        12,198.18           138.29            -                  43.93     12,380.40 

(iii). Disputed Dues - MSME                   -                    -              -                       -                  -   

(iv). Disputed Dues - Others                   -                    -              -                       -                  -   

(v). Unbilled Dues            577.51                  -              -                       -           577.51 

     13,615.69          138.29            -                 43.93 13,797.91  

25. Other liabilities

 As at 

31 March 

 As at 

31 March 

Current

Advance from customers 1,120.01          685.25        

Payable to statutory authorities 762.63             895.64        

Other Advances -                  500.00        

1,882.64         2,080.89    

26. Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for income tax (net of advance tax) 256.68             30.10          

256.68            30.10         

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises*

(a) The amounts owing to micro and small enterprises, as defined under the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium 
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27. Revenue from operations

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Sale of goods and services

Revenue from contract research and manufacturing activities* 86,912.42                             75,870.66                         

Other operating income

Income from export incentives 46.91                                   118.29                             

86,959.33                           75,988.95                       

Timing of recognition

At a point in time 35,965.77                             27,565.86                         

Over time 50,946.65                             48,304.80                         

Total 86,912.42                           75,870.66                       

28. Other income

Interest income from fixed deposits 674.81                                 756.15                             

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost 30.18                                   38.77                               

Foreign exchange gain (net) 978.38                                 1,583.49                           

Interest on income tax refund -                                      32.54                               

Profit on Sale of PPE 1,131.47                               -                                  

Provisions no longer required written back -                                      317.92                             

2,814.84                             2,728.87                         

29. Cost of materials consumed

Raw material and packing material at the beginning of the year 2,997.58                               1,949.86                           

Add: Purchases/adjustments 30,760.65                             24,571.45                         

Less: Raw material and packing material at the end of the year (7,536.02)                             (2,997.58)                          

26,222.21                           23,523.73                       

30. Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 

Opening balance

- Work-in-progress 3,645.92                               1,996.09                           

(A) 3,645.92                             1,996.09                         

Closing balance

- Work-in-progress 3,928.93                               3,645.92                           

(B) 3,928.93                             3,645.92                         

(A)  - (B) (283.01)                               (1,649.83)                        

31. Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus (refer note (a) below) 27,905.75                             20,901.65                         

Gratuity 385.71                                 337.69                             

Contribution to provident and other funds 670.15                                 597.93                             

Employee-share based payment expense-equity settled 224.08                                 242.00                             

Staff welfare expenses 896.42                                 1,081.98                           

30,082.11                           23,161.25                       

(a) Includes contract labour charges of ₹ 2,537.68  (31 March 2021: ₹ 1,731.45)

*Disaggregation of revenue from contract research and manufacturing 

activities into over time and at a point in time
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 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

32. Finance costs

Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (net of 

borrowing cost of ₹ 502.66 (Mar 21 : ₹ 226.20) capitalised to 

property, plant and equipment)

3,719.25                        2,364.41                     

Interest on lease liabilities 846.23                           413.41                        

Interest on net defined benefit liability 129.83                           117.90                        

Interest on MSME payables 53.37                             -                             

Interest - others 338.32                           136.56                        

5,087.00                       3,032.28                   

33. Depreciation and amortisation expense

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (refer note 6) 6,049.56                        4,782.94                     

Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 7) 2,642.38                        2,925.42                     

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 8) 324.08                           248.88                        

9,016.02                       7,957.24                   

34. Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares 3,379.24                        1,920.66                     

Power and fuel 3,186.17                        2,724.95                     

Rent 135.59                           84.66                         

Repairs and maintenance:

- Buildings 268.42                           316.92                        

- Plant and equipment 2,327.97                        1,259.39                     

- Others 1,652.01                        1,063.81                     

Insurance 1,166.61                        1,028.02                     

Rates and taxes 510.32                           346.29                        

Outside contract cost 303.24                           214.18                        

Carriage and freight outwards 263.26                           318.91                        

Communication expenses 165.34                           221.82                        

Office maintenance and housekeeping expenses 420.78                           392.96                        
Travelling and conveyance 216.77                           176.98                        

Legal and professional fees (refer note (i) below) 1,975.93                        2,678.08                     

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure (refer note (ii) below) 236.22                           232.00                        

Provision towards doubtful trade receivables (refer note 38B) 537.32                           45.99                         

Bad debts written off (net of recoveries) (refer note 38B) 74.31                             18.48                         

Bank charges 360.68                           281.31                        

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment -                                   183.30                        

Sales promotion expenses including sales commission 510.54                           173.02                        

Membership and subscription 675.91                           705.60                        

Printing and stationery 103.05                           90.08                         

Miscellaneous expenses 210.64                           23.80                         

18,680.32                     14,501.21                 
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 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

(i) Details of Auditor's remuneration :

As auditor:

- Audit fee 57.50                          50.00                       

- Certification fees 14.50                          5.25                         

- Reimbursement of expenses 2.16                            0.50                         

74.16                         55.75                      

(ii) Details of CSR expenditure :

Amount spent during the year on:

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the 

year 233.50                        215.66                      

ii) Amount Spent during the year on the above 236.28                        232.00                      

iii) Shortfall at the end of the year -                             -                           

iv) Total of previous year shortfall -                             -                           

v) Reason for shortfall N/A N/A

vi) Nature of activity See note above See note above

vii) details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a 

trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure 

as per relevant Accounting Standard -                             -                           

viii) where a povision is made with respect to laibility incurred-

movement in the provision needs to be disclosed separately -                             -                           

35. Income tax

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Tax expense comprises of:

Current tax 942.08                        372.57                      

Deferred tax (595.19)                       1,709.25                   

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 346.89                       2,081.82                 

As required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee has

been formed by the Company. During the year, the Company was required to spend ₹ 233.50 (Mar 2021 - ₹ 215.66) for

contributing through Technology, conducting free medical program in rural areas, by taking actions on Environmental

sustainability, by associating with NGO education system in rural areas and providing water storage.

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic 

effective tax rate of the Company at 25.17% and the reported tax expense in the statement of profit and loss is as 

follows:

During the previous year, the Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income 

tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019.
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 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Profit before tax                          969.52                     8,191.94 

Tax at the Indian tax rate (25.17%) [31 March 2021: 25.17%]                          244.03                     2,061.91 

Effect of concessions (80JJAA)                          (27.95)                       (32.22)

Disallowance of CSR expenditure                            59.45                         58.39 

Benefit of lower tax rate on capital gain                          (36.86)                              -   

Others                          108.22                         (6.26)

Income tax expense                         346.89                   2,081.82 

36. Earnings per equity share [EPES]   

31 March 2022 

  

31 March 2021 

Profit attributable to equity shareholders                          622.63                     6,110.12 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 

the year                   1,74,87,831                 1,69,39,935 

Effect of dilution:

Employee stock options                        2,88,561                     3,00,218 

Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the 

effect of dilution                   1,77,76,392                 1,72,40,153 

Earnings per equity share (in absolute ₹ terms) :

Basic                             3.56                         36.07 

Diluted                             3.50                         35.44 

Nominal Value per share equity share                                10                             10 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit 

multiplied by India's tax rate

Adjustments
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37. Fair value measurements

Risk management framework:

(i) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value

  31 March 

2022 

  31 March 

2021 

  31 March 

2022 

  31 March 

2021 

  31 March 

2022 

  31 March 

2021 

-                 -                 248.36           45.06              1.59              1.59             

-                 -                 244.06           212.57            -               -               

*These are held for operational purposes and the Company estimates that the fair value of these investments are not materially different as compared to their cost.

Financial instruments by category

 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortised 

cost 

 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortised 

cost 

Financial assets

Investments -                    1.59               -                    -                    1.59              -                  

Trade receivables -                    -                    24,290.40       -                    -                   20,578.69     

Loans -                    -                    55.31             -                    -                   18.82           

Cash and cash equivalents -                    -                    11,594.02       -                    -                   6,675.23       

Other bank balances -                    -                    1,435.21         -                    -                   965.96          

Other financial assets -                    248.36            14,376.70       -                    45.06            15,159.44     

Total financial assets -                    249.95          51,751.64     -                    46.65           43,398.14   

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, lease liabilities, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the

Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive

directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTOCI investments and investment in its subsidiary.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s Board of Directors oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s Board of

Directors is supported by the senior management that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The senior

management provides assurance to the Company’s Board of Directors that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and

that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Financial liabilities - Derivative financial instruments - loss on outstanding 

foreign exchange forwards, options, currency swap contracts and 

interest rate swap contracts
(1)

(1) 
The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally banks. Derivatives valued using valuation techniques with market 

observable inputs are mainly interest rate swaps, foreign exchange forwards, options and swap contracts. These derivative financial instruments are valued based on the 

inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the market place.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets - Unlisted equity instruments measured at FVTOCI* 

and derivative instruments designated in hedge accounting relationship
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37 Fair value measurements (continued)

 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortised 

cost 

 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortised 

cost 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings -                    -                    75,131.80       -                           -                   63,669.77     

Lease liabilities -                    -                    21,412.72       -                           -                   3,759.99       

Trade payables -                    -                    19,802.68       -                           -                   13,797.91     

Other financial liabilities -                    244.06            972.54           -                           212.57          3,278.30       

Total financial liabilities -                    244.06          1,17,319.74  -                           212.57         84,505.97   

(ii) Measurement of fair values

Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs

(iii) Transfer between Level 1 and 2

There have been no transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 or vice-versa in 2021-22 and no transfers in either direction in 2020-21.

The significant valuation inputs considered are the option exercise

price, currency spot rates, tenure, risk-free interest rates and the

anticipated volatility in the underlying currency

Not applicable Not applicableOption contracts

Inter-relationship

between significant

unobservable inputs

and fair value

Significant

unobservable inputs

Valuation techniqueType

Not applicableNot applicableSwap models: The fair value is calculated as the present value of the

estimated future cash flows. Estimates of future floating-rate cash

flows are based on quoted swap rates, futures prices and interbank

borrowing rates. Estimated cash flows are discounted using a yield

curve constructed from similar sources and which reflects the relevant 

benchmark interbank rate used by market participants for this purpose

when pricing interest rate swaps. The fair value estimate is subject to

credit risk adjustment that reflects the credit risk of the entity and of

the counterparty; this is calculated based on credit spreads derived

from current credit default swap or bond prices.

Interest rate swaps and Cross Currency swaps

Not applicableNot applicableForward pricing: The fair value is determined using quoted forward

exchange rates at the reporting date and present value calculations

based on high credit quality yield curves in the respective currency

Forward exchange contract

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, for financial instruments measured at fair value in the balance sheet, as well 

as the significant unobservable inputs used:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
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38. Financial instruments risk management

A. Market risk:

i. Interest rate risk:

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

ii. Foreign currency risk:

a) Significant foreign currency risk exposure relating to financial assets and financial liabilities expressed in ₹ terms are as follows. 

Financial assets

Trade receivables*
Balances in 

bank
Other assets

Trade 

receivables*

Balances in 

bank
Other assets

- USD 20,630.51                   662.44                548.11              15,449.13         1,031.62          1,033.69       

- EUR 1,548.35                     21.07                 15.80                3,977.88          -                 39.94           

- GBP 55.01                         158.43                8.53                  89.98               1,529.26          164.11         

- Others 14.51                         40.85                 1.32                  149.70             58.07              -              

31 March 2021

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk:

interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, lease liabilities, deposits, trade receivables and other financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables

on the carrying values of gratuity and other post retirement obligations; provisions; and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has loan

facilities on floating interest rate, which exposes the Company to risk of changes in interest rates. The management monitors the interest rate movement and manages the interest

rate risk based on its policies, which include entering into interest rate swaps as considered necessary. The Company's investment in deposits with banks are for short durations and

therefore do not expose the Company to significant interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure shall fluctuate because of change in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s foreign

exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses, (primarily in US Dollars and Euros) and foreign currency borrowings (primarily in US

Dollars). As a result, if the value of the Indian rupee appreciates relative to these foreign currencies, the Company’s revenues and expenses measured in Indian rupees may

decrease or increase and vice-versa. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencies have changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to

fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the Company uses both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts,

currency swap contracts and foreign currency financial liabilities, to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates in respect of its highly probable forecasted

transactions and recognised assets and liabilities.  

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined for borrowings assuming the amount of borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole

year. A 10 basis points increase or decrease in case of foreign currency borrowings and 50 basis points increase or decrease in case of rupee borrowings is used when reporting

interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rate. 

If interest rate had been 10 basis points higher/lower in case of foreign currency borrowings and 50 basis points higher/ lower in case of rupee borrowings and all other variables

were held constant, the Company's profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 would decrease/increase by ₹ 281.12 (31 March 2021: ₹ 238.47)

31 March 2022

* This amount excludes ECL
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38 Financial instruments risk management (continued)

Financial liabilities

Borrowings# Trade payables Capital creditors Borrowings# Trade payables Capital creditors

- USD 16,157.69                             6,302.11             40.24                19,932.37         2,362.14          503.12                 

- EUR -                                      15.88                 -                   171.71             3.46                10.72                   

- GBP -                                      45.00                 -                   -                  -                 186.45                 

- Others -                                      20.87                 -                   -                  5.06                -                      

# This amount includes interest accrued

(b) Foreign currency sensitivity

Particulars

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

USD sensitivity

₹/USD - Increase by 1% (6.59)                  (52.83)               

₹/USD - Decrease by 1% 6.59                   52.83                

EUR sensitivity

₹/EUR - Increase by 1%                   15.69                  38.32 

₹/EUR - Decrease by 1%                 (15.69)                (38.32)

GBP sensitivity

₹/GBP - Increase by 1%                     1.77                  15.97 

₹/GBP - Decrease by 1%                   (1.77)                (15.97)

(c) Derivative financial instruments

Sell Buy  No of 

contracts 

outstanding 

 Amount in 

Lakhs 

 No of contracts 

outstanding 

 Amount in 

Lakhs 

Forward contract US$ ₹ 111                 386.45$           27                       $89.54

Currency swaps ₹ US$ -                  -                 1                         350.46₹       

Currency swaps US$ EUR -                  -                 1                         $8.96

Interest rate swaps INR (floating to fixed) 1                     6,937.50₹        

Interest rate swaps USD (floating to fixed) 2                     25.77$            1                         $31.76

31 March 2022

The following table gives details in respect of outstanding derivative contracts. The counterparty for these contracts are banks.

The Company designates its derivative contracts that hedge foreign exchange risk associated with its highly probable forecasted transactions as cash flow hedges and measures them 

at fair value. The effective portion of such cash flow hedges is recorded as in other comprehensive income, and re-classified in the income statement as revenue in the period 

corresponding to the occurrence of the forecasted transactions. The ineffective portion of such cash flow hedges is immediately recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

31 March 2021

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and Euro exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The Company’s exposure to

foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Impact on income 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
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B. Credit risk

Allowance for doubtful receivables  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 

2021 Opening balance 668.66              622.67             

Provision towards doubtful trade receivables 611.63              64.47               

Amounts written off (74.31)               (18.48)             

Closing balance 1,205.98          668.66            

C. Liquidity risk

The Company has established a credit mechanism under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery

terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes external ratings, where available, and other publicly available financial information. Outstanding customer receivables

are regularly monitored.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to ₹ 24,290.40 (31 March 2021: ₹ 20,578.69) The movement in allowance for

impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally from

its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities

to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the

liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level

of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are the cash flows generated from operations. Further the Company also has long term borrowings and working capital facilities which the

management believes are sufficient for its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

Maturities of financial liabilities

Up to 1 

year

From 1 to 3 

years

More than 

3 years

Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings        75,131.80     45,414.77     11,894.78      17,822.25      75,131.80 

Lease liabilities        21,412.72       2,456.14       4,525.78      14,430.80      21,412.72 

Trade and other payables        19,802.68     19,802.68                  -                  -      19,802.68 

Other financial liabilities            972.54          924.51           48.03                  -           972.54 

Total   1,17,319.74   68,598.10   16,468.59    32,253.05   1,17,319.74 

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. 

Contractual cash flowsCarrying 

amount

31 March 2022
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Up to 1 

year

From 1 to 3 

years

More than 3 

years

Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings        63,669.77     39,025.80     13,197.16             11,446.81         63,669.77 

Lease liabilities          3,759.99       1,650.28       1,342.63                 767.08           3,759.99 

Trade payable        13,797.91     13,797.91                  -                         -         13,797.91 

Other financial liabilities          3,278.30       3,230.27           48.03                         -           3,278.30 

Total      84,505.97   57,704.26   14,587.82           12,213.89         84,505.97 

39. Capital risk management

The capital for the reporting year under review is summarized as follows: 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Total borrowings (note 19) 75,131.80           63,669.77         

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 15(i)) 11,594.02           6,675.23           

Less: Other bank balances (note 15 (ii)) and Deposits classified under Other financial assets (note 10) 11,435.21           13,515.96         

Net debt (A) 52,102.57         43,478.58       

Total equity (B) 87,856.55           86,295.14         

Net debt to equity ratio (A)/(B) 0.59 0.50

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders

and benefits for stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Hence, the Company may adjust any dividend payments,

return capital to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Total capital is the equity as shown in the statement of financial position. Currently,

the Company primarily monitors its capital structure on the basis of the following gearing ratio. Management is continuously reviewing its strategies to optimize the

returns and reduce the risks. It includes plans to optimize the financial leverage of the Company.

Contractual cash flowsCarrying 

amount

31 March 2021
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40. Related party disclosures

(a) Names of the related parties and nature of relationship 

Names of related parties

R R Kabel Limted

Sai Quest Syn Private Limited

TPG Asia VII SF Pte Ltd

Soma Khadi Gramodyog Sangha

Dr. K Ranga Raju

Krishnam Raju

Jayant Bhalchandra Manmadkar  (resigned as Chief Financial 

Officer 

w.e.f. 1 July 2021 )
Sivaramakrishnan Chittor (appointed as Chief Financial Officer 

w.e.f. 1 July 2021)

Runa Karan

Dr. Raju A Penmasta

Puneet Bhatia

Mitesh Daga

Rajagopal S. Tatta

Nandita Gurjar

(b) Transactions with related parties

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

Transactions with independent directors 65.05                                   64.09                                

Commission 60.73                                                                     60.90 

Sitting fees 4.04                                                                         2.79 

Reimbursement of expenses 0.28                                                                         0.40 

Transactions with KMP 400.68                                 883.06                              

Managerial remuneration* 400.68                                                                 883.06 

(c) Balances outstanding

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

Payables

KMP 22.28                                    306.85                               

Entity in which KMP has control or significant influence 

Rental deposit 30.00                                    30.00                                 

Entities in which KMP have control or have significant 

Entity having significant influence on the Company

Entities in which KMP have control or have significant 

influence

Independent Director

Nature of relationship

For the year ended

*KMP are covered by the Company's mediclaim insurance policy and are eligible for gratuity and leave encashment along with

other employees of the Company. The proportionate premium paid towards this policy and provision made for gratuity and leave

encashment pertaining to the KMP has not been included in the aforementioned disclosures as these are not determined on an

individual basis. 

Entities in which investor director have significant influence

Key management personnel ("KMP")

Director

 As at 
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(d) Transaction with related parties

41. Segment reporting

(i) Revenue from External customers  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

India 6,814.87                                4,267.55                            

Outside India 80,097.55                              71,603.11                           

(ii) Non-Current Assets (Other than financial instruments)

India 1,10,021.83                            95,650.52                           

Outside India 10,985.67                              5,305.87                            

(iii) Major Customer

42. Contingent liabilities and commitments

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

(a) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

account and not provided for (net of advances)

2,673.28                                8,548.81                            

(b) Contingent liabilities   

Claims arising from disputes not acknowledged as debts in 

respect of:

Excise duty liabilities - refer note (c) (i) below 72.48                                    72.48                                 

Service tax liabilities - refer note (c) (ii) below 123.62                                  123.62                               

Entry tax liabilities - refer note (c) (iii) below -                                           12.41                                 

Provident Fund Damages relating to PF contribution of 

international workers - refer note (c) (iv) below 218.91                                  218.91                               

Income tax liabilities - refer note (c) (v) below 565.84                                  372.24                               

VAT liabilities - refer note (c) (vi) below 592.52                                  592.52                               

 For the year ended 

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Company is required to use certain specified

methods in assessing that the transactions with the related parties, are carried at an arm’s length price and is also required to

maintain prescribed information and documents to support such assessment. The appropriate method to be adopted will depend

on the nature of transactions / class of transactions, class of associated persons, functions performed and other factors as

prescribed. Based on certain internal analysis carried out, management believes that transactions entered into with the related

parties were carried out at arms length prices. The Company is in the process of updating the transfer pricing documentation for

the financial year ended 31 March 2022. In opinion of the management, the same would not have an impact on these financial

statements. Accordingly, these financial statements do not include the effect of the transfer pricing implications, if any.

The management has assessed the identification of reportable segments in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 

‘Operating Segment’and believes that the Company has only one reportable segment namely “Contract research and 

manufacturing”. Geography-wise details of the Company’s revenues from external customers and its non-current assets (other 

than financial instruments, investments accounted for using the equity method, deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit 

assets) and revenue from major customers are given below:

The Company has one customer who contributed more than 10% of the Company's total revenue. The revenue from such major 

customer during the year is ₹ 9,417.23  (31 March 2021: ₹ 12,799.74)

 As at 
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(c)

(iv) The Company has three Non resident Indians on its rolls covered under the definition of International Workers as per the

Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. Based on the Government Order, in June 2017, the

Company suo moto made a payment of provident fund along with the applicable interest rates. 

However, on April 25, 2018, the Company received a notice from the Department stating that from the period 01 April 1996 to

31 March 2018, the Company had delays in deposit of Provident fund amount and accordingly, charged interest and damages

under Section 14B and Section 7Q of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 to the extent of

Rs 131.51 and Rs 218.91 for interest and damages respectively.

The Company has represented the case stating that interest payments were made appropriately. The PF authorities took the

such interest payment on record and gave a corrigendum stating the same.

The Company is still contesting the damages payment of ₹ 218.91. The Company during the year addressed a letter dated

October 22, 2020 to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, requesting it to refrain from taking any such coercive action

against the Company and reserved its right to exercise its rights and remedies under law. However, since no presiding officer

had been appointed for hearing matters before the Central Government Industrial Tribunal (“CGIT”) at that time, the Company

filed the present writ petition bearing Writ Petition No. 19867 of 2020 against the RPFC for the setting aside of the Impugned

Order as being arbitrary, illegal and violative of Article 14 of the Constitution of India.The matter was listed on November 19,

2020, wherein, the High Court passed an interim order granting a stay on the Impugned Order. However, as on date, there is no

further order with regard to the said damages.Apart from the proceedings before the High Court of Telangana, an appeal was

also filed by the Client challenging the Impugned Order before the CGIT under Section 7-I of the EPF Act.The matter was listed

for admission on April 26, 2021. The CGIT, vide, an order passed on April 26, 2021, observed that the present appeal was

admitted subject to the final order passed by the High Court of Telangana. The said order held that the application for stay as

filed by the Client would be considered upon obtaining such a final order

(ii) The Service tax department has raised a demand on the ground that that the Place of Provision of Service is in India and as

such there is no export of service by the Company applying Rule 4 of Place of Provision of Service Rules, 2012. (POPS Rules)

with respect to Drug Metabolism and Pharmacokinetic (DMPK) services rendered by the Company. Appeal filed before

CESTAT- Pune, on 27 April 15 and Final Order received. Appeal is filed before Honourable High Court on 9 Dec 19 and

Personal Hearing is attended on 27 Feb 20. Appeal has been admitted by Hight court on 5th July 2022

(i) The Central Excise department has raised a demand against the Company on the ground that the Company has not complied

with the conditions of Notification No 23/2003 – CE dated 31 March 2003. As per the said notification, an Export Oriented Unit

(EOU) unit can clear the goods into Domestic Tariff Area (DTA) on payment of excise duty at a concessional rate upto 50% of

the Free on Board (FOB) value of the exports on the sale of similar goods to DTA. The central excise officer has held that the

goods sold in DTA are different from the goods which are exported. Accordingly raised the above demand along with interest

and penalty. Appeal is filed before Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal ('CESTAT') and waiting for personal

hearing.

(iii) The Company has received Entry Tax Assessment orders on 19 February 2018 passed by Commercial Tax Officer, Saroor

Nagar Circle (adjudicating authorities) demanding Entry tax on the goods (namely furnace oil and networking cables) purchased

from outside the State of Telangana for the Financial years 2013-14 to FY 2016 -17 for an amount of ₹ 11.27 and Company has

filed an appeal with Appellate Joint Commissioner (ST) (“Appellate Authorities”) on 21 March 2018 on the grounds that said

goods are inputs and are excluded from levy of Entry Tax. Personal hearing before the Appellate authorities was concluded on

20 March 2020 and Order was passed on 31 March 2020 dismissing the appeal filed by the Company on the grounds that the

said goods do not qualify as 'inputs' forming part of final produtcs and not eligible for exemption. Against the amount of VAT

refund receivable, the Authorities had adjusted the liabilities of Entry Tax (in full) for the Financials years 2013-14 to FY 2016-17

on 19 December 2020 and the matters were closed.  

Under the same grounds, the Company has received Entry Tax Assessment orders on 28 October 2019 for the period of Apr-17

to Jun-17 for an Amount of ₹ 1.13 and Company has filed an appeal with Appellate Joint Commissioner (ST) (“Appellate

Authorities”) on 22 November 2019. Personal hearing before the Appellate authorities was concluded on 20 March 2020 and

Order was passed on 31 March 2020 dismissing the appeal filed by the Company on the grounds that the said goods do not

qualify as 'inputs' forming part of final produtcs and not eligible for exemption. Demand notice is received in the month of

September 2020 for recovery of tax arrears. A letter was submitted on 4 Nov 20 requesting not to initiate recovery proceedings

pending receipt of the Order. The Company has discharged the liabilities of Entry Tax (in full) for the period April 2017 to June

2017 on 30th March 2022 and the matters were closed.
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43. Other statutory disclosures

44.  Micro, Small and Medium  Enterprises

(vii) The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business

including litigation pending before various tax authorities, including those mentioned in above points. The uncertainties and

possible refunds are dependent on the outcome of different legal processes, which have been invoked by the claimants or the

Company, as the case may be, and therefore cannot be accurately predicted . The Company engages reputed professional

advisors to protect its interest and has been advised that it has strong legal positions against such disputes. Management believes

that it has a reasonable case in its defense of the proceedings and accordingly no further provision is required.

(v) During the previous years the Company has received a demand from income tax authorities relating to financial year 2015-

16, 2016-17 & 2017-18 regarding certain disallowances in the income tax return of that year. The Company has filed an appeal

and is pending hearing.

(vi) The Company has litigations under Maharashtra Value Added Tax ('MVAT') Act, 2002 and Central Sales Tax ('CST') Act,

1956 for the years 2009-10 to 2016-17, and for the quarter 1 April 2017 to 30 June 2017. For the years 2009-10 to 2013-14, the

Company is in appeal before the Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal and for the years 2014-15 to 30 June 2017, the Company is in

appeal before the Joint Commissioner (Appeals). The issue pertains to eligibility of refund of Input Tax Credit ('ITC) under

MVAT Act.

The tax authorities have raised objection that transfer of deliverables (technical know-how) to the Customer of the Company is a

service and not sale of goods. Therefore, the tax authorities at the first level have disallowed ITC and rejected the claim of

refund of unutilised ITC of the Company. However, in this regard, the Company believes that transfer of deliverables to the

Customer is sale of goods and the Company is eligible for ITC and the refund of unutilized ITC

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which

recommends that the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the

Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allotted after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the

amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 & 31 March 2021 has been made in the financial statements based on

information received and available with the Company. Further, in the view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that

may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is not

expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act.

i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for 

holding any Benami property. 

ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off. 
iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

v) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 

authority. 

vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

   (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or  

   (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

vii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall: 

   (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

   (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

viii) The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any 

other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
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 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 

end of each accounting year*

1,291.35                                1,133.33                            

The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the 

amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 

day during the year

-                                       -                                    

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 

day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 

this Act

-                                       -                                    

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 

the year*

53.37 -                                    

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in 

the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as 

above are actually paid to the small enterprise

-                                       -                                    

This information is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and has 

been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Auditors 

have placed reliance on the information provided by the management.

* Includes amounts payable to trade creditors ₹ 1221.47 (31 March 2021: ₹ 840.36) and capital creditors ₹ 123.31 (31 March 

2021: ₹ 292.97) 
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45 Leases

Particulars  As at 

31 March 2022 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

                  3,759.99                 5,422.67 

Additions                  21,600.55                 3,087.87 

Deletions                  (1,588.41)               (1,725.74)

Accretion of interest                      846.23                   315.48 

Payments                  (3,205.64)               (3,340.29)

Closing balance                21,412.72               3,759.99 

Current                   2,456.14                 1,063.99 

Non-current                  18,956.58                 2,696.00 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

                  2,642.38                 2,925.42 

                     846.23                   413.41 

                     135.59                     84.66 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Interest portion of lease liabilities                      846.23                   315.48 

Principal portion of lease liabilities                   2,359.41                 3,024.81 

Particulars

For the year ended

Company as a lessee : The Company has lease contracts for land, buildings, vehicles and computers, with lease period 

varying between 1 to 51 years. The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased 

assets.

Lease liabilities

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance

Cash outflows for leases

Depreciation: Right-of-use assets

Finance cost: Interest on lease liabilities

Short term and variable lease payments (Refer note below)

Note: The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of certain premises taken 

on lease (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a 

purchase option).

Amount recognised in Statement of Cash flow

Particulars

For the year ended
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46 Ratios

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 Variance Remarks

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.32 1.34 -1.5%

Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt
(1)

Shareholder's Equity 0.59 0.50 18.0%

Debt Service Coverage  Ratio Earnings available for debt service
(2)

Debt service
(3)

1.63 3.28 -50.3%

Decrease in primarily on 

account of decrease in profits

Return on Equity (ROE) Net profit after taxes

Average Shareholder's 

Equity 1% 7% -85.7%

Decrease in primarily on 

account of decrease in profits

Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 2.55 3.63 -29.8%

Decrease was primarily on 

account of decrease in 

inventory 

Trade Receivables  Turnover 

Ratio Revenue from Operations Average Receivables 3.88 3.20 21.3%

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold(7)+Other expenses Average Trade Payable 2.66 2.59 2.7%

Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue from Operations Working Capital
(4)

3.77 3.71 1.6%

Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Revenue from Operations 1% 8% -87.5%

Decrease in primarily on 

account of decrease in profits

Return on Capital Employed 

(ROCE) 

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes 

(EBIT) Capital Employed 
(5)

4% 9% -55.6%

Decrease in primarily on 

account of decrease in profits

Return on Investment 
(6)

Income generated from investments Investments

(2) Net profit before tax + Depreciation + Finance cost

(3) Finance cost (excluding interest on lease liabilities) + Current maturities of long-term loans

(4) Current assets - current liabilities 

(5) Total Assets - current liabilities

(6) The Company is not having any market linked investments

(7) Cost of materials consumed +Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 

Not Applicable

(1) Long-Term borrowings + Short-Term borrowings - Cash and cash equivalents -Other bank balances (note 15 (ii)) and Deposits classified under Other financial assets 

(note 10)
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As % of 

Consolidated 

net assets

Amount As % of 

Consolidated 

profit or loss

Amount As % of

Consolidated

OCI

Amount As % of 

Consolidated

Total OCI

Amount

Parent

Sai Life Sciences Limited 101.43%       89,111.41 251.88%     1,568.26 61.40%        246.96 177.12%                    1,815.22 

Subsidiaries

Sai Life Sciences Inc 4.55%        3,999.29 -149.52%      (930.95) 0.00%               -   -90.84%                     (930.95)

Sai Life Pharma Private Limited 1.29%        1,133.48 -0.68%          (4.23) 0.00%               -   -0.41%                         (4.23)

Sai Life Sciences GMBH 10.45%        9,182.49 -2.04%        (12.72) 0.00%               -   -1.24%                       (12.72)

Non-controlling interest                       -                   -                      -                -                              -                 -                              -                             -   

Total 117.72%  1,03,426.67 99.64%      620.36 61.40%       246.96 84.63%                     867.32 

Consolidation adjustments -17.72%     (15,570.12) 0.36%           2.27 38.60%        155.26 15.37%                       157.53 

Net amount 100.00%     87,856.55 100.00%      622.63 100.00%       402.22 100.00%                  1,024.85 

As % of 

Consolidated 

net assets

Amount As % of 

Consolidated 

profit or loss

Amount As % of

Consolidated

OCI

Amount As % of 

Consolidated Total

OCI

Amount

Parent

Sai Life Sciences Limited 100.53%       86,751.90 106.88%     6,530.40 108.29%        438.09 106.97%                    6,968.49 

Foreign subsidiary

Sai Life Sciences Inc 5.49%        4,741.77 -6.74%      (411.78) 0.00%               -   -6.32%                     (411.78)

Sai Life Pharma Private Limited 1.32%        1,137.71 -0.13%          (7.96) 0.00%               -   -0.12%                         (7.96)

Sai Life Drugform Private Limited 0.00%              0.25 -0.01%          (0.54) 0.00%               -   -0.01%                         (0.54)

0% 0%

Non-controlling Interest                       -                   -                      -                -                              -                 -                              -                             -   

Total 107.34%     92,631.63 100.00%   6,110.12 108.29%       438.09 100.51%                  6,548.21 

Consolidation adjustments -7.34%       (6,336.49) 0.00%                - -8.29%         (33.54) -0.51%                       (33.54)

Net amount 100.00%     86,295.14 100.00%   6,110.12 100.00%       404.55 100.00%                  6,514.67 

Additional disclosure as required under paragraph 2 of ‘General Instructions for the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements’ of the Schedule III to the Act*

Name of the entity

As at 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2022

Net assets (i.e., total assets-

total liabilities)

Share in profit or loss Share in Other Comprehensive 

Income (OCI)

Share in Total Other Comprehensive 

Income 

The above disclosure represents separate information for the consolidated entity before elimination of inter–company transactions. The net impacts on elimination of inter–company

transactions/profits/consolidation adjustments have been disclosed separately. Based on the group structure, the management is of the view that the above disclosure is appropriate under

requirements of the Act.

Name of the entity

As at 31 March 2021 For the year ended 31 March 2021

Net assets (i.e., total assets-

total liabilities)

Share in profit or loss Share in Other Comprehensive 

Income (OCI)

Share in Total Other Comprehensive 

Income 
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48

49 Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 August 2022.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

Dr. K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju

Chairman Managing Director

DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614

Place: Boston

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A13721

During the financial year, the company’s business operations were impacted by the global health pandemic

from COVID-19 (COVID-19) and the lockdown restrictions. COVID-19 is the infectious disease caused by

the most recently discovered coronavirus, SARS-CoV-2. In March 2020, the WHO declared COVID-19 a

pandemic. Our operations in India come under the jurisdictions of three States Telangana, Karnataka and

Maharashtra. The revenue generation for the first quarter was constrained on account of the lockdown

regulations. Further the Company has consolidated its operations from the rental facilities in Pune,

Maharashtra to its location in Hyderabad, Telangana and had completed the expansion plans (including

ramping up headcount) to accommodate the consolidation during previous year. As part of the overall

strategy, Company adopted measures to protect and safeguard the health of employees. The cost of

operations during the year increased on account of additional costs due to the restrictions imposed by the

regulators, compensations to the families for the deceased employees due to Covid, vaccination to all

employees & family members and in mitigating and safeguarding the health risks of the employees.

The Company has evaluated impact of COVID-19 pandemic in assessing the recoverability of non-current

assets, inventories, trade receivables and contract assets based on its review of current indicators of future

economic conditions. Based on such assessment, the Company expects to recover carrying values of such

assets. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. 
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SAI LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED 

CIN: U24110TG1999PLC030970 

Regd. Office: Plot No. DS-7, IKP Knowledge Park, Turkapally (V), Shameerpet Mandal,  

Medchal-Malkajgiri Dist, Hyderabad - 500078, Hyderabad, Telangana, India. 

 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

23rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

19th September 2022 AT 10.30 AM (IST) 

     

DP Id.  Name & Address of the registered Shareholder 

Client Id/Regd. Folio No. 
 

 
No.of Shares held 

 

     

I certify that I am a member / proxy for the member of the Company. 

I hereby record my presence at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of Sai Life Sciences Limited being held  

on Monday, the 19th day of September 2022 at 10.30 AM (IST) at the Registered Office situated at Plot No. 

DS-7, IKP Knowledge Park, Turkapally Village, Shameerpet Mandal, Medchal-Malkajgiri District, -

500078, Hyderabad, Telangana, India. 

          

           
           Member's/Proxy's Signature 

 

Note: Please complete this and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. 

 

Form No. MGT – 11 

PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Company Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN :   

Name of the Company :   

Registered Office :   

Name of the member (s) :   

Registered address :   

E-Mail Id :   

Folio No/ Client Id :    DP ID   

I/We, being the member (s) of…………………………………. Shares of the above named company, 

hereby appoint 
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1 NAME   

  Address   

  E -Mail Id   
Signature 

  

  or failing him     

2 NAME   

  Address   

  E -Mail Id   
Signature 

  

  or failing him     

3 NAME   

  Address   

  E -Mail Id   Signature   

          

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 23rd Annual General 

Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, the 19th day of September 2022 at 10.30 AM (IST) at the 

Registered Office of the Company situated at Plot No. DS-7, IKP Knowledge Park, Turkapally Village, 

Shameerpet Mandal, Medchal-Malkajgiri District-500078, Hyderabad, Telangana, India and at any 

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

          

Resolution No.       

1. 2. 3. 4. 

     

 

 

 

Signed this ………………………. Day of …………………..2022 
 

 

 

Signature of shareholder         :   __________________________________________________ 

 

Signature of Proxy holder (s) :   __________________________________________________ 

          

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
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